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Foreword 

The journey of ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions (ASEANSAI) have been started since 

on 16 November 2011. The Association of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN) has 

embarked to establish an ASEAN Community and declared its unity under “One Vision, 

One Identity, One Caring and Sharing Community” which inspired ASEANSAI to establish. 

Till today, the ASEANSAI has been journey for 8 years which has made many attempts 

and gained remarkable achievements in fulfilling its Mission, Vision and Core Values.  

 

Through the spirit of togetherness of 10 member SAIs to be one organization and 

desiring to promote understanding and cooperation among the Supreme Audit 

Institutions of ASEAN Member states in the field of public sector auditing in order to 

safeguard a stable and prosperous ASEAN Community. 

 

This edition of the ASEANSAI Book entitled “Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to 

professionalism” Which continue the publication of the ASEANSAI Book title “Spirit of 

togetherness for achievement” in 2017. This edition will highlight the ASEANSAI 

information, ASEANSAI Meeting and Activities, ASEANSAI and International Community, 

ASEANSAI Committees’ Activities, Head of SAI Word Encouragement and ASEANSAI 

documents from November 2017 to October 2019. 

 

Since the 4th ASEANSAI Summit in November 2017 in Vientiane, Lao PDR, ASEANSAI has 

a number of remarkable achievements including: (1) Signing Commitment between the 

INTOSAI Development Initiative (IDI) and ASEANSAI had launched the IDI-ASEANSAI 

programme on ISSAI-based Cooperative Financial Audit, (2) Field Workshop and Final 

Wrap-up Meeting of the Long-Term ASEANSAI Programme on ISSAI Implementation 

phase II, (3) workshop on Conducting Awareness Knowledge Sharing on Good Practices 

about SAI Independence, (4) Workshop on Fraud Audit Investigation, (5) IDI-ASEANSAI 

ISSAI Based Financial Audit Workshop, (6) ASEANSAI Annual Monitoring and Evaluation 

Meeting, (7) Joint Seminar between ASEAN-ASEANSAI-AIPA on Laying the Foundation 

for Future Cooperation in Promoting  

Accountability and Transparency in ASEAN, (8) the ASEANSAI Knowledge System 

Workshop, (9) 2nd Revision of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures, (9) ASEANSAI Side 

Meeting. 

 

At international activities, ASEANSAI has a privilege to present its achievement at the 

52nd ASOSAI Governing Board Meeting and 14th ASOSAI Assembly in Hanoi, Vietnam. 

Further, ASEANSAI has a chance to attend the 28th OLACEF Assembly in Argentina. 

 

In this opportunity, I would like to express my sincere thanks to all of ASEANSAI 

members that always hardworking to strengthen, enhance and develop our institute. 

The development and achievement during 2017 - 2019 which mentioned above resulted 
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from the participation and contribution from member SAIs as well as assistance of 

development partners such as German International Cooperation (GIZ), The Swedish 

National Audit Office (SNAO), World Bank and other partners. 

 

To sustainable development for ASEANSAI member SAIs in the field of public sector 

auditing, ASEANSAI has a workshop on financial audit in order to sustainability for 

ASEANSAI to implement the ISSAI. Along with the implementing, the ASEANSAI still 

facing a number of challenges, especially shortage of budget and the internal process of 

each country are difference. However, I strongly believe that the challenges can be 

overcome through the solidarity of all SAI members and also with the assistance and 

contribution from development partners. It is my conviction that ASEANSAI will keep 

continue growth up with strengthens and reach the 6 strategic goals of ASEANSAI 

Strategic Plan 2018-2021. 

 

Lastly, I would like to express my deepest gratitude to all top management and staff of 

ASEANSAI members, ASEANSAI Committee and especially the Audit Board of the 

Republic of Indonesia as capacity of the ASEANSAI Secretariat that was contributed as 

the secretary for the chairperson on assisting in ASEANSAI works. I hope this edition of 

the ASEANSAI Book will provide a beneficially for those who want to learn about 

ASEANSAI. 

 

Thank you very much for your support of the ASEANSAI. 
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CHAPTER 1  

ASEANSAI Information 
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1.1 General Information 

1.1.1 Background 

For many years, Supreme Audit Institutions (SAIs) of ASEAN member states have been 

involved in activities offered by INTOSAI and ASOSAI in building institutional framework 

and strengthening capacity of SAIs. However, with the growing demands which SAIs of 

ASEAN member states are called to fulfil, they feel the need to have a forum which 

focuses to promote technical cooperation in public sector audit, inter alia, exchange of 

information, best practices and lessons learned while addressing common problems 

faced within the ASEAN region. Due to this need, the ten SAIs of ASEAN member states 

decided to set up a new organization named the ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions 

(ASEANSAI). 

 

ASEANSAI is expected to encourage and promote good governance within the ASEAN 

region. Thus, ASEANSAI will focus on capacity development for SAIs of ASEAN member 

states and technical cooperation dealing with important and common audit issues in the 

ASEAN region. 

 

The establishment of ASEANSAI is in line with the commitment of ASEAN member states 

to establish an ASEAN Community by 2015 with the principle of good governance as 

stated in the Preamble of the ASEAN Charter. In achieving this goal, a closer and more 

enhanced cooperation among SAIs of ASEAN member states is required. Therefore, 

ASEANSAI will also contribute positively and constructively as ASEAN’s independent 

partner in relation to the enhancement of good governance to have a better 

government. 

 

1.1.2. Establishment of ASEANSAI 

On November 16, 2011, ten SAIs gathered in Bali, Indonesia, namely Audit Department 

of Brunei Darussalam, National Audit Authority of the Kingdom of Cambodia, Audit 

Board of the Republic of Indonesia, State Audit Organization of Lao People’s Democratic 

Republic, National Audit Department of Malaysia, Office of the Auditor General of the 

Republic of the Union of Myanmar, Commission on Audit of the Republic of the 

Philippines, Auditor-General’s Office of Singapore, State Audit Office of the Kingdom of 

Thailand, and State Audit Office of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam, to sign the 

Agreement on the Establishment of ASEANSAI. 

On the same day, the First Assembly of ASEANSAI was held and essential things were 

agreed upon such as the chairmanship of ASEANSAI, financial contribution, and the 

setting up of committees to perform special tasks. Currently, National Audit Authority 

of the Kingdom of Cambodia is the Chairperson of ASEANSAI while State Audit 

Organization of Lao People’s Democratic Republic is the Vice Chairperson of ASEANSAI, 

both for the period 2015-2017. 
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1.1.3 Objectives 

The objectives of ASEANSAI include the following: 

1. To build capacity and promote cooperation and understanding among the members 

of ASEANSAI through the exchange and sharing of knowledge and experiences in the 

field of public sector auditing so as to strengthen the audit institutions; 

2. To provide a conducive environment and facilities to promote research, training, 

and continuous education among the members of ASEANSAI through the sharing of 

best practices and exchange of lessons learned; and 

3. To serve as a center of information and as an ASEANSAI link with other international 

organizations and institutions in the field of public sector auditing. 

 

1.1.4 Functions 

The functions of ASEANSAI include the following: 

1. To create and maintain a data bank of best practices, standards, and methodologies 

in field of public sector auditing; 

2. To organize seminars, workshop, studies, or other activities related to the exchange 

of knowledge and experiences in the field of public sector auditing; 

3. To undertake other activities that will promote good governance and cooperation 

among Members of ASEANSAIs. 

 

1.1.5 Relation with other similar organizations 

Members of ASEANSAI are also members of ASOSAI and also INTOSAI. Without a 

doubt, these organizations can benefit from each other. In undertaking its activities, 

ASEANSAI can cooperate with other INTOSAI Regional Working Groups. 

 

1.1.6 Committees 

ASEANSAI set up four committees to perform special tasks: 

1. Strategic Planning Committee to develop the Strategic Plan, chaired by SAI of 

Vietnam with SAIs of Indonesia, Malaysia, Philippines, Brunei Darussalam, Thailand, 

and Lao PDR as the members; 

2. Rules and Procedures Committee to develop rules and procedures, chaired by SAI 

of Singapore with SAIs of Brunei Darussalam, Lao PDR, Malaysia, and Thailand as the 

members; 

3. Knowledge Sharing Committee to develop and implement the plan for knowledge 

sharing, chaired by SAI of Malaysia with SAIs of Brunei Darussalam, Cambodia, Lao 

PDR, Myanmar, Philippines, and Thailand as the members; and 

4. Training Committee to develop and implement the plan for training, chaired by SAI 

of the Philippines with SAIs of Brunei Darussalam, Indonesia, Malaysia, and Thailand 

as the members. 

 

 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 

 

 

1.2 ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE OF ASEANSAI 

The membership of ASEANSAI comprises of 10 SAIs of the ASEAN Member States. It 

consists of four important bodies, namely, the Assembly, Executive Committee, 

Secretariat and the Committee. The Assembly, as a decision-making body, is composed 

of all ASEANSAI members who serves as the Auditor General or Head of each SAI while 

the Executive Committee comprises of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI. 

To implement the Assembly’s decision in line with the goals and objectives of ASEANSAI, 

the Assembly establishes committees. There are four committees in ASEANSAI; Strategic 

Planning Committee, Rules and Procedures Committee, Knowledge Sharing Committee 

and Training Committee. Each committee publishes work plan periodically to support 

the achievement of the ASEANSAI vision and missions, and the implementation of the 

Strategic Plan. 

 

 

 

ASSEMBLY

Executive Committee

Chairman: President of the State Audit Organization of Lao PDR

Vice Chairman: Auditor General of Malaysia

Strategic 
Planning 

Committee

Chair: SAI 
Vietnam

Members:

1. SAI Indonesia

2. SAI Malaysia

3. SAI 
Philippines

4. SAI Brunei 
Darussalam

5. SAI Thailand 

6. SAI Lao PDR

Rules and 
Procedure

Chair: SAI 
Singapore

Members:

1. SAI Brunei

Darussalam

2. SAI Lao PDR

3. SAI 
Malaysia

4. SAI Thailand

Head of 
Secretariat 
Function

SAI 
Indonesia

Knowledge 
Sharing 

Committee

Chair:

SAI Malaysia

Members:

1. SAI Brunei

Darussalam

2. SAI Cambodia

3. SAI Lao PDR

4. SAI Myanmar

5. SAI Philippines

6. SAI Thailand

Training 
Committee

Chair:

SAI Philippines

Members:

1. SAI Brunei

Darussalam

2. SAI Indonesia

3. SAI Malaysia

4. SAI Thailand
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CHAPTER 2 

ASEANSAI Meeting and 

Activities 
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2.1 The 4th ASEANSAI Summit 

 

 

 
The 4th ASEANSAI Summit was held on 6 November 2017 in Vientiane, Lao PDR and 

officially opened by H.E. Mr. Sonexay SIPHANDONE, Deputy Prime Minister of the Lao 

PDR. The main agenda of this meeting is handover of ASEANSAI Chairmanship from 

National Audit Authority Kingdom of Cambodia to State Audit Office of Lao PDR. In 

addition to that, the meeting which was attended by all of Head SAIs in ASEAN Region 

also endorsed the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan for the period of 2018 – 2021, approved the 

revision of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures, and approved the Committee’s Work Plan 

for 2018 – 2019 and the appointment of Long Term Secretariat. 
 

 
 

Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE, Auditor General Lao PDR was inaugurated as the 

ASEANSAI Chairperson for the period of 2017 – 2019. While the Audit Board of the 

Republic of Indonesia was appointed as the long term Secretariat for the period of 2017 

– 2023 and Office of Auditor General of Thailand was re-appointed as the ASEANSAI 

Auditor. 
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2.2 Launching of ASEANSAI Secretariat Office 

Following the appointment of the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia (BPK) as the 

ASEANSAI Secretariat for the period of 2018-2023 at the 4th ASEANSAI Summit held in 

Laos in November 2017, BPK establishes Office of ASEANSAI Secretariat at its 

Headquarters. Located at the 1st Floor of BPK Tower, Jakarta, the ASEANSAI Office 

represents BPK’s commitment to serve as ASEANSAI Secretariat for upcoming 6 years. 

The ASEANSAI Secretariat Office was launched by Prof. Dr. Moermahadi Soerja 

Djanegara, Chairman of BPK and Dr. Viengthong Siphandone, Chairperson of ASEANSAI 

on 2 April 2018, witnessed by BPK Vice Chairman, BPK Board Members, Head of SAIs of 

ASEANSAI Members and its high level management. 

 

 
 

2.3 ASEANSAI Seminar on Increasing the Awareness of SDGs 

BPK in Cooperation with ASEANSAI Organized Seminar on Increasing the Awareness of 

SDGs 

Supreme Audit Institutions (SAI) has contribution to the achievement of Sustainable 

Development Goals (SDGs). SAI might have function to assist its planning and 

implementation. SAI also needs to give recommendation on the implementation of the 

17 Goals of SDGs. In each of the 17 SDGs, SAI must further connect the impacts of 

projects on a whole of government and whole of society approach, then take this 

forward to the implementation phase so that each project has sustainable outcomes 

throughout the whole timeline. This was revealed by the Chairman of the Audit Board 

of the Republic of Indonesia (BPK). Moermahadi Soerja Djanegara in the Seminar on 

Sustainable Development Goals, Increasing the Awareness of SDGs, took place in 

Jakarta, on Monday (2/4). 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
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2.4 ASEANSAI Booth Exhibition in the 14th ASOSAI Assembly 

In 2018, the 14th ASOSAI Assembly Meeting in Hanoi, Vietnam has provide valuable 

moment for ASEANSAI to show its existence in international community. ASEANSAI 

opened the booth exhibition from 19-22 September 2018 to promote and introduce the 

profile, objective, programme and achievements of ASEANSAI in a broader scope of 

international communities. 

The exhibition was supported by all ASEANSAI Members in which they provided 

activities reports, guidance that has been developed and other ASEANSAI products. 
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2.5 The 5th ASEANSAI Senior Official Meeting 

The 5th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting (SOM) was held on 4 to 5 July 2019 at the 

Crowne Plaza Vientiane, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR, hosted by The State Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR.  The meeting aims to discuss potential issues which will be 

tabled at the 5th ASEANSAI Summit including the finalization of the revised ASEANSAI 

Rules and Procedures, upgraded Guideline on Monitoring & Evaluation System, 

committees’ work plan and other strategic issues. 
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CHAPTER 3  

ASEANSAI and International 

Community 
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3.1 ASEANSAI Chairmanship Report to the 52nd ASOSAI Governing Board 

Meeting and 14th ASOSAI Assembly 

 

 

 

The 52nd ASOSAI Governing Board Meeting and 14th ASOSAI Assembly was held in 

Hanoi, Vietnam, on 19-22 September 2018. In this occasion, ASEANSAI had the 

opportunity to promote the organization and ASEANSAI’s activities. Ph.D. Mrs. 

Viengthong Siphandone, president of State Audit Organization of Lao PDR and 

Chairperson of ASEANSAI delivered her speech to members of ASOSAI. She conveyed 

the accomplishments made by ASEANSAI in 2018 related to (1) training and knowledge 

sharing (2) ASEANSAI’s meetings (3) communication and cooperation, and (4) 

publications of ASEANSAI. The hilighted activities in 2018, namely, the accomplishment 

of the Long-term ASEANSAI Program on ISSAI implementation and 18 ASEANSAI ISSAI 

facilitators were certified, Training on Quality Assurance, Workshop on Audit of Land 

and Mineral Resources, Workshop on Audit of Public Complaint, Sharing knowledge on 

establishing awareness on good practices about SAI Independence and Workshop on 

Audit of Public Procurement and Seminar on increasing aweareness of SDGs. 
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3.2 Joint Seminar between ASEAN-ASEANSAI-AIPA 

 
 

The Head of the Secretariat of ASEANSAI Mr.Bahtiar Arif (right) welcomed Mr. Lee Yoong 

Yoong, Director of the ASEAN Community Affairs Directorate (left) 

On 11 January 2019, the Head of the Secretariat of ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions 

(ASEANSAI) and Secretary General of the Audit Board of the Republic Indonesia (BPK), 

Mr. Bahtiar Arif, hosted the first high-level three-party meeting at the BPK Office in 

Jakarta. 

ASEAN – ASEANSAI – AIPA Organized Joint Seminar Promoting Accounting and 

Transparency in Southeast Asia 
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JAKARTA, 26 February 2019 – The Vice President of the Republic Indonesia Jusuf Kalla 

opened the first seminar promoting accountability and transparency in Southeast Asia 

in Jakarta. The seminar was jointly organized by ASEAN Secretariat (ASEC), ASEAN 

Supreme Audit Institutions (ASEANSAI) and ASEAN Inter-Parliamentary Assembly (AIPA). 

The three organizations recognize the need to build connections beyond the 

government level to promote accountability and transparency in ASEAN, benefitting the 

people. With the support of the German Government, through the “ASEC 2025′′, 

“Support to ASEANSAI” and “AIPA4ASEAN” projects, implemented by GIZ, the seminar 

brought together around 100 senior officials and representatives of the three 

organizations and other entities in ASEAN. 
 

 

 

 

  

http://www.aseansai.org/2019/02/27/joint-press-release-asean-aseansai-aipa-joint-seminar/whatsapp-image-2019-02-27-at-15-27-52/
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3.3 ASEANSAI Activity Report 2017 to ASEAN 

 

Since its establishment on 

November 16th, 2011, the 

ASEAN Supreme Audit 

Institutions (ASEANSAI) which 

comprises of the 10 member 

States has remarkably and 

continually developed its 

organization, pursuing its 

targeted goals and objective by 

enormous investing in technical 

capacity building and 

development of public audit for 

all member of ASEANSAI, 

contributing to the rule of laws 

and promoting good 

governance. 

ASEANSAI with its Committees; 

Strategic Planning Committee, 

Knowledge Sharing Committee, 

Training Committee, Rules and 

Procedures Committee along 

with the Secretariat have 

actively and successfully implemented the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan 2014-2017 into 

practice. A number of productive activities have been conducted by the Committees. 

In 2017, ASEANSAI has made a number of accomplishment including; (1) Signing the 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Swedish National Audit Office (SNAO); 

(2) Revising the Rules and Procedures to serve a better needs of ASEANSAI; (3) 

Continuing the implementation of Long-term Programme on ISSAI Implementation; (4) 

Delivering the training and knowledge sharing workshop on Quality Assurance and Land 

& Mineral Resources Audit, Complaint Letter Audit and (5) appointment of the long term 

of ASEANSAI Secretariat.  

Furthermore, ASEANSAI also have successfully developed the Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

which outlines focal development targets and prioritized projects to be implemented 

with the aims to strengthen the capacity and to promote good governance in ASEAN 

regions. 

I would also like to highlight the regional and inter-regions cooperation of ASEANSAI. In 

February 2018, ASEANSAI presented its profile and role at the 51st ASOSAI Governing 

Board Meeting held in Bali, Indonesia. In addition to that, in September 2017, ASEANSAI 

also had the opportunity to make a presentation on the activity progress and discussed 
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the future cooperation with IDI at the IDI Regional Workshop in Oslo, Norway. 

Sequentially, IDI agreed to support ASEANSAI in the field of ISSAI-based Financial Audit 

in 2018 - 2019. At the sub-regional level, AIPA invited ASEANSAI to deliver speech on the 

importance of SAI Independence at the 38th AIPA General Assembly in Manila, 

Philippines.  

I hope this report will provide an overview on the ASEANSAI activities during 2017. 

               

Dr. Mrs. Viengthong SIPHANDONE 

Chairperson ASEANSAI 

President of the State Audit Organization of Lao PDR 
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3.4 Working Level Meeting of INTOSAI-Regional Coordination Platform 

Oslo-Norway, 25-27 June 2018 

 

The Working Level Meeting of INTOSAI-Regional Coordination Platform was held during 

25-27 June 2018, Oslo-Norway, which to expand the current IDI-Regions Annual 

Workshop into an INTOSAI-Regions Coordination Platform. The purpose of the 

coordination platform is to provide a single platform to INTOSAI organs and regional 

organizations for tactical and operational coordination and alignment of common 

efforts, exploring synergies, tracking and evaluation of progress, and knowledge sharing. 

3.5 ASEANSAI establishes cooperation with IDI on ISSAI based 

Cooperative Financial Audit 

 

To increase the implementation of ISSAI based financial audit in ASEANSAI, ASEANSAI 

establishes cooperation with IDI on ISSAI based Cooperative Financial Audit. This 

program planned to be conducted form July 2018 until June 2019 through series 

activities – blended program. 

http://www.aseansai.org/2018/04/18/aseansai-establishes-cooperation-with-idi-on-issai-based-cooperative-financial-audit/idi-2/
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3.5.1 Cooperation Meeting IDI-ASEANSAI Programme in ISSAI-Based Cooperative 

Financial Audit 

Cooperation Meeting of INTOSAI Development Initiative (IDI) – ASEANSAI Programme 

on ISSAI-based Cooperative Financial Audit was held on 26-27 July 2018 in Double Tree 

by Hilton Hotel Malacca, Malaysia. The meeting was attended by 35 participants from 8 

SAIs in the ASEAN region of the Philippines, Indonesia, Laos, Malaysia, Myanmar, 

Thailand, Cambodia and Vietnam and subject matter expert from the IDI. The purpose 

of this meeting was to discuss current status of implementation of financial audit ISSAIs, 

challenges and opportunities for implementing financial audit ISSAIs and the key 

concepts related to ISSAI compliance and also discuss and agree on the commitments 

for the programme. 

 

The meeting was opened by Vice Chairperson of ASEANSAI, Auditor General of 

Malaysia, Tan Sri Dr. Madinah binti Mohamad.  
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The signing statement of commitment between Mrs. Archana Shirsat as representative 

of IDI and 8 representative of Head of SAIs who participate in this programme. 
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3.5.2 IDI-ASEANSAI Financial Audit Workshop 

 

 
 

The State Audit Organization of Lao PDR (SAO Lao PDR) hosted the IDI-ASEANSAI 

Financial Audit Workshop held in Vientiane, on 3 – 8 December 2018. The workshop, 

which utilizing the LTAPII graduates as mentors, aimed to train participants in 

conducting an ISSAI based financial audit and they were expected to apply the 

methodology learned to the financial audit conducted as a part of the cooperative audit. 

Attended by 36 participants from 8 SAIs member of ASEANSAI and subject matter expert 

from IDI, Karma Tenzin, the workshop was officially opened by the Vice President of SAO 

Lao PDR, Mr. Bounpone VANNACHIT. In his speech, the Vice President of SAO Lao PDR 

expressed his pleasure and privilege in hosting IDI-ASEANSAI Financial Audit Workshop. 

He also emphasized that this workshop is the first support activity for the IDI- ASEANSAI 

ISSAI based on Cooperative Financial Audit Programme. In addition, he expressed his 

gratitude to IDI for supporting the ASEANSAI capacity development and he hoped that 

this workshop gave significant benefits to member SAIs in conducting ISSAI based 

financial audit. 
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Participants of workshop that represented by Technical Liaison, Mentors, Team Leader 

and ASEANSAI Secretariat had an opportunity to have a courtesy call with the President 

of SAO Lao PDR, Her Excellency Viengthong SIPHANDONE.  

 

The IDI-ASEANSAI Financial Audit Workshop’s atmosphere 
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3.6 Final Project Steering Committee Meeting Lao-Thai-German Trilateral 

Cooperation on ISSAI Implementation 

 

The State Audit Organization of Lao PDR and The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of 

Thailand work together for the “Support to Financial Audit for the State Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR” project. This project aiming to strengthen the capacities on 

financial audit of auditors in Laos with the support from Thailand International 

Cooperation Agency (TICA) and the German Government (GIZ Support to ASEANSAI) was 

run from January 2017 – June 2018.  

 

 

The final Project Steering Committee meeting was conducted at the SAI Laos’ office in 

Vientiane, Lao on 5th September 2018.  
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3.7 The Visit of Committee Anti-Corruption of Afghanistan to ASEANSAI 

Secretariat 

  

    

 

The Committee Anti-Corruption of Afghanistan visited ASEANSAI Secretariat Office, 

located in the office compound of the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia in 

JAKARTA, 15 March 2019. 

The visit aimed to conduct comparative studies on the strategy communication as well 

as to share the experience and knowledge related to cooperation with other 

government agencies to encourage the good governance. 

3.8 SAI-Donor Engagement workshop 

SAIs from across the regions have expressed in different occasions their intention to 

improve the way they reach out for support. By this they mean to understand how to 

better approach donors as well as how to prepare strong, high-quality concept notes for 

funding that describe their current situation and future needs-based development 

plans. Regional bodies seem to have this as a common interest according to their 

feedback gathered in the 2018 regions meeting held by CBC/IDI. 

 

The SAI-Donor engagement 

workshop intends to support 

SAIs in developing high 

quality concept notes which 

would improve their position 

when trying to engage with 

development partners; and 

subsequently, allow them to 

efficiently lead their donor supported projects. The ultimate objective is to empower 

SAIs to be able to seek support for their institutional strengthening activities. 

 

http://www.aseansai.org/?attachment_id=4726
http://www.aseansai.org/2019/03/19/the-visit-of-committee-anti-corruption-of-afghanistan-to-aseansai-secretariat/fai_7688/
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CHAPTER 4 

ASEANSAI Committee 

Activities 
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4.1 ASEANSAI Strategic Planning Committee 

4.1.1 ASEANSAI Annual Meeting on Monitoring and Evaluation  

 

 

The State Audit Office of Vietnam (SAV) as Chair of ASEANSAI Strategic Planning 

Committee (SPC) in cooperation with the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia (BPK) 

organized ASEANSAI Annual Meeting on Monitoring and Evaluation in Jakarta from 4 to 

7 December 2018. The meeting, officially opened by Prof. Bahrullah Akbar, Vice 

Chairman of BPK, was attended by 20 participants from Executive Committee, 

Knowledge Sharing Committee, Training Committee, Strategic Planning Committee and 

Secretariat. Through discussion, the meeting results are about a collective effort to 

come to draw strategies to adapt the design of ASEANSAI’s Work Plan for the following 

years. The meeting provides inputs for the Annual Result Report 2018, proposal to revise 

the Key Performance Indicator (KPI) of some Strategic Objectives and adjustment of the 

Committee Work Plan in 2019. 

 

4.2 ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures Committee 

The committee had reviewed and revised the ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures by 

incorporating the input of the member SAIs and the revisions included the additional 

chapter on monitoring and evaluation, refinements to provide better clarity and 

editorial change.  

The draft revised Rules and Procedures were reviewed and agreed at the 5th ASEANSAI 

Senior Officials’ Meeting in July, 2019 in Vientiane, Lao PDR with some additions and 

supplementation to the existing Rules and Procedures. 

 

 

http://www.aseansai.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/RD5_2017.jpg
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4.3 ASEANSAI Knowledge Sharing Committee 

4.3.1 Workshop on Conducting Awareness Knowledge Sharing on Good Practices 

about SAI Independence 

 

According to ASEANSAI Knowledge Sharing Committee work plan 2018, State Audit 

Office of the Kingdom of Thailand hosted the workshop on “Conducting Awareness 

Knowledge Sharing on Good Practices about SAI Independence” during 15th – 17th May 

2018, in Bangkok, Thailand. 

The workshop purposed to encourage knowledge sharing on the current situation, 

awareness raising and good practices on SAI Independence among ASEANSAI member 

countries. It’s a good opportunity for the members to learn from each other through 

interactive sharing and discussion on independence development of each SAI, which will 

be ultimately resulting in more effectiveness in enhancement of our independent 

performance as the Supreme Audit Institution. 

 

4.4 ASEANSAI Training Committee 

4.4.1 The Long-Term ASEANSAI Programme on ISSAI Implementation Phase 2 

LTAPII Phase 2: Field Workshop 

The Long-Term ASEANSAI Programme on ISSAI Implementation (LTAPII) Phase 2 was 

planned to start at the end of 2016 to 2018 with the objective of establishing ISSAI 

facilitator’s pool that aimed at a sustained implementation of ISSAIs in the ASEAN region 

and SAI. This phase will comprise of four parts namely organizing workshop focuses on 

facilitation skills of ISSAI Facilitators, monitoring & Evaluation of the Planned Activities, 

certification of ISSAI Facilitators and conducting Pilot Audit & Wrap up. 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 

 

 

As a follow up, Field Workshop in 4 selected SAIs (Cambodia, Lao PDR, Myanmar, and 

Vietnam) was planned to be conducted during September to November 2017. The 

workshop aims to implement the knowledge and skills gained during the FSW; and to 

enable the FSW Participants facilitating the ISSAI Implementation in their respective SAIs 

and ASEANSAI region. 

 

1st Field Workshop 

In September 2017, the 1stField Workshop was conducted at Muong Thanh Luxury Hotel, 

Vientiane, Lao PDR from 26 to 29 September 2017 and was attended by 41 participants 

from seven ASEANSAI member countries and 1 Subject Matter Expert (SME) from SAI 

Sweden. In this workshop, previous participant of FSW LTAPII Phase 2 played the role as 

Facilitators. The Facilitators were from the team of SAI Malaysia (Mr. Muhammad Fareez 

and Ms. Norita Ismail) and the team of SAI Lao PDR (Mr. Soysangkom KEOLA, Mr. 

Bountha PHETDALA, and Mr. Vilayvanh BOUTTA). The workshop was officially closed by 

Mr. Paddaphet Sayakhot, Vice President of SAI Lao PDR and Ms. Alifah Aida Lope Abdul 

Rahman of SAI Malaysia, on behalf of Representative Sub Project Leader LTAPII Phase 2. 
 

 
 

2nd Field Workshop 

At the end of October and beginning of November 2017, the 2ndField Workshop was 

conducted in Hanoi, Vietnam. The workshop was attended by 42 participants from 7 

ASEANSAI member countries and 2 Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) from SAI Sweden. 

The Facilitators were from the team of SAI Indonesia (Ms. Tri Widyantoro, and Mr. Tri 

Marhendra Rahardyan), the team of SAI Thailand (Ms. Buddhachard Tanjong, Ms. 

Pattamon Puttaseema, and Ms. Piyarat Tangkanjanapas), and the team of SAI Cambodia 

(Mr. Iech Sovachantra and Mr. Patri Som). The workshop was officially closed by Mr. 

Phan Truong Giang, Deputy Director General International Cooperation Department of 
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SAI Vietnam and Mrs. Maria Susana S. Medez of SAI Philippines, on behalf of 

Representative Project Leader of LTAPII. 

 
 

3rd Field Workshop 

On December 2017, the 3rd Field Workshop was conducted in Nay Pyi Taw, Myanmar. 

The workshop was attended by 44 participants from 8 ASEANSAI member countries and 

1 Subject Matter Expert (SME) from SAI Sweden. The Facilitators were from the team of 

SAI Malaysia (Mrs. Rose Zainam) and the team of SAI Philippines (Mrs. Maribeth Factora 

de Jesus, Mrs. Eden Bautista Bunayog, and Mr. Mark Anthony Giuban Flores). The 

workshop was officially closed by Mrs. Naing Thet Ooo, Director General of SAI Myanmar 

and Mrs. Maria Susana S. Medez of SAI Philippines, on behalf of Representative Project 

Leader of LTAPII. 
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At the field workshop, facilitators delivered the course on; introduction to risk-based 

approach, preliminary engagement activity, understanding the entity and its 

environment, internal controls (IC), risk assessment, materiality in planning and 

performing an audit, design overall responses and further audit procedures, audit 

sampling, audit accounting estimation, forming an opinion, reporting the financial 

statements, and quality control for an audit of financial statements. 

From the collected evaluation sheets, participants were also able to have a better 

understanding on risk-based audit on RBAFA and IC based on relevant ISSAIs. 

4.4.2 ASEANSAI Workshop on Fraud Audit Investigation 

ASEANSAI Workshop on Fraud Audit Investigation 

      

ASEANSAI Training Committee and The Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia have 

organized the ASEANSAI Workshop on Fraud Audit Investigation in Jakarta from 27 to 

31 August 2018. The workshop aims to increase the capacity of ASEANSAI members in 

the field of Fraud / Investigation, especially to assess risk, determine predication, 

conduct alternative procedures and help to prevent fraud. 

 

 

  

http://www.aseansai.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/post_1535346102_Workshop_A1.jpg
http://www.aseansai.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/BPK_6261.jpg
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4.4.3 ASEANSAI Financial Audit Workshop on LTAPII Sustainability in Luang Prabang 

The Training Committee of ASEANSAI conducted a four-day workshop on Financial Audit 

in Luang Prabang, Lao, in the third week of November 2018. 21 participants attended 

the workshop hosted by the State Audit Organization (SAO) of Lao PDR at their Northern 

Region Audit Office. 
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4.5 Other Activities 

4.5.1 ASEANSAI Executive Committee Meeting 2018 

 

 
 

The ASEANSAI Executive Committee Meeting was held from 19 to 20 February 2018 in 

Vientiane, Lao PDR. The meeting aims to discuss and formulate the strategy of 

coordination among the Executive Committee for the implementation of ASEANSAI 

activities. 

 

4.5.2 ASEANSAI Essentials 

ASEANSAI Essentials: Introduction of an Online Platform for Regional Knowledge 

Sharing 

 

http://www.aseansai.org/2018/03/19/aseansai-executive-committee-meeting-2018/img_0247/
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On 27th February 2019, the ASEANSAI Secretariat hosted a one-day workshop in Jakarta, 

to introduce the operationalization and management of its newly developed online 

platform for regional knowledge exchange among ASEANSAI members. Twenty-two 

participants, representing the ASEANSAI committee chairs and representatives of the 

member SAIs participated in this hands-on training. 
 

 

 
 

4.5.3 IPSASB on 29-30 March 2018 

The 2018 IPSASB Strategy Roundtable and capacity Building Forum 29-30 May 2018, 

Manila, Philippines 

 

The Asian Development Bank hosted the 2018 IPSASB Strategy Roundtable and capacity 

Building Forum on 29-30 May 2018 at ADB Headquarters in Manila, Philippines. The 

forum provide an opportunity for the participants to contribute to the IPSASB Standard-

setting process, enhance public-sector accounting capacity, including knowledge of 

accrual-basis IPSAS, and formulate plans to further improve the respective 

government’s accounting framework for transparency and accountability. 
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CHAPTER 5 

ASEANSAI Strategic Plan 

2018-2021 
  



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 

 

 

5.1 ASEANSAI-Strategic-Plan-2018-2021 

At the 4th ASEANSAI Summit in Vientiane, Lao PDR, the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan for 

period 2018-2021 was endorsed by the Assembly on November 6, 2017. Key focuses for 

the new strategic development are to support its members in pursuing the foundational 

objectives set on the ASEANSAI Establishment Agreement, which are to strengthen 

ASEANSAI members’ capacity, and to promote good governance. The targeted areas of 

actions of this Plan encompasses the improvement of the SAIs’ capacity and knowledge 

sharing on ISSAIs compliance, enhancing SAIs’ operations, supporting SAIs to fulfill their 

roles in pursuing the Sustainable Development Goals, promoting ASEANSAI’s position in 

affiliation with ASEAN development agenda, and improving collaboration and 

cooperation within the region and other international development partners in order to 

advance the ASEANSAI organization. 

The implementation of Strategic Plan 2014-2017 and Strategic Priorities for 2018-2021 

To build capacity and cooperation among ASEANSAI members in terms of professional 

and friendly relationship in the field of public audit, the ASEAN Supreme Audit 

Institutions (ASEANSAI) was established in November 2011 in Bali, Indonesia. Its primary 

purpose is to promote good governance within the ASEAN Region. Desirous to achieve 

its vision and fulfil its mission, the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan (SP) 2014–2017 was 

developed and approved at the 2nd ASEANSAI Assembly in 2013 in Brunei. 

After four years of implementing the current SP, the ASEANSAI has attained significant 

achievements due to the great efforts of all ASEANSAI members, the working 

committees such as the Knowledge Sharing Committee (KSC) and Training Committee 

(TC), and the invaluable support of international development partners who believed in 

the goals of the ASEANSAI. The Secretariat played active role in developing long-term 

relationship with them. 

To better understand and monitor the implementation of the ASEANSAI SP, and be able 

to systematically measure the achievements of the organization, the Monitoring and 

Evaluation System (MES) was established in 2014 with the effective assistance from 

Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ). 

The notable accomplishments of the ASEANSAI during the period include the promotion 

of professional and organizational capacity of members through sharing of good 

professional practices, knowledge and experience especially the successful 

implementation of the Long Term ASEANSAI Program on ISSAI Implementation (LTAPII) 

on Financial Audit. In addition and with the great efforts of the Secretariat, the 

international development partners have provided technical and financial support for 

the overall ASEANSAI activities. 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 

 

 

In the context of initial strategic plan implementation, there is still some room for 

improvement identified, such as lack of alignment between SP and Work Plan and 

inefficient use of the MES. 

Looking forward, the ASEANSAI, would direct its efforts and attention to four strategic 

priority issues which include Promoting ISSAIs implementation; Management and 

Organization of member SAI; Supporting regional/ASEANSAI issues; and Promoting 

ASEANSAI’s role and partnership. Basing on these issues, the SP 2018-2021 identifies 

five strategic goals as follows:  

SG1. To support the implementation of ISSAI and other INTOSAI good practices 

SG2: To promote good performance of member SAIs 

SG3: To support member SAIs to fulfill their role towards the successful achievement of 

the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 

SG4: To strengthen ASEANSAI active role within ASEAN agenda 

SG5: To improve the cooperation with regional and international partners 

SG6: To strengthen organizational governance of ASEANSAI 
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Overview of the Strategic Plan 2018 – 2021 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SG 1: To support the implementation of ISSAI 
and  INTOSAI good practices 

SO 1.1: To promote safeguarding the 
independence of member SAIs 

 SO 1.2: To assist member SAIs in developing 
national audit standards and guidelines 
aligned with ISSAIs 

SG 2: To promote good performance of 
member SAIs    

SO 2.1: To support member SAIs to utilize 
performance related tools and concepts  

 SO 2.2: To support member SAIs to progress in 
auditing through capacity building  

SG 3: To support member SAIs to fulfill their 
role towards the successful achievement of the 
SDGs 

SO 3.1: To encourage and support member 
SAIs to conduct SDG-related auditing 

SG 4: To strengthen ASEANSAI active role 
within ASEAN agenda 

SO 4.1: To support ASEAN and AEC Agenda  

SG 5: To improve the cooperation with regional 
and international partners 

SO 5.1: To expand cooperation with 
international SAI partners and stakeholders 

 SO 5.2: To expand cooperation with 
international donors 

SG 6: To strengthen organizational governance 
of ASEANSAI 

SO 6.1: To improve the management and 
organization of ASEANSAI 

 

MISSION 

ASEANSAI is an autonomous, independent, professional and non-political 

organization/association established to build capacity, to promote cooperation among its 

members, and to establish constructive and beneficial relation with ASEAN and other stakeholders 

VISION 

To be recognized and trusted as an organized body of Supreme Audit Institutions which promote 

good governance in the ASEAN Region 

CORE VALUE 
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MONITORING AND EVALUATION 

The implementation of the Strategic Plan (SP) should be monitored and evaluated 

regularly. While the various Committees monitor their respective planned programs, the 

Executive Committee shall exercise oversight function over the implementation of the 

SP. The Secretariat shall support the Executive Committee in fulfilling its oversight 

function. 

MONITORING 

There are two levels of monitoring: (1) monitoring the progress of each project and (2) 

monitoring the overall implementation of the SP. The first level of monitoring is done by 

the respective Committees, while the second level is done by the Secretariat. 

Monitoring shall be done annually and shall include assessing whether the projects’ 

budgets and activities are implemented based on the plans. Any variance on  the plans 

and the reasons for the variance shall be disclosed through an annual report to be 

prepared by the Heads of the respective Committees and submitted to the ASEANSAI 

Secretariat. On the other hand, the report of the SP Committee on the progress of the 

implementation of the SP shall be presented during the ASEANSAI Assembly/Summit 

meeting. 

The facilities of the Dashboard shall be utilized for purposes of reporting the 

Committees’ monitoring of their respective programs. 

EVALUATION 

Evaluation is the other side of monitoring; hence, the report shall include analysis of 

variances noted based on the key performance indicators and programs, lessons learned 

and identification of opportunities for improvement. The evaluation of the progress of 

implementation of the SP shall be initiated by the SP Committee based on evaluation 

reports of the various Committees. The SP evaluation report shall be submitted to the 

Executive Committee through the Secretariat. On the other hand, the Secretariat shall 

cause the report to be tabled in the  ASEANSAI Assembly/Summit.  
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IMPLEMENTATION MATRIX 
 

Strategic Goals 
Strategic 

Objectives 

Projects/ Programs Suggested KPI 
(subject to be 

defined by 
Committee/Secreta

riat) 

Activities 

Outputs Outcomes Title of 
project 

Responsible 
Committee 

Name of activity 
Responsible 

SAI 
Time 

Budget 
(USD) 

SG 1: To support 
the 
implementation 
of ISSAI and 
other INTOSAI 
good practices 

SO 1.1.To 
promote 
safeguarding 
the 
independence 
of member-
SAIs 

P 1.1.1. 
Initiative for 
ASEANSAI 
support 
member 
SAIs to be 
aware of 
ISSAI 10 
 

KSC KPI 1.1.  
Increased 
percentage of 
member SAIs aware 
of ISSAI 10  
 
- Baseline: 0 
- Target: Self-
assessment report 
prepared by 
member SAIs based 
on SAI PMF – 
independence 
domain, if 
applicable 
 

1. Conducting 
awareness 
Knowledge Sharing 
on good practices 
about SAI 
Independence  

SAI Malaysia 
PL: SAI 
Thailand 
HC: SAI 
Thailand 
 

 
 
 
 
2018 

 
 
 
 

28,600 
 
 
 

Resolutions on 
good practices and 
recommendations 
to promote SAI 
Independence 

Strengthened 
independence 

of member-
SAIs 

2. Conduct 
awareness 
campaign on SAI 
independence  with 
ASEAN Inter- 
Parliament 
Assembly AIPA 
 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

End of 
August 
2018 

84,000 Evaluation Report 
on degree of AIPA/ 
parliament 
awareness on the 
importance of SAI 
independence with 
AIPA;  
 
Proposal for follow 
up action, if 
applicable.   

SO 1.2.To 
assist member 
SAIs develop 
national audit 
standards and 
guidelines 

P 1.2.1. 
Continuation 
of LTAPII 
 
 
 

TC 
KSC 

KPI 1.2.1 
Increased number 
of member SAIs 
with ISSAI-based 
audit standards 
and/or guidelines  

1. Continue 
remaining activities 
of LTAPII phase 2 

SAI Malaysia 
PL: SAI 
Philippines 
HC: SAI Lao 
P.D.R 
 

2018 
 

28,600 
 

No. of ASEANSAI 
certified Financial 
Audit ISSAI 
facilitators  

National audit 
standards and 

Guidelines 
aligned with 

ISSAIs 
developed by 

ANNEX 1 
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aligned with 
ISSAIs 

- Baseline: TBD 
- Target: TBD  

2. Project 
evaluation meeting 
at senior officials 
level 

 
TBD 

  Meeting report 
with recommended 
follow-up actions to 
be taken 

respective 
member SAIs 

3. . Subject to the 
applicable laws of 
respective SAIs, 
related member 
SAIs develop 
national audit 
standards/ 
guidelines in line 
with ISSAI 

TBD   National audit 
standards/ 
guidelines are 
issued by 
respective SAIs 

4.  Continue LTAPII 
for Compliance 
Audit and 
Performance Audit 

SAI 
Philippines 

2020-
2021 

   

SG 2: To promote 
good 
performance of 
member SAIs 

SO 2.1.To 
support 
member SAIs 
to utilize 
performance 
related tools 
and concepts 
 

P 2.1.1 
To promote 
the 
application 
of SAI PMF 

TC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

KPI 2.1. Number of 
member SAIs gain 
comprehensive 
understanding of  
SAI PMF  
- Baseline: 0 
-Target: TBD 

1. Raise awareness 
of member SAI on 
SAI PMF (through 
conducting 
awareness 
workshop) 

SAI 
Philippines 

2019 53,460 Evaluation report 
on degree of SAIs’ 
awareness on SAI 
PMF and/or 
 
Signed 
commitment of 
SAIs to adopt SAI 
PMF 

 
ASEANSAI 

Member SAI 
may adopt SAI 

PMF tool to 
measure their 
performance 

in their 
organization 

2.Knowledge 
sharing on SAI PMF 
application 
(Independence 
domain excluded) 

TBD   Checklist of good 
practices and 
recommendations 
on applying SAI 
PMF 

SO 2.2. To 
support 
member SAIs 
to progress in 

P 2.2.1 
Capacity 
Developmen

TC KPI 2.2. Percentage 
of participants 
involving in full 
range of activities 

1.  Conduct Follow-
Up workshop for 
WAPP (Phase 1) 

SAI 
Philippines 

2018 
 
 
 

45,400 Post workshop 
report including 
presentation of  
procurement  audit 

Improved 
capacity of 

member SAIs 
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auditing 
through 
capacity 
building  

t for more 
synergy 

and completed 
post-assignment to 
apply knowledge 
gained to actual 
context of SAI 
 
- Baseline: TBD 
-Target: TBD 

 success stories, 
challenges, 
lessons learned,  
and  

 inputs for 
updating the 
Public 
Procurement 
Audit Manual 
(referred to as 
ASEANSAI 
Guidelines on 
Public 
Procurement) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

reports for pilot 
audits conducted 
(WAPP Phase 1) 

in different 
auditing areas 

2. Update 
Procurement Audit 
Manual taking into 
consideration the 
Post-Workshop 
Report 

Update: 
SAI Malaysia 
Review:  SAI 
Thailand 

2019 
 

28,600 
 

Updated 
Procurement Audit 
Manual 
 
 

3. Instructor’s 
Design Meeting on 
the Audit of Public 
Procurement 
based on enhanced 
ASEANSAI 
Guidelines on 
Public Procurement 
Audit Manual 
(AGPPAM) and 
Compliance Audit 
ISSAIs 

SAI Malaysia 
PL: SAI 
Philippines 
HC: SAI 
Singapore 

2019 
 

28,600 
 

Updated WAPP 
Courseware 
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4.  Conduct 
workshops on Audit 
of Public 
Procurement 
(WAPP – Phase 2) 

SAI 
Philippines 

2019 
 
 
 
 

 
 

63,140 No. of trained SAI 
auditors on 
Procurement Audit 

5.  Conduct of pilot 
audits 

 2019 To be 
conducte
d in 
respectiv
e SAIs 

Results of audit 

 

6.  Conduct of Audit 
Review and Wrap-
up Meetings 
(success 
stories/challenges/ 
lessons learned) 

SAI 
Philippines 

2019 58,520 Reviewed audit 
reports, post 
workshop report 
including 
presentation of  
procurement  audit 
reports for pilot 
audits conducted 
(WAPP Phase 1) 

 

SG 3: To support 
member SAIs to 
fulfill their role 
towards the 
successful 
achievement of 
the SDGs 

SO 3.1: To 
encourage 
and support 
member SAIs 
to conduct 
SDG-related 
auditing 

P 3.1.1 
Research 
project on 
SDGs-
related audit 
on the basis 
of IDI-KSC 
guidance on 
audit of 
preparednes
s for 
implementat
ion of SDGs 

KSC KPI 3.1. Number of 
audit reports issued 
by member SAIs in 
line with INTOSAI  
guidelines on 
Auditing SDG 
 
- Baseline: TBD 
-Target: TBD 

1.Building 
awareness on 
SDGs-related audit 
issues  
 
 
 
 

 Development/ 
compilation of 
Briefing Materials 
on the SDGs for 
the ASEANSAI 
Auditors 

SAI Malaysia 
PL: SAI 
Malaysia 
HC: SAI 
Indonesia 
 
 
SAI 
Philippines 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

2020 
 
 
 
 

2018 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
28,600 
 
 
 
 
Online 
 
 
 
 
 

Evaluation Report 
on Degree of 
member SAIs 
awareness on the 
SDGs 
 
 
 
Auditors enabled to 
identify SDG-
related audit areas 
through a survey 
 
 

The capacity 
of member 

SAIs in SDGs-
related audit 
is enhanced 
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 Conduct Briefing 
on the SDGs for 
the Auditors 

 
SAI 
Philippines 

 
 

2018 

 
 
48,600 

2. Identify 
prioritized SDGs-
related audit 
through survey to 
prepare 
courseware 

 SAI 
Indonesia 

  Survey results 

3. Conduct 
knowledge sharing 
workshop on audit 
of SDGs 

TBD   Number of member 
SAIs’ auditors who 
accomplish the 
training course 

4.Develop 
guidelines on SDGs 
- related audit 
based on  IDI- KSC 
guidance 

  

SG 4: To 
strengthen 
ASEANSAI’s 
active role within 
ASEAN agenda 

SO 4.1: To 
support 
ASEAN and 
AEC Agenda  

P 4.1.1 
Partnering 
with ASEAN 

The 
Secretariat 

KPI 4.1. Number of 
cooperation areas/ 
activities agreed 
between ASEANSAI 
and ASEAN 
-Baseline: TBD 
-Target: TBD 

1. Identify possible 
cooperation 
areas/activities 
with ASEAN 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2018  List of possible 
cooperation area 

 
ASEANSAI 

becomes an  
enabling 

partner of 
ASEAN in 

promoting 
good 

governance 
 
 

2. Building and 
establishing 
communication 
channels with 
ASEAN 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2018  Communication 
channels with 
ASEAN 

3. Building 
cooperation in 
order to promote 
good governance in 
ASEAN region 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2018  Cooperation areas/ 
activities agreed 
between ASEANSAI 
and ASEAN 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 

 

 

SG 5: To improve 
the cooperation 
with regional and 
international 
partners 

SO 5.1.To 
expand 
cooperation 
with 
international 
SAI partners 
and 
stakeholders 

P 5.1.1 
Building 
communicati
on and 
coordination 
mechanism 
with ASOSAI 
and INTOSAI 

The 
Secretariat 

KPI 5.1. Number of 
activities carried 
out by ASEANSAI in 
cooperation with 
ASOSAI and 
INTOSAI - Baseline: 
TBD 
-Target: TBD 

1. ASEANSAI’ 
participation in 
ASOSAI and 
INTOSAI activity 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2018 – 
2019 

 Activity report ASEANSAI 
contribution is 

recognized 

2. Assessing 
potential MoU with 
ASOSAI 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2018 – 
2019 

 Review report 

SO 5.2: To 
expand 
cooperation 
with 
international 
donors 

P 5.2.1 
Developing 
cooperation 
with the 
international 
donor 
community 

The 
Secretariat 

KPI 5.2. Number of 
projects funded by 
international 
donors, which 
achieve their 
expected outcomes  
- Baseline: 01 
-Target: TBD 

1. Identifying 
potential projects   

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2018   List of possible 
projects 

ASEANSAI 
fund is 

sufficient to 
conduct its 

projects and 
activities 

2. Identify possible 
donors 

2018  List of possible 
donors 

3. Coordination 
meeting with 
potential donors 

2019 
and 

2021 
side 

meetin
g on 

ASEAN
SAI 

Summit 

1,650 Meeting report 
with identified 
areas of 
cooperation 

4. Developing 
proposal of 
cooperation to the 
donors 

2018  Project proposals 

5 Implementing 
projects approved 
by donors 

 2019  Project Report 

6. Monitoring and 
Evaluating the 
implementation of 
the donor funded-
projects 

 2019  Monitoring Report 
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SG 6: To 
strengthen 
organizational 
governance of 
ASEANSAI 

SO 6.1: To 
improve the 
management 
and 
organization 
of ASEANSAI 

P 6.1.1 
Further 
improving 
monitoring 
and 
evaluation 
system 

SPC KPI 6.1.1 Number 
of Monitoring and 
Evaluation report 
and annual meeting 
- Baseline: 50% 
-Target: 80% 

1. Reviewing and 
Upgrading current 
MES 

SAI Vietnam 2018 9,900 Amended MES with 
guidance 

ASEANSAI 
recognized as 

a credible 
organization 2. Supporting 

activities for 
applying M&E 
system 

SAI Vietnam 2018 9,900 Committees 
Progress Report 
with sufficient 
analysis 

P 6.2.1 
Developmen
t of the 
Strategic 
Plan 

SPC KPI 6.2.1 
The existence of 
the New ASEANSAI 
Strategic Plan 

1. Development of 
the Strategic Plan 

SAI Vietnam 2020 
- 

2021 

34,100 2022-2025 
Strategic Plan 

P 6.3.1 
Promote 
communicati
on strategy 

The 
Secretariat 

KPI 6.3.1 Increased 
understanding of 
ASEANSAI members 
on the details of 
current progress of 
ASEANSAI  

1. Upgrade website SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2019  Upgraded version 
of website with 
new functions 
provided 

2. Mid-
management  level 
meeting 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 
 

Tbd in 
2018 
and 

2021 
(side 

meetin
g on 

ASEAN
SAI/ 

ASOSAI 
event) 

1,650 Recommendations 
for further 
improvement in 
ASEANSAI 
mechanism 

P 6.4.1 
Internal 
coordination  

The 
Secretariat 

KPI 6.4.1.  
Establish internal 
administration 
system 
- Baseline: TBD 
-Target: TBD 

1.Annual Technical 
coordination 
meeting 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

Every 
March 

24,000 Meeting report 
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   2.  Knowledge 
management 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2018 – 
2019 

 ASEANSAI Database 

3. Develop an 
internal 
coordination 
checklist  
(for WP 2020 – 
2021) 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2020-
2021 

 Internal 
coordination 
checklist 

P 6.5.1. 
Managing 
Finances 
 

The 
Secretariat 
 

KPI 6.5.1 
Unqualified 
Opinion of the 
Financial Statement 
- Baseline: TBD 
-Target: TBD 
 

1.Planning on 
financial activities 

SAI serves as 
the 
Secretariat 

2018 – 
2021 

 Financial statement 
 

 

2. Recording on 
financial activities 

2018 – 

2021 

 

3.Monitoring on 
financial activities 

2018 – 

2021 

 

4.Reporting on 
financial activities 

2018 - 

2021 

 

P 6.6.1. 
Improve 
ASEANSAI 
Rules and 
Procedures 

R&PC KPI 6.6.1 
Updated Rules and 
Procedures meets 
the emerging needs 
for management 
and governance of 
ASEANSAI 
 
- Baseline: 0 
-Target: Every 2 
years 

1.Reviewing  the 
Rules and 
Procedures based 
on member SAIs’ 
Recommendations 

SAI 
Singapore 

Sep 
2018 

 
Sep 

2019 

Nil  Proposed Revisions 
to Rules and 
Procedures 
 

2.Finalizing the 
Rules and 
Procedures to 
submit for approval 

Dec 
2019 

 
Dec 

2020 

Nil Revised Rules and 
Procedures is 
approved by 
ASEANSAI 
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DESCRIPTION OF SGs and SOs 

SG1: To support the implementation of ISSAI and other INTOSAI good practices 

The ISSAI framework is the global framework of public sector auditing precepts and 

auditing standards. The ISSAI states the basic prerequisites for proper functioning and 

professional conduct of SAI and the fundamental principles in auditing of public entities. 

Implementing ISSAI or other standards or guidelines aligned with ISSAI would help to 

strengthen SAI's professionalism. 

SG 1 will be achieved through the implementation of projects and activities that will lead 

to the attainment of two strategic objectives to be achieved in period of 2018 – 2021 as 

follows: 

SO 1.1. To promote safeguarding the independence of member-SAIs 

SAI Independence is an essential requirement for proper public sector auditing. It is a 

prerequisite for the functioning of Supreme Audit Institutions. SAI Independence is 

important element of ISSAI implementation. 

SO 1.2. To assist member - SAIs in developing national audit standards and guidelines 

aligned with ISSAIs 

The ISSAI framework is the global framework of public sector auditing precepts and 

auditing standards. This framework was established by the INTOSAI. Implementing 

national audit standards and guidelines aligned with ISSAIs is expected to contribute 

towards enhancing quality, building professionalism and credibility of the ASEANSAI’s 

member SAIs in the long run. 

SG2: To promote good performance of member SAIs     

ASEANSAI is promoting good performance of member SAIs in order to enhance Member 

SAIs’ contribution to accountability and transparency. Besides, having good 

performance means member SAIs preserve their professionalism and make them 

trusted audit institutions. 

SG 2 will be achieved through the implementation of projects and activities that will lead 

to the attainment of two strategic objectives to be achieved in period of 2018 – 2021 as 

follows: 

SO 2.1. To support member SAIs to utilize performance related tools and concepts 

SAI's contribution to the public and its other stakeholders can be seen by its 

performance, especially with respect to enhancing the accountability, transparency, and 

integrity through public sector auditing. The contribution can be measured by 

Performance-related tools and concepts. Utilization of performance-related tools and 

concepts will enable SAI to become a learning organization. The monitoring and 

performance evaluation results will support SAI to identify strengths and weaknesses as 

ANNEX 2 
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well as identify the need for continuous improvement in capacity development. In 

addition, through adequate performance reporting the SAI will be able to demonstrate 

the progress of performance to all stakeholders and ultimately demonstrate the value 

and benefit of SAI to the citizens. 

SO 2.2. To support member SAIs to progress in auditing through capacity building 

The ultimate goal of ASEANSAI is to support its member SAIs to enhance capacity in 

auditing. Capacity building activity is expected to focus on areas of greatest needs as 

identified by the majority of SAI member SAIs and in line with the common trend of 

public sector audit in the region and worldwide. 

SG3: To support member SAIs to fulfil their role towards the successful achievement 

of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 

The United Nations (UN) General Assembly Member States jointly committed to the 

2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.  The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) 

are the centerpiece of that agenda and provide an ambitious and long-term 

commitment for action across a broad range of vital issues related to “people, planet 

and prosperity.”  SAIs can, through their audits and consistent with their mandates and 

priorities, make valuable contributions to national efforts to track progress, monitor 

implementation, and identify improvement opportunities across the full set of the SDGs. 

SG 3 will be achieved through the implementation of projects and activities that will lead 

to the attainment of a strategic objective to be achieved in period of 2018 – 2021 

namely: 

SO 3.1 To encourage and support member SAIs to conduct SDG-related auditing  

ASEANSAI member SAIs can contribute to national, regional, and global implementation 

of the SDGs Agenda by: 

1. Supporting national efforts to build effective, accountable, and inclusive 

institutions, as called for by SDG 16 which is to promote peaceful and inclusive societies 

for sustainable development, provide access to justice for all and build effective, 

accountability and inclusive institutions at all levels; 

2. Auditing national systems so as to assess progress towards meeting national 

sustainable development goals; 

3. Undertaking performance audits that examine the economy, efficiency, and 

effectiveness of key government programs that contribute to specific aspects of the 

SDGs; and  

4. Being models of transparency and accountability in their own operations, 

including auditing and reporting. 
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SG4: To strengthen ASEANSAI active role within ASEAN agenda 

ASEANSAI is designed to provide a forum in order to enhance the capacity and technical 

cooperation among SAI in ASEAN member countries, as well as to engage ASEAN to 

enhance good governance. Establishment of ASEANSAI was motivated by the common 

challenges faced by SAI in the ASEAN region. Hence, ASEANSAI should promote 

understanding and cooperation among the SAIs of ASEAN in the field of public sector 

auditing in order to safeguard a stable and prosperous ASEAN Community. 

SG 4 will be achieved through the implementation of projects and activities that will lead 

to the attainment of a strategic objective to be achieved in period of 2018 – 2021 

namely: 

SO 4.1 To support the ASEAN and AEC agenda 

Establishment of ASEANSAI is aligned with the objectives of ASEAN to establish the 

ASEAN Community. The movement of goods and services is increasingly open in the era 

of the ASEAN Economic Community (AEC) and will further enhance the important role 

of audit institutions. ASEANSAI’s existence will make a major contribution in enhancing 

the ASEAN community based on the principles of accountability and, good governance 

SG5: To improve the cooperation with regional and international partners 

ASEANSAI needs to enhance the cooperation with both regional and international 

partners namely organization of SAI, other international organizations as well as donors. 

Cooperation with regional and international partners will further strengthen ASEANSAI 

existence. 

SG 5 will be achieved through the implementation of projects and activities that will lead 

to the attainment of two strategic objectives to be achieved in period of 2018 – 2021 as 

follows: 

SO 5.1 To expand cooperation with international SAI partners and stakeholders 

ASEANSAI needs to enhance its role in the wider community of SAI namely ASOSAI and 

INTOSAI. With the growing recognition of ASEANSAI’s profile and achievement, it is 

expected that in the near future ASEANSAI will be recognized as a credible organization 

of SAI within INTOSAI. 

SO 5.2 To expand cooperation with international donors 

ASEANSAI needs support from donors especially to fund some of its activities. Therefore, 

ASEANSAI needs to continue good relationship with international donors, both in efforts 

to maintain the established cooperation and to explore the possibility of new initiatives. 

ASEANSAI needs to expand cooperation with between its member SAIs and 

international donors in order to establish new cooperation get sufficient resources for 

future activities. 

 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 
 

 

SG6: To strengthen organizational governance of ASEANSAI 

ASEANSAI as emerging organization needs to continuously strengthen the management 

of the organization to reach good organizational governance. With good organizational 

governance, ASEANSAI will become a robust and strong organization. 

SG 6 will be achieved through the implementation of projects and activities that will lead 

to the attainment of a strategic objective to be achieved in period of 2018 – 2021 

namely: 

SO 6.1 To improve the management and organization of ASEANSAI  

ASEANSAI is facing the challenge to improve the management of the organization. 

Considering ASEANSAI consists of 10 SAIs which have different mandates, environment, 

culture, language, and others, ASEANSAI needs good management and organizational 

arrangement. Hence, with good management and organizational arrangement, member 

SAIs can work together and achieve the ASEANSAI's goal. 
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ASEANSAI AT A GLANCE 

ASEAN Supreme audit Institutions (ASEANSAI) is the organization of ten Supreme 

Audit Institutions (SAIs) of the member states of ASEAN. ASEANSAI is expected to 

encourage and promote good governance within the ASEAN region. Thus, ASEANSAI will 

focus on capacity development for SAIs of ASEAN member states and technical 

cooperation dealing with important and common audit issues in the ASEAN region. 

1. Objectives of ASEANSAI 

- To build capacity and promote cooperation and understanding among the 

Members of ASEANSAI through the exchange and sharing of knowledge and experiences 

in the field of public sector auditing so as to strengthen the audit institutions; 

- To provide a conducive environment and facilities to promote research, 

training, and continuous education among the Members of ASEANSAI through the 

sharing of best practices and exchange of lessons learned; and 

- To serve as a centre of information and as an ASEANSAI link with other 

international organizations and institutions in the field of public sector auditing. 

2. Organizational structure of ASEANSAI 

  

ANNEX 3 
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Executive Committee 
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Rules & Procedure 
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Knowledge 
Sharing 
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Training 
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Secretariat 

Chairman 

Vice Chairman 
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CHAPTER 6  

The 2nd ASEANSAI Revised 

Rules and Procedures  
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The following provisions in the ASEANSAI Agreement provide the context to the 

ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures. 

 

Article 1:  The ASEANSAI is a professional organization which is autonomous, 

independent and non-political. 

 

Article 2:  The objectives of the ASEANSAI are: 

 

(i) To build capacity and promote cooperation and understanding 

among the Members of ASEANSAI through the exchange and 

sharing of knowledge and experiences in the field of public sector 

auditing so as to strengthen the audit institutions; 

 

(ii) To provide a conducive environment and facilities to promote 

research, training and continuous education among the Members of 

ASEANSAI through the sharing of best practices and exchange of 

lessons learned; and 

 

(iii) To serve as a center of information and as an ASEANSAI link with 

other international organisations and institutions in the field of 

public sector auditing. 

 

Article 3:  The functions of the ASEANSAI shall include the following: 

 

(i) To create and maintain a data bank of best practices, standards, and 

methodologies in the field of public sector auditing; 

 

(ii) To organise seminars, workshops, studies, or other activities related 

to the exchange of knowledge and experiences in the field of public 

sector auditing; and  

 

(iii) To undertake other activities that will promote good governance 

and cooperation among Members of ASEANSAI.  

 

Any specific activity to be undertaken by the Members of ASEANSAI 

pursuant to Article 3 of the ASEANSAI Agreement shall only proceed 

upon agreement by the Members of ASEANSAI concerned of the terms 

and conditions applicable to such cooperation. 
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Chapter 1: The Assembly 

 

Section 1: Decision-Making 

 

1.1.1 The Assembly is the highest decision-making body within the structure of 

ASEANSAI. 

 

1.1.2 The Assembly shall be the policy-making body of ASEANSAI. 

1.1.3 The Assembly shall be headed by a Chairman who shall be assisted by a Vice 

Chairman. 

 

1.1.4 Decisions by the Assembly on any subject shall be made by consensus of all 

Members of ASEANSAI, via meetings or circulation. Matters on which 

consensus cannot be reached shall be dropped. 

 

1.1.5 For the purpose of seeking a decision or comments from the Assembly, a 

proposal paper stating the objective(s), requirement(s) and expected outcome(s), 

including any supporting material(s), shall be submitted to the Assembly at least 

two (2) months ahead of the date where the decision is required. 

 

Section 2: Functions 

 

1.2.1 The Assembly shall have the following functions: 

 

(i) To formulate and decide policies which the Assembly considers 

necessary to achieve the objectives of ASEANSAI; 

(ii) To approve initiatives and programmes of activities for ASEANSAI; 

(iii) To set up Committees whenever necessary; 

(iv) To monitor the progress of the work of Committees (including the 

Executive Committee) and the Secretariat; 

(v) To approve the final deliverables (as stated in the TORs) of the 

Committees (including the Executive Committee) and the Secretariat; 

(vi) To approve the rules and procedures of ASEANSAI; 

(vii) To approve the budget of ASEANSAI; 

(viii) To formulate its own rules for the conduct of Assembly meetings; 

(ix) To approve the auditor for the purposes of Article 15, Paragraph 4 of the 

ASEANSAI Agreement; 

(x) To approve a list of external organisations from which ASEANSAI could 

accept invitations to events; and 

(xi) To consider and approve the invitation of Observers and Guests to 

ASEANSAI events. 

 

1.2.2 The Assembly shall also take on any other functions as decided by the Assembly. 
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Section 3: Membership 

 

1.3.1  The ASEANSAI membership shall comprise the Supreme Audit Institutions 

(SAIs) of ASEAN Member States who shall be represented by the Heads of the 

SAIs or representatives duly authorised by them. 

 

1.3.2 The Members of ASEANSAI are as follows: 

 

(i) The Jabatan Audit Brunei Darussalam; 

(ii) The National Audit Authority of the Kingdom of Cambodia; 

(iii) The Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia; 

(iv) The State Audit Organization of Lao People’s Democratic Republic; 

(v) The Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia; 

(vi) The Office of the Auditor General of the Union, the Republic of the Union 

of Myanmar; 

(vii) The Commission on Audit of the Republic of the Philippines; 

(viii) The Auditor-General’s Office of Singapore; 

(ix) The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand; and 

(x) The State Audit Office of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam. 

 

1.3.3 Where a country is admitted into ASEAN as a new Member State, the Chairman 

of ASEANSAI shall send a letter to invite the SAI of that Member State to join 

as a Member of ASEANSAI. 

 

1.3.4 Any Member of ASEANSAI may withdraw from ASEANSAI at any time by 

written notification given to the Executive Committee, who shall immediately 

inform the other Members of such notification. The termination of membership 

shall take effect on the date stated in the notification sent to the Executive 

Committee. In the event that the date of withdrawal is not stated in the 

notification, the withdrawal of the Member of ASEANSAI shall take effect three 

(3) months after the date of receipt of the notification by the Executive 

Committee. The Secretariat shall proceed to inform relevant parties, including 

external organisations or donors of the withdrawal of the Member of 

ASEANSAI, after the Executive Committee had informed the other Members. 

 

Chapter 2: Chairman and Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI 

 

2.1 The appointment of the Chairman and Vice Chairman shall be rotated in 

alphabetical order of country name unless decided otherwise by the Assembly. 

2.2 The term of office of the Chairman and Vice Chairman shall be for two years. 

 

2.3 The Vice Chairman shall be the next Chairman. 
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2.4 The Chairman of the Assembly shall also be known as the Chairman of 

ASEANSAI. 

 

2.5 When ASEANSAI is invited to be represented at an event of an external 

organisation which is approved by the Assembly, the Head of the SAI which is 

the Chairman of ASEANSAI shall represent ASEANSAI in attending the event. 

If the Chairman is unable to attend the event, the Head of the SAI which is the 

Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI shall represent ASEANSAI. 

 

2.6 For invitations to events from external organisations which are not in the list 

approved by the Assembly [see paragraph 1.2.1(x)], the Chairman of 

ASEANSAI shall seek the approval of the Assembly for himself or the Vice 

Chairman (if the Chairman is unable to attend the event) to represent 

ASEANSAI in attending the event. 

 

Chapter 3: The Executive Committee 

 

Section 1: Composition of Committee 

 

3.1.1 The Executive Committee shall comprise the Chairman and the Vice Chairman 

of ASEANSAI. 

 

Section 2: Functions 

 

3.2.1 The Executive Committee shall have the following functions: 

 

(i) To recommend policies to the Assembly; 

 

(ii) To develop and adopt measures towards the effective implementation of 

the policies set by the Assembly. Such measures shall be approved by the 

Assembly; and 

 

(iii) To monitor the progress of the implementation of the work plans of the 

ASEANSAI Committees. 

 

3.2.2 In performing its functions, the Executive Committee shall be assisted by a 

Secretariat (the ASEANSAI Secretariat). 

 

Section 3: Terms of Reference and Work Plan 

 

3.3.1 The Chairman of ASEANSAI is responsible for drafting the Terms of Reference 

where required and the Work Plan of the Executive Committee. The Work Plan 

shall be aligned with the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan which determines the 

strategic direction, goals, and objectives of ASEANSAI and how to achieve its 
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vision and mission. Once the Chairman and Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI agree 

to the Terms of Reference and/or the Work Plan, these shall be submitted to the 

Assembly for approval. 

 

3.3.2 The Terms of Reference of the Executive Committee shall include, but not 

limited to, the following: 

(i) Mandates; 

(ii) Objectives; 

(iii) Deliverables; 

(iv) Development of the Work Plan; and 

(v) Duties of the Chairman and the Members. 

 

3.3.3 Any amendments made to the Terms of Reference shall be approved by the 

Assembly. 

 

3.3.4 The Work Plan prepared by the Executive Committee covers two years and 

includes projects and activities that contribute towards achieving the goals and 

objectives of the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan. 

 

3.3.5 The Work Plan of the Executive Committee shall include, but not limited to, the 

following: 

(i) Strategic Goals 

(ii) Strategic Objectives 

(iii) Title of projects 

(iv) Responsible Committee/SAI for the activities 

(v) Key Performance Indicators 

(vi) Name of activities 

(vii) Timeline 

(viii) Budget 

(ix) Outputs 

(x) Outcomes 

 

Section 4: Decision-Making 

 

3.4.1 Decisions by the Executive Committee shall be made by consensus, via meetings 

or circulation. Matters on which consensus cannot be reached shall be dropped. 

 

Section 5: Reporting 

 

3.5.1 The Executive Committee shall submit regular reports on the status of its 

activities and projects to the Assembly, via the Committee Progress Report (on 

calendar year basis). The report shall include, but not limited to, the following: 
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(i) A brief description of the progress of the implementation of the 

Committee’s work plan, comparing plan and actual implementation in 

terms of time, budget and envisaged outputs; 

 

(ii) A reflection of discrepancies between plan and implementation, and 

possible explanations for such differences; and 

 

(iii) Proposals on how the ASEANSAI management shall react to overcome 

identified challenges in the implementation of the work plan if the 

achieved outputs do not contribute to the strategic objectives as expected. 

 

Chapter 4: The Committees1 

 

Section 1: Formation of Committees 

 

4.1.1 The establishment of the Committees of ASEANSAI and their composition shall 

be decided by the Assembly. 

 

4.1.2 The Committees of ASEANSAI shall be formed from among the Members of 

ASEANSAI. Each Committee shall comprise a minimum of three (3) member 

SAIs. 

 

Section 2: Dissolution of Committees 

 

4.2.1 A Committee may be dissolved at the request of the Committee or on completion 

of the expected product(s) and outcome(s) of the Committee, subject to the 

approval of the Assembly. 

 

Section 3: Term of Committees 

 

4.3.1 The term of each Committee shall be for a period of two (2) years or until such 

time the Committee is dissolved as provided for under paragraph 4.2.1. 

 

Section 4: Appointment of the Chairman 

 

4.4.1 The selection of the Chairman of the Committee shall be made by consensus 

amongst the members of the Committee and put forth to the Assembly for 

approval. The term of the Chairman shall be the same as the term of the 

Committee. 

 

4.4.2 Should the Assembly decide that the Committee is required beyond the 2-year 

term, the Committee members would be appointed afresh from amongst the 

                                                           
1 Other than the Executive Committee 
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Members of ASEANSAI by the Assembly. The new Chairman of the Committee 

shall be selected from amongst the existing members, subject to the approval of 

the Assembly. 

 

Section 5: Changes to Composition of Committees 

 

4.5.1 Members of ASEANSAI may express their intent to join or withdraw from a 

particular Committee, in writing, to the relevant Committee Chairman. The 

Chairman of the Committee concerned would then submit his recommendations 

on members’ applications to join or withdraw to the Assembly for approval. For 

withdrawal, the expression of intent must be received by the Chairman of the 

Committee at least two (2) months before the intended date of cessation of 

membership. 

 

Section 6: Terms of Reference and Work Plan 

 

4.6.1 The Chairman of the Committee is responsible for drafting the Terms of 

Reference where required and the Work Plan of the Committee for discussion. 

The Work Plan shall be aligned with the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan which 

determines the strategic direction, goals, and objectives of ASEANSAI and how 

to achieve its vision and mission. Once the Chairman and the Members agree to 

the Terms of Reference and/or the Work Plan, these shall be submitted to the 

Assembly for approval. 

 

4.6.2 The Terms of Reference of the individual Committees shall include, but not 

limited to, the following: 

(i) Mandates; 

(ii) Objectives; 

(iii) Membership; 

(iv) Deliverables; 

(v) Development of the Work Plan; and 

(vi) Duties of the Chairman and the Members. 

 

4.6.3  Any proposal to amend the Terms of Reference requires the consensus of at least 

two-third of the Members of the Committee. 

 

4.6.4 All amendments to the Terms of Reference of a Committee require the approval 

of the Assembly. 

 

4.6.5 The Work Plan prepared by the respective Committees covers two years and 

includes projects and activities that contribute towards achieving the goals and 

objectives of the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan. 

 

4.6.6 The Work Plan of the Committees shall include, but not limited to, the following: 
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(i) Strategic Goals 

(ii) Strategic Objectives 

(iii) Title of projects 

(iv) Responsible Committee/SAI for the activities 

(v) Key Performance Indicators 

(vi) Name of activities 

(vii) Timeline 

(viii) Budget 

(ix) Outputs 

(x) Outcomes 

 

Section 7: Decision-Making 

 

4.7.1 Decisions by the Committee shall be made by consensus, via meetings or 

circulation. 

 

4.7.2 Where consensus cannot be reached, the decisions of the Committee shall be 

made by a simple majority of the total membership of the Committee. Each 

Committee member SAI has the right to one vote. 

 

Section 8: Reporting 

 

4.8.1 The Committee Chairman shall report to the ASEANSAI Assembly, through the 

Executive Committee, on all matters within the Terms of Reference of the 

Committee. 

 

4.8.2 The Committee shall submit regular reports on the status of its activities and 

projects, via the Committee Progress Report (on calendar year basis). The report 

shall include, but not limited to, the following: 

 

(i)  A brief description of the progress of the implementation of the 

Committees’ work plan, comparing plan and actual implementation in 

terms of time, budget and envisaged outputs; 

 

(ii)  A reflection of discrepancies between plan and implementation, and 

possible explanations for such differences; and 

 

(iii) Proposals on how the ASEANSAI management shall react to overcome 

identified challenges in the implementation of the work plan if the 

achieved outputs do not contribute to the strategic objectives as expected. 
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Chapter 5: The ASEANSAI Secretariat 

 

Section 1: Appointment of ASEANSAI Secretariat 

 

5.1.1 The Secretariat of ASEANSAI shall be headed by a Head of Secretariat. 

 

5.1.2 During transitional period, the Assembly could retain the existing Secretariat to 

continue its work until the appointment of the new Secretariat. 

 

5.1.3 The Secretariat shall be appointed by the Assembly for a tenure of six (6) years 

with possible re-election for further terms with the approval of the Assembly. 

 

5.1.4 The Member of ASEANSAI appointed as the Secretariat shall not be the auditor 

of ASEANSAI. 

 

Section 2: Nomination and Selection of Secretariat 

 

5.2.1 A year before the end of the Secretariat’s tenure, the Assembly shall evaluate the 

performance of incumbent Secretariat and review the activity report(s) submitted 

by the Secretariat. If the incumbent Secretariat is to be re-elected for another 

term, it shall be followed by seeking confirmation whether the incumbent 

Secretariat would like to extend its term. When the incumbent Secretariat intends 

to extend its term, the Assembly shall be informed of the intention through the 

Executive Committee. The incumbent Secretariat will then be re-inaugurated 

through the Assembly. Otherwise, the Chairman of ASEANSAI shall invite 

nominations from all Members of ASEANSAI at least six (6) months before the 

end of the Secretariat’s tenure. 

 

5.2.2 The Executive Committee will verify the application(s) for nomination and 

submit such application(s) no less than three (3) months before the end of the 

Secretariat’s tenure to the Assembly for consideration. If there are more than one 

qualified nomination, the Assembly shall appoint the Secretariat in alphabetical 

order (of country name), unless decided otherwise by the Assembly. If no 

nomination is received, the Chairman will bring the matter up to the Assembly 

for discussion. 

 

5.2.3 The Member of ASEANSAI appointed as the Secretariat will be required to 

officially declare that it accepts and will carry out the mandate of the Secretariat. 

 

Section 3: Terms of Reference and Work Plan 

 

5.3.1 The Secretariat shall have the following functions and duties: 

 

(i) To be responsible to the Chairman of ASEANSAI; 
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(ii) To assist the Executive Committee of ASEANSAI in managing the work 

of the Assembly; 

(iii) To provide administrative and communication support to the Executive 

Committee and all other committees of ASEANSAI including managing 

the website of ASEANSAI and the ASEANSAI Newsletter; 

(iv) To manage the finances of ASEANSAI and be accountable for the usage 

of funds as approved by the Assembly; 

(v) To perform any other duties as directed by the Executive Committee of 

the ASEANSAI; and 

(vi) To keep all accounts, records and files. 

 

5.3.2 The Secretariat shall maintain a repository of the approved minutes of meeting 

of the ASEANSAI Summits, Assembly meetings, and Committee meetings 

(including those of the Executive Committee). 

 

5.3.3 The Head of Secretariat is responsible for drafting the Terms of Reference where 

required and the Work Plan of the Secretariat for discussion with the Executive 

Committee. Once the Executive Committee and the Secretariat have agreed to 

the Terms of Reference and/or the Work Plan, these shall be submitted to the 

Assembly for approval. 

 

5.3.4 The Terms of Reference of the Secretariat shall include, but not limited to, the 

following: 

(i) Mandates; 

(ii) Objectives; 

(iii) Deliverables; and  

(iv) Development of the Work Plan. 

 

5.3.5 Any amendments made to the Terms of Reference shall be approved by the 

Assembly. 

 

5.3.6 The Work Plan prepared by the Secretariat covers two years and includes 

projects and activities that contribute towards achieving the goals and objectives 

of the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan. 

 

5.3.7 The Work Plan of the Secretariat shall include, but not limited to, the following: 

(i) Strategic Goals 

(ii) Strategic Objectives 

(iii) Title of projects 

(iv) Responsible Committee/SAI for the activities 

(v) Key Performance Indicators 

(vi) Name of activities 

(vii) Timeline 

(viii) Budget 
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(ix) Outputs 

(x) Outcomes 

 

Section 4: Reporting 

 

5.4.1 The Secretariat shall report to the ASEANSAI Assembly through the Executive 

Committee on all matters within its Terms of Reference. 

 

5.4.2 The Secretariat shall submit regular reports on the status of its activities and 

projects, via the Committee Progress Report (on calendar year basis). The report 

shall include, but not limited to, the following: 

 

(i)  A brief description of the progress of the implementation of the 

Secretariat’s work plan, comparing plan and actual implementation in 

terms of time, budget and envisaged outputs; 

 

(ii)  A reflection of discrepancies between plan and implementation, and 

possible explanations for such differences; and 

 

(iii)  Proposals on how the ASEANSAI management shall react to overcome 

identified challenges in the implementation of the work plan if the 

achieved outputs do not contribute to the strategic objectives as expected. 

 

Section 5: Staffing and Premises 

 

5.5.1 The Member of ASEANSAI appointed as the Secretariat shall provide the staff 

and premises required for effective discharge of the Secretariat function. Staff 

should be adequately proficient in English language (conversational and 

writing). 

 

Section 6: Funding of Expenses 

 

5.6.1 All expenditure related to the functioning of the Secretariat shall be borne by the 

Member of ASEANSAI appointed as the Secretariat. However, the Secretariat 

may invoke the use of the ASEANSAI funds, if the expenditure is budgeted and 

approved by the Assembly prior to incurrence of expenditure. 

 

Section 7: Handing Over of Documents 

 

5.7.1 In the event of a change in Secretariat, the outgoing Secretariat shall prepare a 

summary list of items and documents which would be handed over to the 

incoming Secretariat. As regards the transfer of physical documents, if deemed 

desired, the incoming Secretariat shall subsequently make the necessary 

arrangements with the outgoing Secretariat on the timing and mode of transfer. 
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Section 8: Withdrawal of Secretariat 

 

5.8.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 1.3.4, the incumbent Secretariat with the intention to 

withdraw shall express its intent and reasons, in writing, to the Chairman of 

ASEANSAI at least six (6) months before the intended date of cessation. Any 

request for withdrawal of the Secretariat during its term should only be accepted 

on very exceptional grounds. 

 

5.8.2 Upon receipt of the intention to withdraw, the Chairman of ASEANSAI shall 

forward the request for withdrawal and a notification to all Members of 

ASEANSAI for nomination to be the next ASEANSAI Secretariat. The 

nomination of a new Secretariat is to be approved by the Assembly.  

Chapter 6: Monitoring and Evaluation 

 

6.1 The ASEANSAI Guideline for Monitoring and Evaluation was introduced to 

help: 

 

(i) Monitor the progress of the planned activities; and 

 

(ii) Assess the achievements of activities and projects of ASEANSAI. 

 

6.2 The Guideline is to be used in all activities of ASEANSAI by its members who 

have contributed to the achievement of the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan. 

 

6.3 At activity level, there are 5 steps to follow for monitoring and evaluation for 

every ASEANSAI activity, namely (1) planning of the activity; (2) preparatory 

meeting; (3) daily debriefing / feedback; (4) final wrap-up session; and (5) 

strategic adjustment and steering. 

 

6.4 Participants Evaluation Sheet and Activity Assessment Sheet are used to assess 

the progress of activities and to determine whether the planned objectives were 

achieved. 

 

(i) Participants Evaluation Sheet consists of a set of questionnaire which 

requests for the feedback and views of the participants taking part in 

ASEANSAI activities. 

 

(ii) Activity Assessment Sheet summarises the participants’ feedback and 

concerns regarding the activity collected through the Participants 

Evaluation Sheet, and integrates the reflections, feedback and lessons 

learned by the organisers and facilitator(s) of the activity. 

 

6.5 At the strategic level, there are 4 steps to follow for monitoring and evaluation, 

namely (1) preparation of the Committee Progress Report; (2) preparation of the 
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Annual Results Report; (3) conduct of yearly monitoring and evaluation 

meeting; and (4) presentation of the Annual Results Report to the Assembly. 

 

6.6 The Committee Progress Report is a narrative summary of all activity 

assessment as compared with the Committee’s work plan and an evaluation on 

how activities contribute to the strategic objectives.  It shall be prepared by each 

Committee and the Secretariat.  The Committee Progress Report shall be 

submitted annually to the ASEANSAI Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) and 

Secretariat. 

 

6.7 The Annual Results Report is a brief overview on the implemented activities and 

expenditure of ASEANSAI, prepared based on the Committee Progress Reports 

submitted. This report shall highlight whether ASEANSAI achieve the strategic 

objectives and if corrective actions need to be taken.  The Annual Results Report 

shall be prepared by the SPC and submitted to the Executive Committee annually 

for its review and action, and presented to the Assembly every 2 years. 

 

Chapter 7: ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings 

 

Section 1: Definition of ASEANSAI Assembly Meetings 

 

7.1.1 An ASEANSAI Assembly Meeting is a meeting of all Members of ASEANSAI. 

 

Section 2: Definition of ASEANSAI Summit 

 

7.2.1 An ASEANSAI Summit is an ASEANSAI Assembly Meeting where a new 

Chairman of ASEANSAI would be appointed. 

 

Section 3: Hosting and Organisation of ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings 

 

7.3.1 The ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings shall be hosted by the 

Chairman of ASEANSAI with the Secretariat providing assistance on the 

organisation and coordination of the Summits and Meetings. 

 

7.3.2 The ASEANSAI Summit shall be held in regular sessions at least once in every 

two (2) years, in tandem with the end of the term of ASEANSAI Chairman. 

 

7.3.3 The ASEANSAI Assembly Meetings shall be held at such timing as 

unanimously agreed upon by the Assembly. 
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Section 4: Notice of ASEANSAI Summit/Assembly Meeting and Agenda 

 

7.4.1 The outgoing Chairman of ASEANSAI shall give notice to all Members of 

ASEANSAI of the date of the ASEANSAI Summit and the agenda at least three 

(3) months in advance from the date of the Summit. The materials/papers for the 

Summit shall be circulated to the members at least two (2) months in advance 

from the date of the Summit. If there are significant changes to materials/papers 

subsequent to the circulation, the revised materials/papers shall be circulated to 

the members at least one (1) month before the Summit. The incoming Chairman 

shall send out invitation letters to all Members of ASEANSAI at least two (2) 

months prior to the ASEANSAI Summit. 

7.4.2 For ASEANSAI Summits, the outgoing Secretariat would be responsible for 

drawing up the tentative agenda in coordination with the host, and circulating 

the materials/papers for the ASEANSAI Summits. The final agenda for the 

ASEANSAI Summits shall be agreed upon by the Executive Committee and 

shall include confirmation of minutes of the last Summit. 

 

7.4.3 The Chairman of ASEANSAI shall give notice to all Members of ASEANSAI 

of the date of the ASEANSAI Assembly Meeting and the agenda at least two (2) 

months in advance from the date of the meeting. The materials/papers for the 

Assembly Meeting shall be circulated to the members at least two (2) months in 

advance from the date of the meeting. If there are significant changes to 

materials/papers subsequent to the circulation, the revised materials/papers shall 

be circulated to the members at least one (1) month before the Assembly 

Meeting. 

 

7.4.4 For ASEANSAI Assembly Meetings, the Secretariat would be responsible for 

drawing up the agenda and circulating the materials/papers for the Assembly 

Meeting. The agenda for the Assembly Meeting shall include confirmation of 

minutes of the last Assembly Meeting. 

 

7.4.5 The Secretariat shall compile all decisions made, in between Summits/Assembly 

Meetings, by the Assembly and table them at the next Summit/Assembly 

Meeting for endorsement and record.  The Secretariat shall also compile and 

table a list of events where ASEANSAI was represented and the identities of the 

ASEANSAI representatives. 

 

Section 5: Chairing of ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings 

 

7.5.1 The ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings shall be chaired by the Head 

of the SAI which is the Chairman of ASEANSAI. In the event that the Chairman 

is unable to chair the Summit/Assembly Meeting, the Head of the SAI which is 

the Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI shall chair the Summit/Assembly Meeting. 
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Section 6: Attendance at ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings 

 

7.6.1 The ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings shall be attended by the 

Heads of the member SAIs or representatives duly authorised by them. A 

member’s attendance at a Summit or Assembly Meeting can be by other modes 

of communication, e.g. videoconferencing, where necessary and practical. 

 

Section 7: Minutes of Meeting 

 

7.7.1 The Secretariat shall be responsible for drawing up the minutes of meeting for 

the purpose of documenting key discussions and decisions taken during the 

ASEANSAI Summits or Assembly Meetings. The date, venue and attendees of 

the meeting shall also be stated in the minutes of meeting. 

 

7.7.2 The draft minutes of meeting shall be circulated to all Members of ASEANSAI 

for their comments and proposed amendments. The Secretariat would consider 

and incorporate the comments and proposed amendments of members in the 

minutes of meeting as appropriate. The Secretariat shall then put up the revised 

draft minutes of meeting to the Chairman for approval. 

 

7.7.3 The Secretariat shall circulate the approved minutes of meeting to all Members 

of ASEANSAI within two (2) months from the date of the Summit or Assembly 

Meeting. 

 

Section 8: Funding of Expenses 

 

7.8.1 All administrative costs (including venue and meals) incurred for the 

ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings shall be borne by the host SAI. 

 

7.8.2 The costs of travel, accommodation and other expenses for attending the 

ASEANSAI Summits and Assembly Meetings shall be borne by the respective 

Member of ASEANSAI. 

 

Section 9: Observers and Guests 

 

7.9.1 The Secretariat shall put up for the Assembly’s consideration and approval of 

the invitation of representatives from international organisations with goals 

linked to those of the ASEANSAI, as observers or guests to the ASEANSAI 

Summits or the Assembly Meetings. 

 

7.9.2 For all other meetings, the Secretariat shall seek the consent of the organising 

Committee and host country for the invitation of representatives from 

international organisations as observers or guest, before seeking approval from 

the Executive Committee. 
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Chapter 8: Executive Committee Meetings 

 

Section 1: Convening of Meeting 

 

8.1.1 The meetings of the Executive Committee shall be convened and chaired by the 

Chairman of ASEANSAI and held at such timing as agreed with the Vice 

Chairman. 

 

8.1.2 The Secretariat shall be responsible for the organisation and coordination of the 

Executive Committee meetings. 

 

8.1.3 The Executive Committee shall organise Technical/Preparatory Meetings and/or 

Senior Officials Meetings where necessary. These meetings shall be chaired by 

the Chairman or his/her representative. 

 

Section 2: Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

 

8.2.1 The Chairman of ASEANSAI shall give notice to the Vice Chairman of the date 

of the meeting and the agenda at least one (1) month in advance from the date of 

the meeting. The materials/papers for the meeting shall be circulated to the Vice 

Chairman at least two (2) weeks in advance from the date of the meeting. 

 

8.2.2 The Secretariat shall be responsible for drawing up the agenda for the Executive 

Committee meetings. 

 

Section 3: Chairing of and Attendance at Executive Committee Meetings 

 

8.3.1 The Executive Committee meetings shall be chaired by the Head of the SAI 

which is the Chairman of ASEANSAI and attended by the Head of the SAI 

which is the Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI. Attendance at an Executive 

Committee meeting can be by other modes of communication, e.g. 

videoconferencing, where necessary and practical. 

 

Section 4: Minutes of Meeting 

 

8.4.1 The Secretariat shall be responsible for drawing up the minutes of meeting for 

the purpose of documenting key discussions and decisions taken during the 

Executive Committee meetings. The date, venue and attendees of the meeting 

shall also be stated in the minutes of meeting. 

 

8.4.2 The draft minutes of meeting shall be circulated to the Chairman and Vice 

Chairman for comments and proposed amendments. The Secretariat would 

consider and incorporate the comments and proposed amendments in the 
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minutes of meeting as appropriate. The Secretariat shall then put up the revised 

draft minutes of meeting to the Chairman for approval. 

 

8.4.3 The Secretariat shall circulate the approved minutes of meeting to all Members 

of ASEANSAI within two (2) months from the date of the meeting. 

 

Section 5: Hosting of Meeting 

 

8.5.1 The meeting of the Executive Committee shall be held in the Chairman’s or Vice 

Chairman’s country or in another country as agreed upon by the Executive 

Committee and the host country. 

 

Section 6: Funding of Expenses 

 

8.6.1 The cost of venue and meals for Executive Committee meetings shall be borne 

as follows: 

 

(i) For meetings held in the Chairman’s country or Vice Chairman’s 

country, the cost of venue and meals shall be borne by the Chairman or 

Vice Chairman respectively; and 

 

(ii) For meetings held in another country as agreed upon by the Executive 

Committee and host country, the cost of venue and meals shall be borne 

by the Chairman and/or the host country or the member SAI of the host 

country as agreed between them. 

 

8.6.2 The cost of travel, accommodation and other expenses for attending Executive 

Committee meetings shall be borne by the respective member SAIs. 

 

Chapter 9: Committee Meetings2 

 

Section 1: Convening of meeting 

 

9.1.1 The meetings of the Committee shall be convened and chaired by the Chairman 

of the Committee. In the event that the Chairman of the Committee is unable to 

attend the meeting, those present at the meeting shall elect a representative SAI 

from amongst themselves to chair the meeting. 

 

9.1.2 The Chairman of the Committee shall be responsible for the overall organisation 

and coordination of the Committee meetings. 

 

 

                                                           
2 Other than for Executive Committee meetings 
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Section 2: Notice of Meeting and Agenda 

 

9.2.1 The Chairman of the Committee shall give notice to the members of the 

Committee of the date of the meeting and the agenda at least one (1) month in 

advance from the date of the meeting. The materials/papers for the meeting shall 

be circulated to the members at least two (2) weeks in advance from the date of 

the meeting. 

 

9.2.2 The Chairman of the Committee would be responsible for drawing up the agenda 

for the Committee meetings. 

 

9.2.3 The Chairman of the Committee shall invite the Secretariat to send their 

representatives to attend the meeting as observers. Such invitation shall be 

extended at least one (1) month in advance from the date of the meeting. 

 

Section 3: Attendance at Committee Meetings 

 

9.3.1 The Committee meetings shall be attended by the Heads of the member SAIs or 

representatives duly authorised by them. Attendance at a meeting can be by other 

modes of communication, e.g. videoconferencing, where necessary and 

practical. 

 

Section 4: Quorum 

 

9.4.1 The quorum for Committee meetings shall be set at a simple majority of all the 

members of the Committee. 

 

Section 5: Minutes of Meeting 

 

9.5.1 The Chairman of the Committee shall be responsible for drawing up the minutes 

of meeting for the purpose of documenting the key discussions and decisions 

taken during the Committee meetings. The date, venue and attendees of the 

meeting shall also be stated in the minutes of meeting. 

 

9.5.2 The Chairman of the Committee shall circulate the draft minutes of meeting to 

all Committee members present at the meeting for comments and proposed 

amendments. Based on the comments and proposed amendments, the Chairman 

shall finalise and approve the minutes. 

 

9.5.3 The Chairman of the Committee shall circulate the approved minutes of meeting 

to all Members of ASEANSAI and the Secretariat within two (2) months from 

the date of the meeting. 
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Section 6: Hosting of Meeting 

 

9.6.1 Meetings of the Committee shall be held in the country of the Chairman of the 

Committee or in another country as agreed upon by the Committee and the host 

country. 

 

Section 7: Funding of Expenses 

 

9.7.1 The cost of venue and meals for Committee meetings shall be borne as follows: 

 

(i) For meetings held in the country of the Chairman of the Committee or in 

a country other than that of the Committee members, the cost of venue 

and meals shall be borne by the Chairman of the Committee and/or the 

host country as agreed between the Chairman and the host country; and 

 

(ii) For meetings held in the country of one of the Committee members, the 

cost of venue and meals shall be borne by the host country or member 

SAI of the host country. 

 

9.7.2 The cost of travel, accommodation and other expenses for attending Committee 

meetings shall be borne by the respective member SAIs. 

 

 

Chapter 10: Financial Rules and Procedures 

 

Section 1: ASEANSAI Fund 

 

10.1.1 All contributions, monetary donations (see paragraph 10.2.3) and any interest 

accrued on balances in ASEANSAI bank accounts shall constitute the 

ASEANSAI Fund. 

 

Section 2: Contributions and Donations 

 

10.2.1 Every Member of ASEANSAI shall make equal annual contributions of 

US$700, or any other amount as decided by the Assembly, to the ASEANSAI 

Fund from 2013. 

 

10.2.2 Members of ASEANSAI may make voluntary contributions to the ASEANSAI 

Fund, in addition to the annual contributions. These contributions may be 

designated for specific activities of ASEANSAI or used in a manner as approved 

by the Assembly. 

 

10.2.3 Subject to the approval of the Assembly, ASEANSAI may accept monetary 

donations and/or donations-in-kind, from other organisations with goals similar 
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to those of ASEANSAI. To enable its decision making, the Assembly shall be 

informed of, among other things, the nature of the donations, particulars of the 

prospective donors, purposes of the donations and conditions attached (if any). 

 

10.2.4 For monetary donations and donations-in-kind which have been approved by the 

Assembly, the Secretariat shall issue official letters to the donors as 

acknowledgement of the donations. 

 

10.2.5 The Secretariat shall be responsible for any follow-up actions required in relation 

to donations approved by the Assembly, e.g. drafting of 

agreement/memorandum of understanding (MOU) between donor and 

ASEANSAI and submitting the draft agreement/MOU for the Assembly’s 

approval. 

 

10.2.6 Upon Assembly’s approval of the draft donor agreement/MOU, the Chairman of 

ASEANSAI shall represent the Assembly to be the signatory of the donor 

agreement / MOU. 

 

Section 3: Payment and Receipt of Annual Contributions 

 

10.3.1 Payment of the annual contribution is due on the first day of each calendar year 

and the annual contribution shall be remitted to the Secretariat by this date. 

 

10.3.2 The Secretariat shall notify each Member of ASEANSAI of the due date for the 

payment of the annual contribution at least three (3) months in advance. 

 

10.3.3 Members of ASEANSAI may choose their own preferred mode of payment 

(cheque, cash or postal remittance/bank transfer). All annual contributions shall 

be made in US dollars. Bank charges shall be borne by ASEANSAI Fund. 

 

10.3.4 The Secretariat shall, by 1 April of the current year, follow up with Members of 

ASEANSAI who have not paid their annual contributions. 

 

10.3.5 Where there are arrears, the Secretariat shall, in the advanced notification of 

annual contribution due date, add the amount outstanding to the current year’s 

contribution amount. 

 

10.3.6 The Secretariat shall issue receipts to Members of ASEANSAI as 

acknowledgement of payment of annual contributions. 

 

Section 4: ASEANSAI Bank Account 

 

10.4.1 The Secretariat shall deposit all contributions and donations received into a bank 

account opened in the name of “ASEANSAI Secretariat”. 
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10.4.2 Any interest accrued on the balance in the “ASEANSAI Secretariat” bank 

account shall be deposited back into the same bank account. 

 

10.4.3 When handing over its role, the outgoing Secretariat shall close the existing 

“ASEANSAI Secretariat” bank account and transfer the balance to a new bank 

account opened in the name of “ASEANSAI Secretariat” by the newly appointed 

Secretariat. 

 

10.4.4 Bank charges incurred in relation to the opening, maintenance and closing of the 

ASEANSAI bank account shall be borne by the ASEANSAI Fund. 

 

Section 5: Preparation of Budget 

 

10.5.1 Before the start of a new Chairman’s term, the Secretariat shall prepare a detailed 

budget showing a breakdown of the estimated total contributions and expenses 

for each financial year beginning on 1 January for the next two-year period. 

Estimated total expenses shall include those for activities planned for the period. 

 

10.5.2 In preparing the budget, the Secretariat shall seek inputs from the respective 

committees on the activities planned for the period and the estimated costs to be 

incurred during the period. The Secretariat shall also take into account any 

donor-specific restrictions on the use of donations or contributions. 

 

10.5.3 The budget shall be tabled for approval at the ASEANSAI Summit where the 

next Chairman of ASEANSAI is to be appointed.  Any subsequent changes to 

the budget shall be approved by the Assembly. 

 

10.5.4 The Secretariat shall carry out a mid-term review of the budget and seek the 

approval of the Assembly for an updated budget (if necessary) with respect to 

important activities which were not foreseen at the time the initial budget was 

prepared. 

 

10.5.5 For the purpose of the mid-term review, the Secretariat shall also prepare a 

statement of the actual contributions and expenses for the period in comparison 

with the budgeted figures (variances between actual and budgeted figures shall 

be shown and any major deviations from the budgeted figures shall be accounted 

for). 

 

10.5.6 The Secretariat shall also prepare a timetable for the preparation, submission and 

approval of the budget. 
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Section 6: Funding of Activities 

 

10.6.1 The annual contributions made by the Members of ASEANSAI shall be used to 

fund one participant, or any number of participants as decided by the Assembly, 

from each Member of ASEANSAI for an annual training or workshop. In 

circumstances where a Member of ASEANSAI sends more than the number of 

participants approved by the Assembly to attend the training or workshop, all 

expenses incurred by the additional participants (e.g. meals, meeting package, 

air ticket and accommodation) shall be borne by the member SAI concerned. 

 

10.6.2 All costs incurred (e.g. venue, meals, travel, accommodation) for hosting and 

attendance of the ASEANSAI Summits, Assembly Meetings or meetings of the 

Committees (including the Executive Committee) shall not be chargeable on the 

ASEANSAI Fund. 

 

Section 7: Claims 

 

10.7.1 Members of ASEANSAI may seek reimbursement from the ASEANSAI Fund 

for expenditures stated in the approved budget. 

 

10.7.2 Claims for reimbursement and the relevant supporting documents shall be 

submitted to the Secretariat within two (2) months from the date the expense was 

incurred. Original copies of the supporting documents shall be provided to the 

Secretariat via courier or registered mail where necessary. All courier and postal 

charges shall be borne by the respective member SAIs. 

 

10.7.3 Upon checking the validity of claim, the Secretariat may reimburse the Member 

of ASEANSAI from the ASEANSAI Fund via a mode of payment (cheque, cash 

or postal remittance/bank transfer) that is most economical and efficient. Bank 

charges shall be borne by the ASEANSAI Fund. 

 

Section 8: Accounting Records 

 

10.8.1 The Secretariat shall maintain appropriate accounting records and related 

supporting documents. 

 

10.8.2 The Secretariat shall seek the Assembly’s approval before changing the medium 

of financial records (i.e. from manual to electronic format or vice versa) or the 

implementation or development of a computerised accounting system that would 

affect the ASEANSAI accounts. 

 

10.8.3 A transaction in a currency other than US dollars shall be recorded in US dollars 

by applying the exchange rate prevailing between the currency and US dollars 

at the time of the transaction. 
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10.8.4 The Secretariat is responsible for making available financial accounting 

information in either hard or soft copy format upon request from any Member of 

ASEANSAI. 

 

Section 9: Financial Reporting 

 

10.9.1 The financial year of the ASEANSAI shall be the calendar year. 

 

10.9.2 All revenue and expenses of the ASEANSAI Fund shall be reported. 

 

10.9.3 The Assembly shall approve an initial set of significant accounting policies 

prepared by the Secretariat and any subsequent amendments to the significant 

accounting policies. 

 

10.9.4 The Chairman (assisted by the Secretariat) shall prepare the annual financial 

statements (covering each of the financial year during its term) using accrual 

basis and in accordance with the International Public Sector Accounting 

Standards. 

 

10.9.5 In the year where there is a change of chairmanship, the outgoing Chairman shall 

prepare an interim financial statement for the period of January of that year until 

the end of his term. The incoming Chairman shall be responsible for preparing 

the annual financial statements of the year it took over. 

 

10.9.6 The financial statements shall be presented in US dollars. 

 

10.9.7 At the end of each financial year, the Chairman (assisted by the Secretariat) 

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements for that financial year 

shall submit a report to the Assembly. The report shall contain the following: 

 

(i) A set of unaudited financial statements for the financial year; 

   

(ii) Comparative statements for the financial year;  

 

(iii) A statement of the actual contributions and expenses for the financial 

year in comparison with the budgeted figures (variances between actual 

and budgeted figures shall be shown and any major deviations from the 

budgeted figures shall be accounted for); and 

 

(iv) Management discussion and analysis for the financial year. 

 

10.9.8 The report shall be submitted no later than seven (7) months after the end of the 

financial year, i.e. by 31 July. 
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Section 10: Audit of Financial Statements 

 

10.10.1 The financial statements of ASEANSAI shall be subject to biennial audits by an 

auditor approved by the Assembly. The auditor shall be from amongst the 

Members of ASEANSAI. 

 

10.10.2 Members of ASEANSAI (other than those in the Executive Committee and 

Secretariat) may volunteer to be the auditor. If more than one Member of 

ASEANSAI volunteers for the position, the Assembly shall appoint the auditor 

in alphabetical order (of country name), unless decided otherwise by the 

Assembly.  The remaining Members of ASEANSAI who volunteered will be 

scheduled as auditors in alphabetical order (of country name) in subsequent 

terms. 

 

10.10.3 The auditor shall be appointed for the biennial audit of the financial statements 

for two financial years. The auditor may also be re-appointed, subject to the 

approval of the Assembly. 

 

10.10.4 The auditor shall audit the accounts of ASEANSAI for two financial years and 

in accordance with the International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions 

(ISSAIs) on Financial Audit. 

 

10.10.5 The Secretariat shall send a copy of the unaudited financial statements to the 

auditor by 31 March in the year the biennial audit is to be conducted. The 

statements shall be prepared in English. The Secretariat shall assist in the audit 

by making necessary arrangements and providing to the auditor any information 

required for the performance of the auditor’s duties. 

  

10.10.6 The expenses incurred by the auditor such as travel costs shall be borne by the 

Country/member SAI serving as auditor. 

 

10.10.7 The auditor shall carry out an on-site audit of the accounting documentation and 

related records maintained by the Secretariat. 

 

10.10.8 Upon completion of its work, the auditor shall report on the financial statements 

for the financial years, stating: 

  

(i) whether the audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAIs in order to 

obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 

material misstatements; 

 

(ii) whether evidence supporting amounts and disclosures were examined on 

a test basis; 
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(iii) whether the audit also includes an assessment of the accounting policies 

used, significant estimates made by management as well as an evaluation 

of the overall financial statement presentation, and provides a reasonable 

basis for the opinion; and 

 

(iv) whether the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance 

with the provisions of the ASEANSAI Agreement and International 

Public Sector Accounting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of ASEANSAI as at _______ (date) and the financial 

position and the cash flows of ASEANSAI for the financial years. 

 

10.10.9 The auditor shall render an audit report to the Assembly within three (3) months 

after receiving the financial statements. The Assembly shall endorse the report 

within one (1) month after the submission of the audit report. 

 

10.10.10 The auditor may report any other matter resulting from the audit of the financial 

statements which he considers material to the Assembly. 

 

10.10.11 In no case shall the auditor include criticism in his report without first giving the 

Secretariat an opportunity to explain the matter under observation. 

 

Section 11: Signatory of Financial Statements and Management Representation Letter 

 

10.11.1 The Executive Committee (i.e. the Chairman and the Vice Chairman of 

ASEANSAI) shall be the appropriate signatory for the financial statements and 

the management representation letter of ASEANSAI. 

 

10.11.2 In the year where there is a change of chairmanship, the outgoing Executive 

Committee shall be the appropriate signatory for the unaudited financial 

statements (covering each of the financial years during and up to the last day of 

its term). 

 

Chapter 11: Protection of Intellectual Property Rights 

 

11.1 The protection of intellectual property rights shall be enforced in conformity 

with the national laws, rules and regulations of all Members of ASEANSAI and 

with other international agreements which all Members are parties to. 

 

11.2 The use of the name, logo and/or official emblem of any of the Members of 

ASEANSAI on any publication, document and/or paper is prohibited without 

the prior written approval of the Member concerned. 

 

11.3 Notwithstanding paragraph 11.1, the intellectual property rights in respect of any 

technological development, products and services development, carried out: 
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(i) Jointly by the Members of ASEANSAI or research results obtained 

through the joint activity effort of the Members, shall be jointly owned 

by the Members concerned in accordance with the terms to be mutually 

agreed upon; and 

 

(ii) Solely and separately by the Member of ASEANSAI or the research 

results obtained through the sole and separate effort of the Member, shall 

be solely owned by the Member concerned. 

 

Chapter 12: Amendments 

 

12.1   Any amendments to the Rules and Procedures of ASEANSAI shall be approved 

by the Assembly. 
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CHAPTER 7  

Head of SAI Words of 

Encouragement 
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Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member Towards Professionalism 

ASEANSAI as an organisation has undergone a metamorphosis, in less than a decade, 

from a ‘fledgling’ in its early years since 2011 towards now as a ‘young, dynamic 

organisation’, which as a close knit community of Supreme Audit Institutions, are 

actively contributing towards the betterment of the public sector in their respective 

countries through good governance and accountability vis-à-vis their audit activities. 

This is more so evident where all ASEANSAI member states, having strong working 

relationships and complementary synergies, are well represented in ASEANSAI via their 

participation in various committees that coordinate their committees’ activities 

together. The initiatives brought about by these committees have contributed towards 

the realisation of capacity building activities in the form of workshop, seminars as well 

as other forms of engagements geared suitably towards the ‘regional’ context of ASEAN. 

In this regard, the increasingly advanced and value-added programs and activities 

organised has catered towards the needs of ASEANSAI member states which has also 

contributed indirectly towards enhancing the professionalisation of the member SAIs. 

On another note, SAI Brunei Darussalam has acknowledged and recognised the efforts 

of ASEANSAI to adopt and utilise the common framework of the International Standards 

of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAIs) as a ‘conduit’ towards professionalisation by 

which SAI Brunei Darussalam is considering the adaptation of ISSAIs framework in ‘local 

context’. 

At the same time, as part of its reforms agenda in capacity building and strengthening 

institutional development, SAI Brunei Darussalam had been revising its own specific 

competency framework which needs to be aligned with Brunei Darussalam’s Civil 

Service Framework whilst also taking into consideration the INTOSAI Competency 

Framework that has just been recently endorsed during the INCOSAI 2019. 

Looking towards the future, the utilisation of new technology as a result of the fourth 

industrial revolution for example, such as big data, internet of things, cloud computing 

amongst others, as well as the dynamics of globalisation which has profound political 

socio-economic ramifications in the ASEAN region has contributed towards the 

Acting Auditor General of SAI Brunei 
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complexity of public sector’s operations. Thus, the challenges and uncertainties brought 

about by this ‘prismatic occurrences’ require ASEANSAI member states through their 

personnel to acquire relevant knowledge and skills that needs to be continuously 

enhanced as to contribute towards the effectiveness and credibility of their audit 

functions. 

Hence, ASEANSAI member states as the guardians of economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness for accountability and good governance in the public sector of their 

respective jurisdictions needs truly professional personnel to fulfil this unique role and 

the requirements of public sector auditing. 

That said, we hoped that ASEANSAI can continuously strive to achieve excellence in 

public auditing functions in delivering value and benefits to ensure continuing 

‘relevance’ and ‘visibility’ to their stakeholders in the near future. 
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CAPACITY BUILDING IN FINANCIAL AUDIT (FA)  

Experienced by National Audit Authority of Cambodia 

The National Audit Authority (NAA) was established by the Royal Kram CS/RKM/0300/10 

dated 03 March 2000 which promulgated the Audit Law of the Royal Government of 

Cambodia. The NAA, the Supreme Audit Institution of the Kingdom of Cambodia, has 

functioned as an external auditor of the Royal Government since 2001. The NAA has 

established a clear strategic direction for increasing professional competence, as well as 

ongoing institutional development. The core strategy of the NAA is to continue and 

enhance professional competence and institutional development.  

This would help NAA to actively perform the external audit of the Royal Government, 

and report to the National Assembly, Senate and the Government aimed at promoting 

good governance and improving the efficiency of the public sector, as well as 

contributing to the successful implementation of strategies, policies and reform 

programs of the Royal Government. The quality and professional audits serve as the 

most effective mechanisms for NAA to pinpoint gaps and provide recommendations for 

improvement.  

With this, the NAA is proud of our achievements from the implementation of the 

Strategic Development Plan. However, the need to continuously promote professional 

competence and institutional development is still a priority of the NAA to implement 

public audit works in line with public auditing standards of the Kingdom of Cambodia 

and the international auditing standards.  

In this regard, the NAA has better improved the implementation of the Financial Audit 

based on International Standards for Supreme Audit Institution (ISSAI). Through many 

initiatives, the NAA has cooperated with the Swedish National Audit Office (SNAO), 

joined the IDI-ASOSAI Program on ISSAI Implementation (3i Program), ASEANSAI Long 

Term Program for ISSAI Implementation (LTAPII) and cooperative audit for IDI-ASEANSAI 

on Financial Audit. With this participation and technical support, the NAA has developed 

the following results including (1) coaching pilot audit teams (2) Training a pool of 

Trainers (3) Developing Financial Audit Manual and (4) Developing Training Programs 

and Materials.  

Mrs. Som Kim Suor  

Auditor General 

National Audit Authority of Cambodia 
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On behalf of the NAA, I would like to express my sincere appreciation to the National 

Assembly, the Senate and in particular, the Royal Government, which have always 

supported the NAA. I would also like to express my gratitude to the audited entities and 

the citizens for their close cooperation, support and coordination in audit activities. In 

the meantime, I would also like to express my gratitude to all relevant development 

partners, as well as to the regional and international Supreme Audit Institutions for the 

technical and financial support to the NAA. I hope that the relevant stakeholders will 

remain the support to effectively implement the Strategic Development Plan, especially 

Financial Audit based on ISSAI.  

Finally, I would like to thank the management and staff of the NAA, who have been 

responsible for and actively involved in the implementation of activities so far, and I 

strongly hope for further efforts to successfully implement the Financial Audit based on 

ISSAI. 
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Since the Establishment of ASEANSAI on 16 Nov 2011, ASEANSAI is developing under the 

leadership of chairman and vice chairman of ASEANSAI from its member countries, the 

high involvement of Head of ASEANSAI Secretariat and the chairman of each ASEANSAI 

committee. Besides this, ASEANSAI has been actively participating in the activities of 

other regional organizations especially in ASOSAI and INTOSAI. 

Under ASENSAI, we have a chance to exchange the information and lesson learned from 

the issues occurred in the public sector audit of respective member countries. ASEANSAI 

is steering the member SAIs to conduct their public sector audit in line with ISSAI set by 

INTOSAI in collaboration with IDI and also other development partners. We all will 

always coordinate to see ASENSAI as a mature organization by enhancing ASEANSAI’s 

Member to Professionalism by means of sharing knowledge and experience gained from 

the public sector audit of respective member countries.  

We are greatly delighted that ASEANSAI has benefited much by organizing four 

committees, drawing up strategic plans and performing activities by each committee.  

Myanmar SAI has been taking active part in the activities of ASEANSAI. As a member 

country, we have made a good progress in enhancing human resources and compliance 

with international standards. We strongly believe that our friendly ties and cooperation 

within ASEANSAI will exist forever.  

Professor H.E U Maw Than 

Union Auditor General 

Office of the Auditor General of the Union, Myanmar 
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Words of Encouragement: “Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism” 

Leading an organization like the ASEANSAI is an experience like no other. We 

extend our sincerest appreciation to the State Audit Organization of Lao PDR, under the 

leadership of Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE, for the completion of its term as the 

Chairman of the ASEANSAI. For the past two years, we are proud to have worked with a 

wide range of dedicated individuals and organizations in the ASEANSAI region who are 

committed to its mission and overflowing with creativity and determination.  

With SAI Lao at the helm, the ASEANSAI has paved the way for improving 

professional capacity as well as promoting cooperation and good governance among 

members of the ASEANSAI. Further, the ASEANSAI was introduced to new experiences 

and opportunities such as enhanced system and tools for the implementation of the 

monitoring and evaluation system of the Strategic Plan, revised version of strategic 

development, and increased cooperation within the region and other international 

development partners. These have been made possible through the joint effort of the 

different committees that played an integral role in the successful implementation of 

the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan and of each Committee’s Work Plan.  

In particular, we at the Commission on Audit, SAI Philippines, as Chair of the 

Training Committee, actively contributed to the enhancement of professional capacity 

of ASEANSAI members by providing technical support through knowledge-sharing and 

capacity building on key audit subjects. SAI Philippines has spearheaded and 

accomplished various activities in relation to the ASEANSAI Strategic Objectives such as 

the Long-term ASEANSAI Programme on ISSAI Implementation (LTAPII) and its 

sustainability projects which include the preparation of courseware and conduct of the 

workshops on Financial Audit. Other accomplishments include the preparation of 

courseware and conduct of workshop on Fraud Audit Investigation; the conduct of 

follow-up workshop on the Audit of Public Procurement; and the support to SAI 

Vietnam, as the Strategic Planning Committee Chair, in reviewing and upgrading the 

monitoring and evaluation system of ASEANSAI and the preparation of its courseware 

to be used in the workshop delivery. These successes would not be possible if not for 

the support and cooperation of everyone, under the leadership of the State Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR. 

MICHAEL G. AGUINALDO 

Chairperson 

Commission on Audit 
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As the newly appointed Chairman of the ASEANSAI, we are confident that the Jabatan 

Audit Negara Malaysia will usher the organization to new heights and will be able to 

sustain the successes for the period 2020-2021 as we work collaboratively towards 

continuing to enhance professional capacity and promoting good governance in the 

ASEANSAI region.  
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As the newly appointed Auditor-General of Singapore, it is a great honour and privilege 
for me to join my fellow Heads of ASEAN SAIs in the journey to promote sharing of 
knowledge and experiences in the field of public sector auditing.   

The establishment of ASEANSAI was motivated by a common desire to build capacity, 

and promote cooperation and understanding among member SAIs.  Since its 

establishment in November 2011, ASEANSAI has had eight fruitful years during which 

we have achieved closer cooperation among member SAIs and enhanced the level of 

professionalism in our SAIs.  We also thank our partners from international organisations 

for their assistance. 

With the strong leadership provided by the Heads of SAIs and the dedication of the 
Secretariat and various working committees, ASEANSAI has made significant progress in 
achieving its strategic goals.  The various ASEANSAI events, led by the respective 
Committees, such as training workshops and knowledge sharing forums, have deepened 
capacity in each member SAI.  SAI Singapore is grateful to our fellow ASEANSAI members 
for hosting and conducting these events, which my staff have participated in and 
benefitted from.  SAI Singapore had the honour of hosting the “Instructors’ Design 
Meeting on the Updated ASEANSAI Public Procurement Audit Manual” in October 2019 
which saw participants develop the course and materials for the Workshop on the Audit 
of Public Procurement – Part 2.   

As the Chair of the Rules and Procedures Committee, I am pleased to announce that the 
Committee had made some refinements to the set of Rules and Procedures, taking into 
account new developments and feedback from member SAIs.  The enhancements to the 
Rules and Procedures aim to provide better clarity on the appropriate signatory for the 
financial statements and management representation letter of ASEANSAI as well as the 
Terms of Reference and areas to be included in the work plan of the various committees.  
A new chapter on Monitoring and Evaluation has been added to align this with the 
requirements under the ASEANSAI Guideline on Monitoring and Evaluation.  The 
Committee has also updated the requirements on reporting by committees. The revised 
Rules and Procedures will be tabled for approval at the 5th ASEANSAI Summit in Kuala 
Lumpur, Malaysia, in November 2019.  I would like to thank the SAIs of Brunei 
Darussalam, Lao People’s Democratic Republic, Malaysia and Thailand for their hard 
work as members of the Rules and Procedures Committee.   
 

GOH SOON POH 

Auditor-General of Singapore 
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I look forward to working with my fellow Heads of ASEAN SAIs to further promote 

professionalism, and enhance capacity and collaboration in the field of public sector 

auditing. 
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Enhancing ASEANSAI to Professionalism 

Way forward to promote auditors of the future: 

Adoption of Moscow Declaration 

From the ASEANSAI background, it is expected to encourage and promote good 

governance within our ASEAN region. Therefore, the first objective of ASEANSAI is to 

build capacity and promote cooperation and understanding among the members of 

ASEANSAI through the exchange and sharing of knowledge and experiences in the field 

of public sector auditing so as to strengthen the audit institutions. Likewise, ASEANSAI 

will provide an encouraging environment and facilities to promote research, training, 

and continuous education among the members of ASEANSAI through the sharing of best 

practices and exchange of lessons learned. 

Hence, ASEANSAI could promote capacity development for SAIs of ASEAN member 

states and technical cooperation dealing with important and common audit issues in the 

ASEAN region. 

However, the challenges of public auditing in the future have created a new 

environment and expectations for our SAIs community. For this reason, the XXIII 

INCOSAI during 25-27 September 2019 at Moscow, Russia was devoted to the discussion 

of how each SAI on a national level could relate to the public sector auditing 

developments and technological advancements to remain relevant, respond to the 

needs of stakeholders and add value by providing independent external oversight on the 

achievement of nationally agreed goals including those linked to the Sustainable 

Development Goals (SDGs).  

Finally, the fruitful meeting came up with the Moscow Declaration. The Declaration 

highlights the main conclusions of XXIII INCOSAI and the key areas where progress can 

be made in INTOSAI. 

The Moscow declaration focuses on the changes in public auditing and public policy 

worldwide. These recent changes in the environment for SAIs include: (a) adoption of 

the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development (2030 Agenda) and the SDGs by all 

member countries of the United Nations; (b) the data revolution; (c) the adoption of the 

INTOSAI Framework of Professional Pronouncements (IFPP), and (d) expectations and 

State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand 
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obligations arising from ISSAI-P 12: Value and Benefits of SAIs - making a difference to 

the life of citizens. Modern circumstances call for a quality of audit work, new audit 

approaches and require SAIs to further rethink their role in the governmental 

accountability processes. 

However, the declaration proclaims the future directions for public auditing depend on 

the SAIs’ and INTOSAI’s strong commitment to: (1) providing independent external 

oversight on the achievement of nationally agreed targets including those linked to the 

SDGs, (2) responding effectively to opportunities brought by technological 

advancement, and (3) enhancing the impact that SAIs make on public management 

accountability and transparency. 

From the enhancing SAIs’ impact, the Moscow declaration explains that SAIs are 

encouraged to nurture the auditors of the future who can employ data analytics, 

artificial intelligence tools, and advanced qualitative methods, enhance innovation; and 

act as strategic players, knowledge exchangers, and producers of foresight. 

Hence, another keyword of this declaration is “the auditors of the future” which related 

to the capacity development and professionalism for SAIs. Certainly, the important 

question is how to develop the auditors of the future. 

The Moscow Declaration clarifies that SAIs should ensure professionalization of their 

staff is a key objective. Competencies and skills of auditors are SAIs’ main asset. The new 

challenges in the audit environment and stakeholder expectations will shape new 

requirements for the skill sets of SAIs auditors. The auditors of the future should have 

new skills as follows: 

1. strategic thinking skills which covered feasibility analysis, hypothesis-driven 

thinking, identifying causal relationships, goal orientation, foresight, strategic 

planning, systems thinking, prioritization; 

2. data analytics skills which auditors have to work with datasets and databases, data 

visualization, and the presentation of complex data; and 

3. soft skills which auditors should have effective communication, emotional 

intelligence, building and maintaining trust based on professionalism, leadership, 

abilities to build consensus. 

In conclusion, ASEANSAI will step forward under new challenges which the auditors of 

the future are key success factor to promote our ASEANSAI to be professionalism. 
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It has been 8 years since the official establishment in November 2011, the 10 Supreme 

Audit Institutions of the South East Asian countries have gone hand in hand, conjointly 

experiencing ups and downs during the development course of the community and 

devoting the remarkable efforts to consistantly embark on the path to an ASEANSAI  of 

respect, professionalism and partnership. The State Audit Office of Viet Nam is proud to 

be a part of our Organisation, making the modest contributions to the whole.  

The State Audit Office of Viet Nam would also like to take this oppotunity to congratulate 

the State Organisation of Laos PDR and Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia for the excellent 

implementation of ASEANSAI Leadership for 2018-2019. Your endeavor in this term, like 

the predecessors’, have made us nothing but more united in spirit, professional in public 

auditing and closer to the strategic objectives and goals set in the ASSEANSAI Strategic 

Plan 2018-2021.  

A big appreciation goes to the Secretariat, the Committees and other member SAIs who 

have continuously tried to fulfill the mission and vision of the family ASEANSAI in general 

and have given the The State Audit Office of Viet Nam the treasured support for our 

successful discharge of the functions and tasks.  

The 2020-2021 is a turning point for our community as it marks the second end of the 

current Strategic Plan, also the very beginning of the new one. The State Audit Office of 

Viet Nam, as the chair of the Strategic Planning Committee, would like to call for your 

ultimate support for and attention on the achievement of the Plan and the formation of 

the new chapter of the Organisation’s development.     

I strongly believe that with the traditionally complete unity, the cooperative endeavor 

and the professionalism, ASEANSAI can overcome any challenges faced to the 

community in the time to come, especially against the contex that the world has now in 

motion of changing even faster and more complicated than any previous time. 

Toghether, will we make the things happen./.  

Dr. Hồ Đức Phớc 

The Auditor General of Viet Nam 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 8  

Summary of ASEANSAI 

Meeting 
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MINUTES OF MEETING OF 4th ASEANSAI SUMMIT 

6th November 2017 

Landmark Mekong Riverside Hotel, Vientiane, Lao PDR 

1.  DATE AND VENUE 

1.1  The 4th ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions (ASEANSAI) Summit was held on 6th 

November 2017. 

1.2  The event took place in Grand Ballroom, Landmark Mekong Riverside, 

Vientiane, Lao PDR. 

2.  PARTICIPANTS OF THE ASEANSAI SUMMIT 

2.1  The 4th ASEANSAI Summit was attended by 60 delegates from: 

i)  Jabatan Audit Brunei Darussalam (SAI Brunei); 

ii)  National Audit Authority of Kingdom of Cambodia (SAI Cambodia); 

iii)  The Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia (SAI Indonesia); 

iv)  The State Audit Organization of Lao P.D.R. (SAI Lao); 

v)  Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia (SAI Malaysia); 

vi)  Office of the Auditor General of the Union, the Republic of the Union 

of Myanmar (SAI Myanmar); 

vii)  The Commission on Audit of the Republic of Philippines (SAI 

Philippines); 

viii)  Auditor-General’s Office of Singapore (SAI Singapore); 

ix)  Office of the Auditor General of Thailand (SAI Thailand); and 

x)  State Audit Office of Vietnam (SAI Vietnam). 

xi)  Observers from: 

1)  ASEAN Secretariat 

2)  Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit 

(GIZ) GmbH; 
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3)  World Bank 

4)  Swedish National Audit Office 

The list of attendees is as attached in ANNEX 1. 

3.  WELCOMING ADDRESS BY THE VICE CHAIRPERSON OF ASEANSAI 

3.1  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE, Vice Chairperson of ASEANSAI and 

President of State Audit Organization of Lao PDR delivered her Welcoming 

Address. 

3.2  In her speech, Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE: 

 Emphasized that ASEANSAI has continually developed itself by investing in 

technical capacity building and development of public audit for all member of 

ASEANSAI. 

 Highlighted that ASEANSAI has emphasized and regarded the internal and 

external cooperation as the key to improving its role regionally and 

internationally. 

 ASEANSAI has successfully tailored and implemented the ASEANSAI Strategic 

Plan 2014-2017. A number of productive activities have been conducted through 

the Action Plan of the relevant Committees. 

 Expected that the upcoming Strategic Plan 2018 – 2021 will be able to strengthen 

capacity and to promote cooperation among the member SAIs. 

The full text of the Welcoming Address is as attached in ANNEX 2. 

4.  OPENING ADDRESS BY THE CHAIRPERSON OF ASEANSAI 

4.1  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor, Chairperson of ASEANSAI and Auditor 

General of National Audit Authority of Cambodia delivered the Opening 

Address. 

4.2  In her speech, Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor 

 Conveyed a brief accomplishment made by the ASEANSAI since the 3rd ASEANSAI 

Summit in November 2015 in Cambodia. Those accomplishments cannot be 

reached without participations and contributions of SAI members, governments 

of each respective SAIs members together with the Development Partners. 

 Stated common challenges that ASEANSAI has to face and require collaboration 

from all members, such as financial constraints for activities implementation, 

restructuring of the Secretariat, the implementation of the Strategic Plan 2018-

2021 and the application of the Principle of Consensus which demands more 

time and resources because of each SAI member’s different procedures and 

needs. However, differences in language and tradition require a compromise 

among the ASEANSAI members. 
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 Took the opportunity to express her sincere gratitude to all heads of SAI 

members and partners for the supports and for the invaluable inputs during her 

tenure. 

The full text of the Opening Speech is as attached in ANNEX 3. 

5.  SPEECH BY THE CHAIR OF ASOSAI 

5.1  His Excellency Datuk Juhari bin Haron, Representative Chairman of ASOSAI and 

Deputy Auditor General of Malaysia delivered the speech. 

5.2  In his speech, His Excellency Datuk Juhari bin Haron: 

 Stated that ASOSAI has made progress and achievements in promoting greater 

efficiency, accountability, effectiveness and transparency have found its place in 

the United Nations General Assembly Resolution A/66/209 and United Nations 

Post 2015 Agenda 

 Informed that ASOSAI has constantly supported its member SAIs in achieving its 

goals through two main pillars, which are capacity development initiatives and 

fruitful knowledge sharing. 

 The role of SAIs in auditing government activities will always have the support 

from ASOSAI. Therefore, ASOSAI will always create opportunities to collaborate 

with INTOSAI and ASEANSAI Community. 

 Finally, ASOSAI welcomes any form of collaboration from ASEANSAI especially on 

the auditing of the United Nations Agenda 2030: Sustainable Development Goals 

or SDGs. 

The full text of the Welcoming Address is as attached in ANNEX 4. 

6.  SPEECH BY ASEAN SECRETARIAT 

6.1  His Excellency Mr. AKP Mochtan, Deputy Secretary General of ASEAN delivered 

the speech. 

6.2  In his speech, His Excellency Mr. AKP Mochtan: 

 Emphasized that ASEANSAI can play pivotal role in strengthening ASEAN’s 

governance, which subsequently contributes to the regional integration process. 

 Wished to call on the ASEANSAI to explore the prospect to be auditor for the 

ASEAN Secretariat 

 Stated that the ASEANSAI’s role in developing capacity of Supreme Audit 

Institutions of ASEAN Member States and strengthening technical cooperation 

to deal with common audit issues with a view to enhancing good governance in 

the ASEAN region is indispensable.  

 Expressed support to ASEANSAI and ASEANSAI Secretariat in the new year of 

chairmanship.  
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The full text of the speech Deputy Secretary General of ASEAN is as attached in 

ANNEX 5. 

7.  SPECIAL ADDRESS BY DEPUTY PRIME MINISTER OF THE LAO PDR 

7.1  His Excellency Mr. Sonexay SIPHANDONE, Deputy Prime Minister of the Lao 

PDR delivered the Special Address. 

7.2  In his speech, His Excellency Mr. Sonexay SIPHANDONE: 

 Iterated ASEAN has initiated regional cooperation mechanisms which provided a 

solid platform for ASEAN’s engagement with Dialogue Partners and external 

parties. It also created opportunities to engage with one another on important 

regional and global issues with a view to find appropriate ways and means to 

enhance cooperation and address common challenges together. 

 Highlighted that ASEAN has recognized the important role of ASEANSAI in 

translating the Blueprints into policies, programs, and projects in line with the 

respective legislation of ASEAN Member States. This role has been incorporated 

as one of the cooperation areas within the ASEAN Community Vision 2025. 

 Emphasized that one of the important responsibilities of the Supreme Audit 

Institutions is the promotion of anti-corruption in the functioning and 

governance of the state which will enhance trust and confidence of the public as 

well as domestic and foreign investors. Most importantly it will support the 

development of the ASEAN Community through strengthening good governance 

and transparency in the public sector. 

 Expected that the Summit will provides a great opportunity to agreed upon 

future actions towards contributing to the effective realization of ASEAN 

Community Vision objectives including strengthening the rule of law, 

maintaining financial and monetary stability, implementation of socio-economic 

development plans, the fight and prevention against corruption, and promotion 

of investment, among others. 

The full text of the Special Address is as attached in ANNEX 6. 

8.  PHOTO SESSION 

8.1  After the speeches, there were group photos for all Heads of delegate and for 

all Heads, delegates and guests. 

9.  SPEECH BY CHAIRMAN OF INTOSAI 

9.1  His Excellency Dr. Harib Saeed Al Amimi, President of SAI UAE and Chairman of 

INTOSAI delivered a speech through video recording. 

9.2  In his speech, Dr. Harib Saeed Al Amimi: 
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 Highlighted the importance of engagement between regional and sub regional 

organization. In the global level, the regional and sub regional is expected to 

assist SAIs in the coordinated and professional manner. 

 Emphasized the challenge of SAIs is to meet the increasing demands from the 

stakeholders for professional and quality audits. To fulfill this demand, many 

countries will need assistance from the regional and sub regional organization. 

The main challenge is to make the capacity sufficient to provide the expertise 

and technical support suitable with the SAI’s need. 

 Believed that by understanding the global standard and providing tools to SAIs 

to meet the requirement should be implemented to regional and sub regional 

responsibility. It is a challenge but INTOSAI will seek to support ASEANSAI 

through various channels. 

 Taken note of the IDI’ role in ASEAN region and encouraged more linkages (such 

as financial auditing and accounting subcommittee – which is chaired by SAI 

UAE). He found the importance to support one another. 

 Wished the success of ASEANSAI Summit and awaiting for the outcome. 

10.  4th ASEANSAI SUMMIT MEETING SESSION I 

10.1  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor chaired the 4th ASEANSAI Summit and 

opened the meeting by highlighted remarkable achievements of the ASEANSAI. 

She also extended her appreciation and admiration to all ASEANSAI 

committees, Secretariat Function and Administration Function. 

10.2  She gave a brief acknowledgment on the recent development by each 

ASEANSAI Committee. Then she moved to the meeting agenda items for the 

Meeting Session I. 

The full text of the remarks can be seen in ANNEX 7. 

11.  Agenda 1: Reports ASEANSAI Committees and Approval Activity Report 

11.1  Report by Chair of Strategic Planning Committee 

11.1.1  His Excellency Dr. Ho Duc Phoc, Auditor General Vietnam conveyed an 

introduction for the report of the Strategic Planning Committee and invited Ms. 

Ha Thi My Dung, Director General of International Cooperation Department, 

SAI Vietnam representing Chair of ASEANSAI Strategic Planning Committee 

(SPC): 

 Reported the activities conducted by the SPC since the last ASEANSAI Summit in 

November 2015 until 2017. 

1)  SPC finalized and communicated the Monitoring and Evaluation system (MES) 

to all members SAIs for comprehensive application in ASEANSAI 
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2)  SPC finalized ASEANSAI Strategic Plan (SP) 2018 – 2021 with the contribution of 

all SPC members and Committee Chairs, especially technical support from GIZ. 

3)  SPC developed the Work Plan for period 2018 – 2019 

 Informed that after four years of implementation, some challenges were 

identified including insufficient inputs in quantitative and qualitative analysis in 

Committee Progress Report by Committee Chairs and consequently Annual 

Result Report by SPC in measuring the overall implementation of the SP 2014 – 

2017. 

 Highlighted the new SP will focus on continuing capacity development, 

promoting good practices, strengthening ASEANSAI’s role and influencing 

actively in the region and knowledge sharing. 

 Informed that during the period, SPC has well performed its responsibilities in 

terms of both carrying out its primary mandate and coordinating with the 

Secretariat in monitoring the implementation of the SP. 

The presentation slide can be seen in ANNEX 8a and report of the SPC as in 

ANNEX 8b. 

11.1.2  After the report by SPC, His Excellency Madam Som: 

 Expressed her appreciation for the comprehensive progress reporting 

 Invited the Assembly to approve the progress report of the Strategic Planning 

Committee for 2015-2017. 

11.1.3  The meeting endorsed the Report of SPC for period of 2015 – 2017 

11.2  Report by Chair of Rules and Procedures Committee 

11.2.1  His Excellency Mr. Willie Tan Yoke Meng, Auditor-General of Singapore and the 

Chairman of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures Committee (RPC): 

 Informed that the RPC had reviewed and amended the Rules and Procedures 

after the signing of the Protocol on amending the ASEANSAI Agreement in 

December 2016 and other feedback received from ASEANSAI members. 

 Highlighted that the revised Rules and Procedures will better serve the needs of 

ASEANSAI and provide useful guidance on ASEANSAI’s financial, administrative 

and secretariat matters.  

 Extended his sincere gratitude to the members of the Rules and Procedures 

Committee for their contributions and their willingness to be reappointed as 

Committee members in work years 2018 and 2019. 

The report of the RPC can be seen in ANNEX 9. 
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11.2.2  After the report from RPC, Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor: 

 Expressed appreciation to the RPC for reporting the progress and their effort on 

revising the Rules and Procedures of ASEANSAI. 

 Invited the Assembly to approve the progress report of the Rule and Procedures 

Committee. 

11.2.3  The meeting approved the Report of RPC for the period 2015 – 2017. 

11.3  Report by Chair of Knowledge Sharing Committee 

11.3.1  His Honorable Mr. Roslan bin Abu Bakar, Director of Research, Corporate and 

International Affairs Division JAN Malaysia and Representative Chairman of 

ASEANSAI Knowledge Sharing Committee (KSC): 

 Reported that nine projects were completed under KSC in 2016, consist of three 

series of Focus Group Discussion on Research in Revenue Audit, one Knowledge 

Sharing Project on Audit of Health Services, one Workshop on Public Private 

Partnership and 4 series of Long Term ASEANSAI Programme on ISSAI 

Implementation (LTAPII). 

1)  The three series of FGDs are completed and the Research Project Report on 

Revenue Audit and the ASEANSAI Guideline on Revenue Audit as the outcome 

has been published. 

2)  Knowledge Sharing Project on Audit of Health Services involved sharing 

knowledge about research on Health Services Auditing and National Health 

Security, Techniques/Audit Procedures of National Social Security System and 

Lesson Learned from Performance Auditing on National Health Security at 

General Public Hospital. Other participating SAIs also has successfully 

presented their country papers. 

3)  The project has successfully gathered experts in such field such as university 

professors, researchers, economists, engineers, prosecutors and anti-

corruption agencies to contribute their perspectives in PPP Project. Five critical 

topics were extensively discussed namely; PPP and the importance of auditing 

economic value added project; overview of auditing PPP; legal perspectives and 

macroeconomic policy; promoting good governance in PPP and sharing audit 

experiences in PPP project. 

 Reported that nine projects were completed under KSC in 2016, consist of Focus 

Group Discussion on Audit of Revenue, Knowledge Sharing Project on Audit of 

Health of Services, Workshop on Public Private Partnership and the Long-Term 

ASEANSAI Programme on ISSAI Implementation (LTAPII).  

The presentation slide can be seen in ANNEX 10a and report of the KSC as in 

ANNEX 10b. 
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11.3.2  After the report from KSC, Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor: 

 Expressed appreciation to KSC for reporting the progress of research project on 

Revenue Audit which is a compendium of best practice related to auditing 

revenue. 

 Invited the Assembly to approve the progress report of the Knowledge Sharing 

Committee. 

11.3.3  The meeting approved the Report of KSC for the period 2015 – 2017. 

11.4  Report by Chair of Training Committee 

11.4.1  Mrs. Susana S. Medez, Assistant Director Commission on Audit of Philippines 

and Representative Chairman of ASEANSAI Training Committee (TC): 

 Presented the accomplishments of the TC and explained the activities for 2015- 

2017 based on the classification as the following: 

1)  Design and Development 

2)  Implementation of LTAPII Projects 

3) Delivery of Training 

4)  Evaluation of TC Results 

The presentation slide can be seen in ANNEX 11a and report of the TC as in 

ANNEX 11b. 

11.4.2  After the report from TC, Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor: 

 Expressed appreciation to TC for reporting the progress in relation to the 

continuation of Long-term Program on ISSAI Implementation (LTAPII).  

 Invited the Assembly to approve the progress report of the Training Committee. 

11.4.3  The meeting approved the Report of TC for the period 2015 – 2017. 

11.5  Report by Head of Administration Function 

11.5.1  Mr. Chea Sophat, Director International Relations Department National Audit 

Authority of Cambodia and Head of Administration Function reported on the 

administrative works conducted since November 2015 until 2017: 

 Reported that in coordination with the Secretariat Function, Administration 

Function has providing support to Executive Committee for some ASEANSAI 

events. 

 Reported that Administration Function has provided administrative support to 

the Chairperson of ASEANSAI, facilitated collaboration and management of 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 
 

 

communication flow among ASEANSAI members, prepared the transfer of 

Chairmanship 

The report of the Administration Function can be seen in ANNEX 12. 

11.5.2  After the report from Administration Function, Her Excellency Madam Som Kim 

Suor: 

 Thanked the Head of the Administrative Function for reporting on the progress 

made particularly in relation to coordination and support to the Executive 

Committee for the last 2 years. 

 Invited the Assembly to approve the progress report of the Administration 

Function. 

11.5.3  The meeting approved the Report of Administration Function for the period of 

2015 - 2017. 

11.6  Report by Head of Secretariat Function 

11.6.1 His Excellency Dr. Moermahadi Soerja Djanegara, Chairman of the Audit Board 

of Indonesia conveyed the introductory statement: 

 Informed that the report is a form of accountability of Secretariat and good 

demonstration of ASEANSAI’s commitment to organizational strength. 

 Highlighted the roles and responsibilities of Secretariat as mandated by the 

Agreement of ASEANSAI. 

 Invited Honorable Dr. Hendar Ristriawan, Secretary General Audit Board of the 

Republic of Indonesia and Head of Secretariat Function to report the detail 

secretariat work from 2015 to 2017. 

 His Honorable Dr. Hendar Ristriawan, reported the activities conducted by the 

Secretariat in the duration of 2015 – 2017 in the following roles and 

responsibilities: 

1)  Responsible to the Chairperson of ASEANSAI by submitting of the activity report 

through Executive Committee. 

2)  To assist the Executive Committee in managing the work of the Assembly 

through facilitating various meeting, collaborating with SPC to encourage 

alignment of Committee’ Work Plan with ASEANSAI Strategic Plan, compiling 

the ASEANSAI budget 2018 – 2019 based on inputs from the Committees. 

3)  To manage the finances of ASEANSAI by preparing the Financial Statement for 

year ended 31 December 2016 and Interim Financial Statement as of 

September 2017 which disclosed funds received from the Annual Contribution 

and from the donors. 

4)  To keep record and documents of ASEANSAI 
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5)  To maintain communication with external parties by informing the result of the 

Donor Coordination Meeting held on 5 November 2017. Secretariat is planning 

to establish foundation for the communication platform with donors. The 

platform will involve coordination and information among donors working with 

SAIs in ASEAN and ASEANSAI (through portal of communication) and scooping 

mission (as initial engagement with the donors). 

6)  To perform any other duties as directed by the Executive Committee. 

The presentation slide can be seen in ANNEX 13a and report of the Secretariat 

Function as in ANNEX 13b. 

11.6.2  After the report from Secretariat Function, Her Excellency Madam Som Kim 

Suor: 

 Expressed her appreciation on the progress made particularly in relation to the 

coordination with donors and ASEANSAI members and also for supporting the 

Executive Committee for the last 2 years. 

 Invited the Assembly to approve the progress report of the Secretariat Function. 

11.6.3  The Assembly approved the Report of Secretariat Function for the period of 

2015 - 2017. 

12.  Agenda 2: Approval of the Revised Rules and Procedures of ASEANSAI 

12.1  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor recapped that the Rules and Procedures 

have been revised following the signing of the protocol on amending the 

ASEANSAI Agreement in December 2016 which paved the way for the 

establishment of a longer Secretariat with 6-year term. 

12.2  Her Excellency Madam Som highlighted that as a result of the above, Rule and 

Procedures Committee has revised the ASEANSAI’s Rules and Procedures which 

was adopted in the 2nd ASEANSAI Summit in 2013. 

12.3  Her Excellency Madam Som also emphasized that the revised Rules and 

Procedures were discussed and agreed at the 4th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ 

Meeting in August, 2017 in Siem Reap, Cambodia with some additions and 

supplementation to the existing Rules and Procedures as follows: 

 Adding paragraph 1.5 related to seeking comments and decision from the 

ASEANSAI Assembly 

 Editing paragraph 1.11 related to notification on the termination of ASEANSAI 

membership. 

 Editing paragraph 4.8 related to the work plan of each committee to be aligned 

with the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan and adding paragraph 4.16 related to the 

Monitoring and Evaluation System of ASEANSAI 
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 Revising Part 5 regarding the nomination and procedure for appointing the 

Secretariat, its function and resources for the Secretariat’s operations 

 Adding Part 10 related to Protection of Intellectual Property Right to be in line 

with Article 2 of the Protocol Amending the Agreement on the Establishment of 

ASEANSAI. 

12.4  The Assembly approved the revised Rules and Procedures which can be seen in 

ANNEX 14. 

13.  Agenda 3: Appointment and Approval of the ASEANSAI Secretariat 

13.1  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor iterated Paragraph 5.2 of the ASEANSAI 

Rules and Procedures which has been approved under the previous Agenda 

item, which stated that: 

 during the transitional period, the Assembly could retain the existing Secretariat 

to continue their work until the appointment of the new Secretariat. 

13.2  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor recalled that the 4th Senior Officials’ 

Meeting had agreed to support SAI Indonesia self-nomination to be the 

Secretariat for 2018- 2023 and the appointment will be approved in the 4th 

ASEANSAI Summit. 

13.3  The Assembly approved of the appointment of SAI Indonesia as the Secretariat 

for 2018-2023. 

13.4  H.E. Dr. Moermahadi Soerja Djanegara, Chairman of the Audit Board of the 

Republic of Indonesia conveyed a statement: 

 Expressed his appreciation to all ASEANSAI members, for entrusting SAI 

Indonesia to be the long term ASEANSAI Secretariat for the period of 2018 – 

2023. 

 Assured that SAI Indonesia will continue its commitment as the driving force and 

maintain the sustainability of ASEANSAI for the benefit of all its members. 

 Stated that SAI Indonesia will submit all requirements and documents needed as 

the long term Secretariat in accordance with the revised rules and procedures. 

13.5  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor expressed her gratitude to SAI Indonesia 

for its commitment. 

14.  Agenda 5: Appointment of New Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of 

ASEANSAI for 2017-2019 

14.1  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor iterated Article 6 of the Agreement on 

the Establishment ASEANSAI stating that: 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 
 

 

 Appointment of the Chairman and Vice Chairman is rotated in alphabetical order 

of country name unless decided otherwise by the Assembly; 

 The term of office of the Chairman of ASEANSAI shall be for two years; and 

 The Vice Chairman shall be the next Chairman. 

14.2  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor highlighted that based on the result of 

the 4th Senior Officials’ Meeting, State Audit Organization of Lao PDR accepted 

to be the Chair of ASEANSAI and Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia will be the Vice 

Chair for the period of 2017 to 2019. 

14.3  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor invited the Assembly to approve the 

appointment of State Audit Organization of Lao PDR as Chair and Jabatan Audit 

Negara Malaysia as Vice Chair of ASEANSAI from 2017 to 2019. 

14.4  The meeting approved the appointment of the State Audit Organization of Lao 

PDR as the Chair of ASEANSAI and Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia as the Vice 

Chair of ASEANSAI. 

14.5  Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor then officially handed over the ASEANSAI 

Chairmanship by handing over the ASEANSAI Gavel and an ASEANSAI Book 

entitled “Spirit of togetherness for Achievement” to Her Excellency Dr. 

Viengthong Siphandone, President of SAI Lao PDR. 

15.  4th ASEANSAI SUMMIT MEETING SESSION II 

15.1  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE, newly appointed Chairperson of 

ASEANSAI and President of State Audit Office of Lao PDR delivered the opening 

address: 

 Extended her appreciation to the outgoing Chairperson of ASEANSAI, H.E. 

Madam Som Kim Suor and her gratitude to all committees for their immense 

achievements. 

 Encouraged the close-knit cooperation from all parties to achieve the 

ASEANSAI’s objectives 

 Invited all of head of SAIs and all the international organizations to broaden 

knowledge sharing and capacity development of ASEANSAI and to address the 

current challenges encountered by the ASEANSAI community. 

The full text of the Opening Address is as attached in ANNEX 15. 

15.2  His Excellency Dato Juhari bin Haron, representative of newly appointed Vice 

Chairperson of ASEANSAI and Deputy Auditor General Jabatan Audit Malaysia 

delivered the remarks: 

 Expressed that SAI Malaysia has been looking forward to expand its vast 

knowledge and experiences. Also iterated that ASEANSAI members are not only 
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close to each other geographically, but also close at heart as the ASEANSAI 

family. 

 Sought cooperation from ASEANSAI members to render its supports. The full text 

of the remarks is as attached in ANNEX 16. 

15.3  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE chaired the Meeting Session II and 

started the meeting by recalling the result of the Meeting Session I. 

15.4  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE mentioned the remaining agenda 

items for the meeting session II: 

 Approval of the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan 2018 – 2021 

 Appointment and Approval of ASEANSAI Committees 

 Appointment and Approval of ASEANSAI Auditor for Financial Statements for 

Year Ended 2016 and 2017 

 Presentation and Approval of ASEANSAI Committees’ Work Plans, and Budget 

Plan of the ASEANSAI Secretariat for the period 2018 – 2019 

15.5  The meeting participants approved the agenda of the Meeting Session II. 

16.  Agenda 5: Approval of the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan 2018 – 2021 

16.1  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE recalled that the process of the 

development of ASEANSAI Strategic Plan 2018 – 2021 started since August 

2016. She mentioned that SAI Vietnam as the Chair of the Committee has 

circulated the draft to all members SAIs and incorporated inputs received from 

the circulation into the draft Strategic Plan. 

16.2  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE stated that the final draft has been 

presented and agreed upon during the 4th Senior Official Meeting. 

16.3  Ms. Ha Thi My Dung presented the final draft of the Strategic Plan on behalf of 

Chair of Strategic Planning Committee. 

 Informed that based on the 4th SOM in August 2017, SAI Vietnam as SPC Chair 

has incorporated all contributions from its members and Committees’ Chairs to 

finalize the last version. The contributions were mainly the adding in term of 

activities, budget and time to implement projects and activities led by 

Committees’ Chairs.  

 Presented the agreed Strategic Goals (SG) and Strategic Objectives (SO) and 

highlighted that during period of 2018 – 2021, ASEANSAI will put its focus on 

continuing capacity development, pushing up the communication channels with 

ASEAN and international partners, supporting member SAIs to utilize 

performance related tools and concepts as well as conducting SDG- related 

auditing that align with INTOSAI efforts in launching capacity development 
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programs on SDGs. In addition to that, the improvement of organizational 

governance of ASEANSAI is of high priority. 

 Highlighted the implementation of the SP will be performed in selective and 

efficient manner. 

 Encouraged the distribution of activities/ projects under each SG and SO. The 

presentation slide can be seen in ANNEX 17a and final draft of the Strategic Plan 

2018-2021 as in ANNEX 17b. 

16.4  The Assembly approved the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan for the year 2018 – 2021. 

17.  Agenda 6: Appointment and Approval of ASEANSAI Committees 2018 - 2019 

17.1  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE restated the result of the 4th 

ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting in Cambodia: 

 SAI Vietnam will continue as the Chair of Strategic Planning Committee 

 SAI Singapore will continue as the Chair of the Rules and Procedures Committee 

 SAI Malaysia will continue as the Chair of the Knowledge Sharing Committee 

 SAI Philippines will continue as the Chair of the Training Committee. 

17.2  The Assembly approved the appointment of the Chair of ASEANSAI Committees 

for the period 2018 - 2019. 

17.3  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE also informed that the 

Committees’ membership for the period of 2018 – 2019 remains the same as 

the previous committees’. The current composition of the ASEANSAI 

committees: 

 Strategic Planning Committee SAI Vietnam is the Chair and it has a total of six 

members which are SAI Brunei, Indonesia, Lao PDR, Malaysia, Philippines and 

Thailand. 

 Rules and Procedure Committee SAI Singapore is the Chair and the four members 

are SAI Brunei, Lao PDR, Malaysia and Thailand. 

 Knowledge Sharing Committee SAI Malaysia is the Chair and there are seven 

members which are SAI Brunei, Cambodia, Lao PDR, Myanmar, Philippines, 

Thailand and Vietnam. 

 Training Committee SAI Philippines is the Chair with four members, SAI Brunei, 

Indonesia, Malaysia and Thailand. 

17.4  The Assembly approved the membership of the ASEANSAI Committees for the 

period 2018 - 2019. 

18.  Agenda 7: Appointment and Approval of ASEANSAI Auditor for Financial 

Statements for Year Ended 2016 and 2017 
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18.1  Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE: 

 Expressed her gratitude to Office of the Auditor General of Thailand for their 

valuable time and immense effort in auditing the ASEANSAI’s financial 

statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015. 

 Restated the result of the 4th Senior Officials’ Meeting that Office of the Auditor 

General of Thailand has expressed its interest to become the auditor for the 

ASEANSAI’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 

December 2017. 

 Iterated the ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures paragraphs [9.42 and 9.43 tha 

Members of ASEANSAI (other than those in the Executive Committee and 

Secretariat) may volunteer to be the auditor, which may also be re-appointed, 

subject to the approval of the Assembly. 

 Invited the Assembly to approve SAI Thailand to be re-appointed as the Auditor 

for ASEANSAI financial Statements for the year 2016 and 2017. 

18.2  The Assembly approved the re-appointment of SAI Thailand as the Auditor for 

ASEANSAI Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 

December 2017. 

18.3  His Excellency General Chanathap Indamra, Chairman of the State Audit 

Commission of Thailand gave his confirmation of acceptance for the 

appointment as the ASEANSAI Auditor for the year ended 31 December 2016 

and 31 December 2017. 

19.  Agenda 8: Presentation and Approval of ASEANSAI Committees’ Work Plans 

and Budget for 2018 – 2019 

19.1  Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE invited the Committees to present the 

work plan for 2018 – 2019. 

19.2  Executive Committee Work Plan 

19.2.1  His Exellency Padapphet Sayakhot, Vice President State Audit Office of Lao PDR 

and representative of the Executive Committee (EC) presented the proposed 

Work Plan for 2018 – 2019: 

 Informed that the EC Work Plan for 2018 – 2019 cascades from the Strategic 

Goals 5. 

 The activities conducted aimed at expanding cooperation with ASEAN, ASOSAI, 

INTOSAI, IDI and AIPA. 

The proposed work plan can be seen in ANNEX 18. 

19.2.2  The Assembly approved the Executive Committee Work Plan for the year 2018 

– 2019. 
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19.3  Strategic Planning Committee Work Plan 

19.3.1  Ms. Ha Thi My Dung, Director General of International Cooperation 

Department State Audit Vietnam and representative Chair of ASEANSAI 

Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) presented he proposed Work Plan for 2018 

– 2019: 

 Delivered the consideration for need to review and upgrade Monitoring and 

Evaluation System (MES) for better application based on the result of SPC’s 

identification: 

1)  The MES was unable to capture comprehensive picture of ASEANSAI activities 

with full information. 

2)  The difference in level of understanding on the application of the MES among 

the committees which led to invalid measuring activity/event conducted 

3)  The Key Performance Indicator (KPI) approach was unable to produce qualified 

annual Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) Report to provide sufficient 

information in setting the baseline/target. 

The presentation slide and proposed work plan can be seen in ANNEX 19a and 

ANNEX 19b. 

19.3.2  The Assembly approved the Strategic Planning Committee Work Plan for the 

year 2018 – 2019. 

19.4  Rules and Procedures Committee Work Plan 

19.4.1  His Excellency Willie Tan Yoke Meng, Auditor-General of Singapore as the Chair 

of Rules and Procedures Committee presented the proposed Work Plan for 

2018 – 2019. 

 Presented that for period of 2018 – 2019, Rules and Procedures Committee will 

focus on reviewing and proposing improvements to the Rules and Procedures 

(R&P), where appropriate. Proposed revisions to the R&P if any would be 

circulated to member SAIs for comments before they are finalized for approval 

at ASEANSAI Assembly. 

The proposed work plan can be seen in ANNEX 20. 

19.4.2  The Assembly approved the Rules and Procedures Committee Work Plan for 

the year 2018 – 2019. 

19.5  Knowledge Sharing Committee Work Plan 

19.5.1  His Honorable Mr. Roslan Bin Abu Bakar Director Research, Corporate and 

International Affairs Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia and representative Chair of 
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Knowledge Sharing Committee presented the proposed Work Plan for 2018 – 

2019. 

 To support the implementation of ISSAIs and other INTOSAI good practices by 

conducting Knowledge Sharing on awareness for good practices about SAI 

Independence and continuing activities of LTAPII phase 2 

 To promote good performance of member SAIs by updating procurement audit 

manual and conducting Instructor’s Design Meeting (IDM) on the updated Audit 

Public Procurement (WAPP) 

 To support member SAIs to fulfill their role towards the successful achievement 

of the SDGs by building awareness on SDGs-related audit issues 

The presentation slide and proposed work plan can be seen in ANNEX 21a and 

ANNEX 21b. 

19.5.2  The Assembly approved the Knowledge Sharing Committee Work Plan Work 

Plan for the year 2018 – 2019. 

19.6  Training Committee Work Plan 

19.6.1  Mrs. Susana S. Medez, Assistant Director Commission on Audit of Philippines 

and representative Chair of Training Committee presented the proposed Work 

Plan for 2018 – 2019. 

 To support the implementation of ISSAIs and other INTOSAI good practices 

through the Project Evaluation Meeting at Senior Officials level/ Wrap Up 

meeting for LTAPII 

 To promote good performance of member SAIs by raising awareness workshop 

for member SAIs on SAI PMF, conducting Follow Up Workshop for Workshop on 

Audit of Public Procurement (WAPP) (including the success stories, challenges, 

lesson learned, input for updating the Public Procurement Audit Manual), 

conducting Workshop on Fraud Audit/ Investigation, conducting Instructor’s 

Design Meeting (IDM) on the updated Manual on Audit of Public Procurement, 

conducting Workshops on Audit of Public Procurement (Phase II) and concluding 

with the Audit Review & Wrap Up Meeting. 

 To support member SAIs to fulfill their role towards the successful achievement 

of the SDGs by developing/ compiling briefing materials on the SDGs for 

ASEANSAI auditors and continued by conducting briefing on the SDGs for 

auditors. 

The presentation slide and proposed work plan can be seen in ANNEX 22a and 

ANNEX 22b. 
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19.6.2  Mrs. Luz L. Tolentino from Comission on Audit of Philippines, addressed an 

issue related to the hosting of some activities under the Training Committee 

and seek for confirmation from relevant SAIs. 

 SAI Philippines confirmed to host the Follow Up on Workshop on Audit of Public 

Procurement (FU-WAPP). 

 SAI Indonesia confirmed as the host for the Workshop on Fraud Audit/ 

Investigation and SDGs Building awareness on SDGs-related audit issues 

19.6.3  The Assembly approved the Training Committee Work Plan for the year 2018 – 

2019. 

19.7  ASEANSAI Secretariat Work Plan and Budget Compilation 

19.7.1  His Excellency Dr. Moermahadi Soerja Djanegara, Chairman of the Audit Board 

of the Republic of Indonesia; 

 conveyed introductory statement by stating that support for Secretariat Work 

Plan will help create a collective vision of ASEANSAI internally and raise its profile 

externally. 

 Iterated that the focused of the Secretariat Work Plan are actively promoting SAI 

independence, expanding cooperation with international SAI partners and 

stakeholders, expanding cooperation with international donors and improving 

the management and organization of ASEANSAI. 

 Invited Honorable Dr. Hendar Ristriawan, Secretary General Audit Board of the 

Republic of Indonesia and Head of Secretariat Function to explain the details of 

Secretariat Work Plan. 

19.7.2  Honorable Dr. Hendar Ristriawan presented: 

 to promote safeguarding the independence of member-SAIs and in particular on 

how this intersects with the ASEAN Inter-Parliament Assembly (AIPA) by 

conducting meetings/joint seminars on the importance of SAI independence 

with AIPA 

 to extend and strengthen the existing relations with ASEAN and the ASEAN 

Economic Agenda (AEC) by building of connections within ASEAN region which 

can deliver a wider and solid common purpose, for SAI independence, and in 

other critical areas. 

 to expand cooperation with international SAI partners, stakeholders and 

international donors by building stronger communication and coordination 

mechanisms with ASOSAI and INTOSAI, including establishing MoUs, will help 

integrate procedures and provide means of ensuring high standards in auditing 

practices. 
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 to improve management and organization of ASEANSAI by enhancing the 

internal and external communication strategy, streamline internal coordination, 

and maintain transparent management of ASEANSAI Finances. 

 budget compilation from all committees for the 2018 – 2019 activities 

The presentation slide, proposed work plan and budget compilation 2018-2019 can 

be seen in ANNEX 23a, ANNEX 23b and ANNEX 23c. 

19.7.3  The Assembly approved the Secretariat Work Plan for the year 2018 – 2019. 

19.7.4  The Assembly approved the ASEANSAI Budget Compilation for the period of 

2018 – 2019. 

20.  Closing ASEANSAI Summit 

19.8  Her Excellency Dr. Vienthong Siphandone expressed her sincere gratitude to all 

Head of SAIs and representatives for the good understanding and cooperation 

so the meeting progressing smoothly as planned. 

19.9  Her Excellency Dr. Vienthong Siphandone summarized the key results of the 

Summit as following: 

 Highly congratulated Her Excellency Madam Som Kim Suor for excellent and 

successful leadership of ASEANSAI for 2015-2017. 

 Congratulated SAI Malaysia for becoming the Vice Chairperson of ASEANSAI. 

 Congratulated the Audit Board of Republic of Indonesia for its appointment as 

the ASEANSAI Secretariat for the next six years. 

 Reiterated her gratitude to SAI Vietnam, Singapore, Malaysia, and the Philippines 

for the voluntary nomination to continue chairing the Strategic Planning 

Committee, Rule and Procedures Committee, Knowledge Sharing Committee 

and Training Committee, respectively. 

 Expressed her appreciation for the untiring effort of the Chairs and all the 

members of the Committees for collaborating and providing supports to the 

implementation of Committee’s Work Plan and ASEANSAI Strategic Plan. 

 Extended her gratitude to His Excellency General Chanathap Indamra, Chairman 

of the State Audit Commission of Thailand as the Auditor for the ASEANSAI 

Financial Statement for the financial year 2016 and 2017. 

 Restated the approved Work Plans of ASEANSAI Committees and the Secretariat 

including the Budget Compilation: 

1)  The Executive Committee is committing on (1) improving the cooperation with 

regional and international partners, and (2) strengthening organizational 

governance of ASEANSAI through a range of support projects and activities 

2)  The Strategic Planning Committee is planning to (1) review for upgrading MES; 

disseminate the updated MES to all member SAIs, identifying the training needs 
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for the MES and conduct trainings; (2) to monitor and Evaluate the 

implementation of ASEANSAI Strategic Plan for 2018 – 2021 by using MES, and 

arrange annual monitoring; (3) Develop two-year SPC’ WPs for the period 2020 

– 2021; and (4) Initiate the ASEANSAI SP 2022 – 2025. 

3)  The Rules and Procedures Committee is planning to review and propose 

improvements to the ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures (R&P) where 

appropriate. 

4)  The Knowledge Sharing Committee is planning to (1) Build awareness on SDGs-

related audit issues ;(2) Identify prioritized SDGs-related audit through survey 

to prepare courseware; (3) Conduct knowledge sharing workshop on audit of 

SDGs; and (4) Develop guidelines on SDGs – related audit based on IDI- KSC 

guidance 

5)  The Training Committee is planning to (1) Conduct follow-up workshop for the 

Audit of Public Procurement (WAPP); (2) Develop the briefing Materials on the 

SDGs for the ASEANSAI Auditors; (3) Conduct the briefing on the SDGs for the 

Auditors; (4) Raise awareness of member SAIs on SAI PMF (through conducting 

awareness workshop); (5) Update Procurement Audit Manual taking into 

consideration the Post-Workshop Report; (6) Instructor's Design Meeting on 

the updated Audit of Public Procurement; (7) Conduct workshops on Audit of 

Public Procurement; (8) Conduct of Pilot Audit; (9) Review and wrap up 

6)  The Secretariat is planning to carry out a number of activities that (1) support 

the implementation of ISSAI and other INTOSAI good practices; (2) strengthen 

ASEANSAI active role within ASEAN agenda; (3) improve the cooperation with 

regional and international partners; and (4) strengthen organizational 

governance of ASEANSAI. 

19.10  Her Excellency Dr. Vienthong Siphandone officially declared the closing of the 

4th ASEANSAI Summit. 

19.11  The meeting ended at 16:15 pm. 
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MINUTES OF MEETING OF 5TH ASEANSAI SENIOR OFFICIALS’ MEETING 

4 - 5 July 2019 

Crown Plaza Hotel, Vientiane, Lao PDR 

1.  DATE AND VENUE 

1.1  The 5th ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions (ASEANSAI) Senior Officials’ Meeting 

(SOM) was held on 4th until 5th July 2019. 

1.2  The event took place in Crown Plaza Hotel, Vientiane, Lao PDR. 

2.  PARTICIPANTS OF THE 5th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting 

2.1  The 5th ASEANSAI SOM was attended by 30 senior officials / delegates from: 

i)  Jabatan Audit Brunei Darussalam (SAI Brunei); 

ii)  National Audit Authority of Kingdom of Cambodia (SAI Cambodia); 

iii)  The Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia (SAI Indonesia); 

iv)  The State Audit Organization of Lao P.D.R. (SAI Lao); 

v)  Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia (SAI Malaysia); 

vi)  Office of the Auditor General of the Union, the Republic of the Union 

of Myanmar (SAI Myanmar); 

vii)  The Commission on Audit of the Republic of Philippines (SAI 

Philippines); 

viii)  Auditor-General’s Office of Singapore (SAI Singapore); 

ix)  State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand (SAI Thailand); and 

x)  State Audit Office of Vietnam (SAI Vietnam). 

 

The list of participants is attached as ANNEX 1. 

3.  SPEECH BY HEAD OF ASEANSAI SECRETARIAT 
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3.1  The Honorable Mr. Bahtiar Arif, Secretary General of the Audit Board of the 

Republic of Indonesia delivered a speech in his capacity as Head of ASEANSAI 

Secretariat. 

3.2  In his speech, Mr. Bahtiar Arif  

 Conveyed his sincere appreciation to the State Audit Organization of Lao PDR for 

hosting and excellent organizing the 5th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting 

(SOM). 

 Pointed on the importance of the 5th ASEANSAI SOM as the participants will 

discuss strategic issues for the sustainability of ASEANSAI in the future, especially 

on the improvement of management and organization of ASEANSAI. 

 Mentioned that the meeting aimed to discuss and finalize 2nd revision of the 

Rules and Procedures, upgraded Guideline on Monitoring and Evaluation 

System, Guideline on Audit of Public Procurement, cooperation with 

development partners and other important administrative issues of ASEANSAI. 

 Informed all participants on the achievements of ASEANSAI during the period of 

2018 – 2019. 

Full text of the speech is attached as ANNEX 2. 

4.  OPENING SPEECH BY THE CHAIRPERSON OF ASEANSAI 

4.1  Her Excellency Dr. Mrs. Viengthong SIPHANDONE, Chairperson of ASEANSAI 

and President of the State Audit Organization of Lao PDR delivered the Opening 

Speech. 

4.2  In her speech, Her Excellency Dr. Mrs. Viengthong SIPHANDONE: 

 Welcomed all participants warmly and also conveyed her sincere appreciation to 

all members SAIs of ASEANSAI in nominating senior officials to attend the 5th 

ASEANSAI SOM. 

 Highlighted the importance of the meeting which are to review, discuss and 

approve some crucial issues. She convinced that with the eight years’ successful 

operation of ASEANSAI with mutual understanding and cooperation among 

member SAIs and striving effort, the meeting will accomplish its objectives. 

 Wished to have successful meeting and fruitful outcomes. 

The full text of the Opening Speech is attached as ANNEX 3. 

5.  PHOTO SESSION 

5.1  After the speeches, all the delegates posed for photo sessions with Her 

Excellency Dr. Mrs. Viengthong SIPHANDONE. 

6.  5TH ASEANSAI SENIOR OFFICIALS’ MEETING 
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6.1 Mr. Bahtiar Arif presided the 5th ASEANSAI SOM and opened the meeting by 

explaining the rules and procedure of the meeting as well as the meeting 

agenda. The presentation slides are attached as ANNEX 4. 

6.2  Agenda 1: Finalization of the revised draft of the ASEANSAI Rules and 

Procedures 

6.2.1  Mr. Arif invited Ms. Julie Ng from SAI Singapore on behalf of the Chair of 

ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures Committee to present the revised draft of he 

ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures. The latest version of the revised draft and 

consolidated comments matrix can be seen in ANNEXES 5a and 5b. 

6.2.2  Ms. Julie Ng thanked the committee members for their contribution and all 

ASEANSAI members for their valuable inputs. 

6.2.3  Ms. Julie Ng shared that the latest draft, incorporating the inputs of member 

SAIs, has been circulated to all member SAIs in early June 2019. The revisions 

included the additional chapter on Monitoring and Evaluation, refinements to 

provide better clarity and editorial changes. 

6.2.4  The meeting participants agreed that the revised ASEANSAI Rules and 

Procedures would be tabled at the 5th ASEANSAI Summit for approval. 

6.3 Agenda 2: Finalization of the draft upgraded ASEANSAI Guidelines on 

Monitoring & Evaluation System 

6.3.1  Mr. Arif invited Mr. Phan Truong Giang from SAI Vietnam on behalf of the Chair 

of ASEANSAI Strategic Planning Committee to explain the final draft of 

upgraded ASEANSAI Guideline on Monitoring & Evaluation System. 

6.3.2  In their presentation, SAI Vietnam summarized the components of the 

Monitoring & Evaluation System (MES); how MES was developed, revised and 

applied, as well as the new revisions and updates in 2018. SAI Vietnam 

informed that the draft ASEANSAI Guideline on MES is still under review and to 

be adjusted accordingly, and hopefully it could be submitted and endorsed at 

the 5th ASEANSAI Summit in November 2019. The latest version of the draft 

ASEANSAI Guideline on MES and presentation slide are as attached as ANNEXES 

6a and 6b. 

6.3.3  The meeting participants agreed to table the upgraded ASEANSAI Guideline on 

Monitoring & Evaluation System at the 5th ASEANSAI Summit. 

6.4   Agenda 3: Finalization of the ASEANSAI Guideline on Audit of Public 

Procurement 

6.4.1 Mr. Arif invited Honorable Datuk Zulkipli Bin Abdullah, Deputy Auditor General 

(Governance) from SAI Malaysia as the representative Chair of the Knowledge 
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Sharing Committee to present the development of the ASEANSAI Guidelines on 

Audit of Public Procurement. 

6.4.2  Datuk Zulkipli summarized the development process; changes made in the 

updated guideline; proposed framework; challenges and comments received 

on the exposure draft. He mentioned that SAI Thailand will follow through the 

comments on the Exposure Draft and issue the final copy of the draft guidelines 

in August, 2019. Finally, SAI Malaysia proposed the Guidelines on Audit of 

Public Procurement to be endorsed in the 5th ASEANSAI Summit in Kuala 

Lumpur, November 2019. The draft Guidelines and presentation slides can be 

seen in ANNEXES 7a and 7b. 

6.4.3  Mr. Arif asked about the possibility of conducting further survey/report on the 

application of the guidelines and knowledge sharing activities among ASEANSAI 

members on the audit of public procurement. 

6.4.4  Datuk Zulkipli responded by suggesting that the survey can be done after 

conducting a training on the revised guidelines. Ms. Azizah further explained 

that the next step after the endorsement of the Guidelines, is to design a 

courseware in collaboration with the Training Committee, followed by a 

training/workshop for the dissemination of the guidelines. 

6.4.5  Mrs. Susana Medez, Training Committee representative of SAI Philippines, 

later confirmed that the Instructors’ Design Meeting will be conducted in 

Singapore in October 2019. The meeting aims to revise the current courseware 

based on the revised guidelines, and will be followed by a series of activities 

such as a training workshop in June 2020, actual conduct of audit in August to 

November 2020 and an Audit Review Meeting (ARM) in May 2021. The ARM 

will include discussions on lessons learned, success stories and challenges 

encountered during the pilot audits. 

6.4.6  Mr. Arif asked whether the draft of the revised guidelines also addresses the 

issue on e-procurement. Datuk Zulkipli responded that issues on 

eprocurement were not tackled in the draft guidelines but these issues may be 

addressed in the near future. 

6.4.7  The meeting participants agreed to bring the revised ASEANSAI Guidelines on 

Audit of Public Procurement to the 5th ASEANSAI Summit for endorsement. 

6.5  Agenda 4: Presentation and Discussion on the ASEANSAI Committees’ Work 

Plan 2020 – 2021 

6.5.1  Mr. Arif invited representatives from each Chair of ASEANSAI Committees to 

present their draft Work Plan for 2020 – 2021. He further informed that the 

Work Plan aims to illustrate each Committees’ activities for the next two years. 
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6.6  Agenda 4.1: Strategic Planning Committee 

6.6.1  Mr. Phan Truong Giang, representing the Chair of the ASEANSAI Strategic 

Planning Committee (SPC), presented in their draft Work Plan for 2020 – 2021. 

The draft and presentation slide can be seen in ANNEXES 8a and 8b. 

6.6.2  Mr. Giang informed that for the next two years, SPC will focus on three main 

activities as follows; (1) conducting annual review and assessment on the 

implementation of the Strategic Plan for 2020-2021, (2) conducting training on 

MES Guideline for all ASEANSAI members, (3) developing the Strategic Plan for 

the 2022 - 2025. 

6.6.3  SAI Vietnam presented the planned activities for year 2020: (1) disseminate 

approved MES; (2) prepare the annual results report for 2020; (3) conduct the 

monitoring & evaluation; and (4) prepare the Strategic Plan for 2022 – 2025 

(1st draft). While for the activities in 2021: (1) finalise the Strategic Plan 2022-

2025, (2) prepare the Work Plan of the SPC for 2022 – 2023, (3) prepare the 

Annual Results Report 2021; and (4) conduct the monitoring and evaluation. 

6.6.4  SAI Vietnam raised three issues related to the upcoming activities: 

 Whether the training on MES for all members should be conducted after 

approval in early 2020; 

 Whether there will be discussion on the orientation, vision, mission for the next 

Strategic Plan in the upcoming summit; 

 Whether the next Strategic Plan will be drawn up for a period of five years 

instead of current three years. 

6.6.5  Mr. Arif asked clarification whether the training on MES will be conducted 

under the Work Plan Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) or Training 

Committee (TC). Ms. Susana Medez from SAI Philippines responded that the 

training on MES should form part of the WP of the SPC, and not the TC. She 

further stated that the courseware for the said training is ready to be delivered. 

SAI Vietnam may coordinate with SAI Philippines on when to conduct the 

training. 

6.6.6  Mr. Arif asked the possibility to have a session during the Summit to discuss 

more about the orientation, vision, missions for the next Strategic Plan of 

ASEANSAI. SAI Malaysia responded this issue may be discussed in Technical 

Meeting one day prior to the Summit. 

6.6.7  The meeting participants agreed that SAI Vietnam will circulate the first draft 

of the orientation, vision, missions for the next Strategic Plan of ASEANSAI two 

months before the Summit (i.e. 6 September 2019). After receiving responses 

from all members, the Secretariat will facilitate a teleconference among 
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ASEANSAI members to discuss and formulate the 1st draft. The draft will be 

brought at the Technical Meeting prior to the Summit for finalization. 

6.6.8  Mr. Arif recommended that the Strategic Planning Committee to take into 

consideration on the time frame in finalizing the draft Strategic Plan in the year 

2021 by referring to the schedule of the 6th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting, 

the circulation process and approval from the Assembly at the 6th ASEANSAI 

Summit in 2021. 

6.6.9  SAI Singapore conveyed its view that a four-year period of the current Strategic 

Plan is aligned with the consecutive two-year period of the Committees’ Work 

Plan, Committees’ Chairmanship and ASEANSAI Chairmanship. 

6.6.10  The meeting participants agreed to keep the Strategic Plan for four-year period. 

6.7  Agenda 4.2: Executive Committee 

6.7.1  Mr. Heng Khantavisay from SAI Lao PDR explained about the Work Plan of the 

Executive Committee (EC) for 2020 – 2021. The draft EC Work Plan for 2020 – 

2021 and presentation slides can be seen in ANNEXES 9a and 9b. 

6.7.2  Ms. Azizah binti Daud from SAI Malaysia informed that the EC Work Plan has 

been circulated among SAI Malaysia and SAI Myanmar as upcoming Executive 

Committee for comments. They both agreed on the draft Executive 

Committee’s Work Plan for 2020 – 2021. 

6.8  Agenda 4.3: Knowledge Sharing Committee 

6.8.1  Ms. Azizah binti Daud as the representative of the Chair of ASEANSAI 

Knowledge Sharing Committee (KSC) presented the draft Work Plan for 2020 – 

2021. She mentioned that for the two-years period of the work plan will 

contribute to the implementation of the Strategic Goal 2, 3 and 6. The draft 

Work Plan for 2020 – 2021 and presentation slides can be seen in ANNEXES 10a 

and 10b. 

6.8.2  Ms. Azizah binti Daud further asked the respective SAIs for their confirmation 

to host KSC’s activities in 2020 - 2021. 

6.8.3  SAI Vietnam confirmed to host the activity Knowledge Sharing Design Meeting 

of SDGs Auditing in June 2020. 

6.8.4  SAI Lao PDR informed that they will provide at a later date their confirmation 

as host for the KSC Biennial Program Evaluation Meeting for 2020-2021 (August 

2021) later. 

6.8.5  SAI Thailand confirmed to host the KSC Biennial Program Meeting for 2020-

2021 in March 2020. 
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6.8.6  SAI Brunei confirmed to host the Knowledge Sharing Session to all ASEANSAI 

Members in September 2020. 

6.9  Agenda 4.4: Training Committee 

6.9.1  Ms. Susana Medez from SAI Philippines presented the Training Committee’s 

Work Plan for 2020 – 2021. The activities contributed to the Strategic Goals 1 

and 2. The draft ASEANSAI Training Committee’s Work Plan 2020 – 2021 and 

presentation slides can be seen in ANNEXES 11a and 11b. 

6.9.2  She also asked the respective SAIs to give their confirmation to host the 

Training Committee’s activities in 2020 - 2021. 

6.9.3  SAI Myanmar confirmed to host the Training on SAI PMF in November 2020. 

6.9.4  SAI Singapore asked about the possibility of swapping with SAI Vietnam to host 

the Audit Review Meeting on WAPP Phase 2; and to schedule it around 

September 2021. SAI Philippines will discuss with SAI Singapore and SAI 

Vietnam to work out the revised schedules. 

6.9.5  SAI Malaysia confirmed to host the Workshop on Compliance Audit in August 

2020. 

6.9.6  SAI Lao PDR informed that they will confirm at a later date for the hosting the 

Audit Review Meeting on Compliance Audit in July 2021. Since they have been 

requested to host the KSC Biennial Program Evaluation Meeting in August 2021. 

6.9.7  SAI Thailand confirmed to host the Workshop on Performance Audit in October 

2020. 

6.9.8  The Secretariat will compile all 2020 – 2021 committees’ activities in a form of 

calendar to provide comprehensive list of ASEANSAI activities in next two years. 

This also aims to avoid overlapping activities in term of timing and hosting SAIs. 

6.10  Agenda 4.5: Rules and Procedures Committee 

6.10.1  Ms. Julie Ng from SAI Singapore presented the Rules and Procedures 

Committee’s Work Plan for 2020 – 2021. The activities would contribute to the 

Strategic Goal 6. The draft Work Plan can be seen in ANNEX 12. 

6.10.2  SAI Malaysia suggested a face-to-face meeting for the Rules and Procedures 

Committee. SAI Singapore responded that the Rules and Procedures 

Committee could meet biennially (once in two years) if need be, or could also 

consider the use of video-conferencing if this would be more efficient. Other 

members of Rules and Procedures Committee were invited to share their views, 

if any. 
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6.10.3  Mr. Arif raised the issue related to the proposal from SAI Malaysia about the 

legal capacity of ASEANSAI to have engagement with external parties. It brings 

to the proposal to amend the ASEANSAI Agreement to add the legal capacity 

clause in the Agreement of ASEANSAI. 

6.10.4  To accommodate the proposal and to anticipate the possibility of amending the 

ASEANSAI Agreement in the coming years, it is agreed that the process of 

amending the Agreement will be undertaken by the Executive Committee in 

coordination with the Secretariat. 

6.10.5  It was also agreed that the Rules and Procedures Committee will make 

necessary changes to align the Rules and Procedures with the revised ASEANSAI 

Agreement only after the Assembly has approved amendments to the 

Agreement. 

6.10.6  An Executive Committee Meeting will be organized with one of the agenda to 

discuss the possibility to amend the ASEANSAI Agreement. Relevant 

committees will be invited to the said meeting in order to get comprehensive 

information and better understanding for the necessary follow up. 

6.11  Agenda 4.6: Secretariat 

6.11.1  Ms. Ami Rahmawati from SAI Indonesia presented the Secretariat’s Work Plan 

for 2020 – 2021. The activities are related to the Strategic Objective 4.1; 5.1; 

5.2; 6.1 which are more focused on maintaining the relations with the ASEAN, 

expanding cooperation with SAIs in other regions, stakeholders and 

international donors; and on improving management organization of the 

ASEANSAI. The draft Work Plan and presentation slides can be seen in ANNEXES 

13a and 13b. 

6.11.2  All meeting participants agreed to bring the Committees’ and Secretariat’s 

Work Plans to the 5th ASEANSAI Summit for obtaining approval. 

6.12  Agenda 5: Agenda 5th ASEANSAI Summit 2019 

6.12.1  Datuk Zulkipli from SAI Malaysia presented the proposed agenda for the 5th 

ASEANSAI Summit in November 2019. He mentioned that the series of 

meetings will be started from 4 to 7 November 2019 with the following details: 

 First day (4 November 2019) is scheduled for a preparatory meeting to be 

participated by SAI Lao PDR, SAI Malaysia, SAI Myanmar and SAI Indonesia.  

 Second Day in the morning of 5 November 2019 is allocated for a Donor 

Coordination Meeting continued with a Technical Meeting in the afternoon to 

be attended by representatives from 10 SAIs of the ASEAN region. A dry run is 

organized after the dinner and will be attended by SAI Lao, SAI Malaysia, SAI 

Myanmar and SAI Indonesia. 
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 Third day (6 November 2019) is set for the 5th ASEANSAI Summit. 

6.12.2  Mr. Chea Sophat from SAI Cambodia suggested to switch Agenda 9 with 

Agenda 10. Agenda 9 will be the Appointment and Approval of ASEANSAI 

Auditor for Financial Statements for Year Ended 2018 and 2019 while Agenda 

10 will be on Exposure Raising Awareness on SAI PMF for High Level. 

6.12.3  Ms. Nguyen Thi Be Ngoc from SAI Vietnam raised the issue to present (1) 

Annual Result Report 2018; (2) vision and mission for the upcoming Strategic 

Plan; (3) shift agenda 8 to agenda 4 at the ASEANSAI Summit. 

6.12.4  Mr. Arif sought clarification whether there is a necessity to endorse vision and 

mission at the 5th ASEANSAI Summit. 

6.12.5  In responding to SAI Vietnam suggestion, SAI Cambodia recommended: 

 approval of progress report for 2018 – 2019 instead of Annual Result Report 2018 

 retains the Agenda 8 in the session 2 to consider the role of SAI Malaysia as the 

Chair of KSC and take over as the Chairman of ASEANSAI. 

6.12.6  It was agreed that the progress report and presentation of vision and mission 

for the upcoming Strategic Plan of ASEANSAI will be tabled at the Agenda 1: 

Reports ASEANSAI Committees and Approval Activity Report. 

6.12.7  Ms. Azizah raised the issue whether it is compulsory or customary to add the 

speeches from IDI, ASEAN and AIPA at the ASEANSAI Summit considering the 

time constraint in one day Summit. 

6.12.8  It was agreed to remove the speech of IDI since the latter is invited to attend 

the Donor Coordination Meeting, as part of the development partners, prior to 

the Summit. IDI and other development partners of ASEANSAI will be invited to 

attend the ASEANSAI Summit as the observer. 

6.12.9  For ASEAN and AIPA, they will be invited to deliver individual speeches at the 

5th ASEANSAI Summit as a follow up from the ASEAN-ASEANSAIAIPA Joint 

Seminar held this February 2019. The ASEANSAI aims to maintain good 

relations with them. 

6.12.10  The latest version of the 5th ASEANSAI Summit Agenda based on the discussion 

can be seen in ANNEX 14. 

6.13  Agenda 6: Other Matters 

6.13.1  Ms. Ami Rahmawati from SAI Indonesia presented the Draft Financial 

Statement 2018 and Interim Financial Statement 2019 (can be seen in ANNEX 

15):  
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i.  In 2018, ASEANSAI received 2018 Annual Contribution with total amount of 

USD 6,300 from nine (9) members, since one SAI already settled their payment 

in 2017. 

ii.  Secretariat also received advance payment for 2019 Annual Contribution with 

total amount USD 2,800 from four (4) members SAIs. 

iii.  In 2018, ASEANSAI have liabilities to the Public Accountant Firm to pay the 

remaining audit fees on World Bank Project Financial Report in 2019. 

iv.  Due to the end of the grant agreement at the end of 2018, and no more 

activities LTAPII to be funded by the World Bank fund, the remaining 

receivables are written off. 

v.  As of 30 April 2019, ASEANSAI received annual contribution of three (3) SAI 

members with total amount of USD 2,100. 

vi.  In 2019, in relation to the closing project ASEANSAI – German Government, 

ASEANSAI has received grant from them in the form of equipment. 

6.13.2  Mr. Arif recommended that for the ASEANSAI Summit, the Interim Financial 

Statement made as of 31 October 2019 shall be prepared. This aims to disclose 

the remaining ASEANSAI Fund and Annual Contribution received by the 

ASEANSAI to the newly appointed ASEANSAI Chairman. 

6.13.3  Ms. Ami from SAI Indonesia presented the ASEANSAI proposed budget for 2020 

– 2021. She explained that the proposed budget is prepared by each committee 

to anticipate if there are development partners who will be interested to 

support the ASEANSAI projects in the coming two years. These proposed 

budgets can be used to negotiate and discuss with the respective development 

partners. 

6.13.4  In order to get a clear picture for the funding, Mr. Arif suggested that before 

the Donor Coordination Meeting in November 2019, the Secretariat will 

contact development partners to discuss the activities and its budget. 

6.13.5  For the appointment of ASEANSAI Committees for 2020 - 2021, Mr. Arif quoted 

Chapter 4 of the ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures. He invited each current 

committee to confirm its Chairmanship and members of the Committee. 

i.  SAI of Vietnam confirmed to reassume the Chairmanship of the Strategic 

Planning Committee and no changes on the membership; 

ii.  SAI of the Philippines confirmed to reassume the Chairmanship of Training 

Committee and no changes on the membership; 
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iii.  SAI of Malaysia confirmed to reassume the Chairmanship of Knowledge Sharing 

Committee and no changes on the membership; and 

iv.  SAI of Singapore confirmed to reassume the Chairmanship of Rules and 

Procedures Committee and no changes on the membership. 

6.13.6  For the Appointment of Auditor for Financial Statement for Year Ended 31 

December 2018 and 31 December 2019, Mr. Arif quoted Chapter 10 of the 

ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures. He also mentioned the previous ASEANSAI 

Auditors such as; SAI Myanmar (FY 2012 and 2013), SAI Thailand (FY 2014 and 

2015) and SAI Thailand (FY 2016 and 2017). 

6.13.7  Mr. Arif invited SAI Thailand to confirm its role as the ASEANSAI Auditor for the 

next period. 

6.13.8  Mr. Sirat Srisoontornpinit from SAI Thailand confirmed that their SAI will 

reassume as the ASEANSAI Auditor for Financial Statements for Year Ended 31 

December 2018 and 31 December 2019. 

6.13.9  Ms. Ami from SAI Indonesia presented the status of cooperation between 

ASEANSAI and development partners: 

i.  The cooperation between ASEANSAI and the German Government 

implemented through GIZ began in November 2013 and has ended in 

November 2018. Taken into consideration that several ASEANSAI activities still 

require support, the German Government extends assistance to ASEANSAI until 

April 2019 without additional funding. A closing event was organized in 

February 2019. 

ii.  The cooperation with World Bank has ended in September 2018 with the total 

available fund USD 325,000 which supported the Long Term ASEANSAI 

Programme on ISSAI Implementation (LTAPII) Phase 2 on establishing a pool of 

ISSAI facilitators on Financial Audit. 

iii.  Along with the closing project, a report has been submitted to the World Bank 

and the Financial Report has been audited by a Public Accounting Office. The 

remaining fund of the project has been returned to the World Bank in May 

2019. 

iv.  European Union (EU) shows their interest to support ASEANSAI activities. 

Concept note for the scheme cooperation of ASEANSAI – EU has been circulated 

to ASEANSAI members on 12 November 2018 and Secretariat has received 

response from ASEANSAI members. Currently, EU is still on their administrative 

process of advancing to the next steps. 
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v.  The cooperation with SAI Norway started in November 2017 by their 

attendance in the Donor Coordination Meeting. They expressed their 

willingness to support the implementation of SAI PMF. They also opened to 

support other areas as proposed by the ASEANSAI by providing technical 

assistance. 

vi.  The collaboration with SAI Sweden will end in September 2019. The Secretariat 

has circulated the draft renewal MoU on 12 April 2019 and received feedback 

from the ASEANSAI members. It is expected that the MoU will be able to be 

signed at the 5th ASEANSAI Summit. 

vii.  The cooperation with INTOSAI Development Initiative (IDI) has started in 2018 

in the area of Cooperative Financial Audit. Currently, IDI has offered an MoU 

with ASEANSAI to extend the area of cooperation and support. The Secretariat 

and IDI are still discussing for the detail MoU, after which the draft MoU will be 

disseminated to all ASEANSAI members. 

viii.  ASEANSAI has received invitation from the INTOSAI Donor Secretariat to join a 

workshop which will be held in September 2019 in Manila, Philippines in order 

to improve the relations with donors. IDI will cover flight expenses while ADB 

will bear the accommodation costs. Currently, ASEANSAI is awaiting official 

letter from the INTOSAI Donor Secretariat which will be distributed to all 

ASEANSAI members. 

6.13.10  Mr. Giang raised two issues on (1) how ASEANSAI utilizes the support from 

donor in effective and efficient manner (2) the need to extend the cooperative 

audit projects in the future. 

6.13.11  Mr. Arif responded that to show effective and efficient implementation of 

donor support, he mentioned to establish capacity building information 

system. This is to monitor the progress of participants from each SAIs after 

attending training/ knowledge sharing activities as well as its benefit to their 

SAI. Also in tracking the career development of the participants who attended 

the training/ knowledge sharing ASEANSAI activity. Mr. Arif added that 

ASEANSAI has not yet created a supporting application/ system. 

6.13.12  Mr. Arif also responded to the need for a cooperative audit by suggesting the 

Knowledge Sharing Committee to propose a cooperative audit in certain audit 

areas for ASEANSAI members. 

6.13.13  Mr. Pannuchit Posayanonda from SAI Thailand raised an idea in creating a 

handbook for detail profiles of SAIs in ASEANSAI. This is to enrich general 

information in the ASEANSAI website. SAI Thailand also offered their support 

to be the project leader in developing this project. 
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6.13.14  Mr. Arif suggested that the project to upgrade the profile of ASEANSAI 

members will be under the work plan of the Secretariat with SAI Thailand as 

the project leader. 

6.13.15  Mr. Arif concluded the result for Agenda 6 as the follows: 

i.  The Financial Statements 2018 and Interim Financial Statement 2019 as of 31 

October 2019 will be presented at the Summit; 

ii.  The proposed budget for 2020 – 2021 will be submitted to the Secretariat to be 

compiled and circulated to all members; 

iii.  There are no changes for ASEANSAI Committees’ chairmanship and their 

members; 

iv.  SAI Thailand will reassume as the ASEANSAI Auditor; 

v.  Donor Cooperation report and potential support will be reported at the 

Summit; and 

vi.  To seek possibility to develop system to monitor the effectiveness of donor 

support. 

6.13.16  Ms. Azizah from SAI Malaysia, as the host SAI for the 5th ASEANSAI Summit, 

requested to receive all the documents by certain time line for logistical 

arrangement. 

6.13.17 In response to an enquiry on the timeline, SAI Singapore shared that in 

accordance with the ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures, the materials for the 

Summit shall be circulated to the members at least two (2) months in advance 

(i.e. 6 September 2019) from the date of the Summit. 

6.13.18  Mr. Arif reconfirmed to each committee for their preparedness to submit 

within the time frame. All Committees agreed to submit the materials for the 

Summit on 6 September 2019 at the latest. 

7.  CLOSING 

7.1  Mr. Arif conveyed way forward of the Senior Officials’ Meeting result as 

follows: All the meeting participants agreed to bring the finalisation of the 

revised draft of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures, draft upgraded ASEANSAI 

Guideline on Monitoring & Evaluation System, ASEANSAI Guideline on Audit of 

Public Procurement, ASEANSAI Committees’ Work Plan 2020 – 2021, Agenda 

5th ASEANSAI Summit 2019, proposed budget 2020 - 2021 for ASEANSAI 

activities and other matters to the 5th ASEANSAI Summit for Assembly’s 

approval. 
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7.2  He further extended his thanks to all meeting participants and looked forward 

to seeing them in the ASEANSAI Summit, in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia in 

November 2019. 

7.3  There being no other matters, the meeting ended at 03:00 noon. 
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CHAPTER 9  

Significant speeches 
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OPENING SPEECH 

PRESIDENT OF THE STATE AUDIT ORGANIZATION OF LAO PDR 

VICE CHAIRPERSON ASEANSAI 

VIENTIANE, LAO PDR, 5 NOVEMBER 2017 

 

 

 His Excellency Dr. Moermahadi Soerja Djanegara, Chairman of the Audit Board 

of the Republic of Indonesia 

 Honorable Mr. Hendar Ristriawan, Head of ASEANSAI Secretariat Function and 

Secretary General the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia 

 Honorable Mr. Chea Sophat, Head of ASEANSAI Administration Function and 

Director of International Relations Department National Audit Authority of 

Kingdom of Cambodia 

 Honorable representatives Chair of Committees  

 Honorable representatives from development partner, German Government, 

World Bank, Swedish National Audit Office, ADB, SAI Norway, European Union 

to Lao PDR and British Embassy in Vientiane  

 Distinguished Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

Good Morning,  

First of all, allow me to express our pleasure and privilege in hosting this 

ASEANSAI Donor Coordination Meeting. On behalf of the State Audit Organization of Lao 

P.D.R, I am pleased to welcome you to Vientiane. This meeting will be a milestone for 

ASEANSAI and development partner to build a constructive and beneficial cooperation 

for the sake of growth for ASEANSAI and ASEAN region.  

Ladies and Gentlemen,  

ASEANSAI is an important institution in ensuring that growth targets are met, 

especially in regard to the issue of Sustainable Development Goals as global initiative to 

improve the lives of people. The past successes of ASEANSAI in promoting competency 

development of auditors and in developing ISSAI auditing standards is one of the 

milestones in ASEANSAI’s 6-year history. This expansion of long term capability is of 

benefit to ensuring that Sustainability Development Goals are reached, development 

projects are effectively accomplished and that all stakeholders’ interests are met.  
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Ladies and Gentlemen,  

As Vice Chairperson of ASEANSAI and next term of ASEANSAI Chairperson, I look 

forward to engaging with the ASEANSAI Secretariat to establish a platform to integrate 

those technical features required to meet our mutual targets on a stable and established 

basis. The track record of BPK as Secretariat is a good indication that we can succeed in 

reaching this objective. This objective is in line with the proposed ASEANSAI strategic 

plan.  

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

This donor coordination meeting is organized to reflect on our past relationship, 

develop new relationship and to chart a way forward. As ASEAN itself expands its global 

position, ASEANSAI will build the needed competency to support governments and 

governments projects, all towards sustainable growth that meets the needs of people 

today and people tomorrow. I encourage all of participants to gain benefit from this 

meeting. 

Before the end of my speech, I would like to thanks for your cooperation and look 

forward to your strong support and wish you good health, success. 

Thank you. 
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Welcoming Remarks by 

H.E. Dr. Mrs. Viengthong Siphandone 

President of the State Audit Organization of Lao PDR 

The 4th ASEANSAI Summit, Vientiane 

 9.00 am - 9.10 am, November 6, 2017 

 

- His Excellency Sonexay SIPHANDONE,  Deputy Prime Minister of Lao People’s 

Democratic Republic; 

- Madam Som Kim Sour, Chairperson of ASEANSAI and Auditor General of National 

Audit Authority of the Kingdom of Cambodia; 

- All Presidents, Auditor Generals of SAIs from ASEAN nations; 

- Distinguished representatives from respective ASEAN nations’, Germany and 

England Embassies to Laos; representatives from ASOSAI, International 

Organizations  and all the guests. 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen! 

First of all, it is my great privilege and honor to be represented of the State Audit 

Organization to extent my deep and sincere appreciation to His Excellency Sonexay 

SIPHANDONE, Deputy Prime Minister of Lao People’s Democratic Republic for his 

presentation in this opening ceremony of the 4th ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions 

Summit (ASEANSAI) [Please Congratulate His Excellency!]. Participating in this event, I 

would also like to warmly welcome all the Presidents and Auditor Generals of Supreme 

Audit Institutions from ASEAN countries; accompanying delegates; representatives from 

respective ASEAN nations’ Embassies to Laos; representatives from ASOSAI; 

International Organizations, distinguished guests; ladies and gentlemen to Vientiane, 

the Capital City of Lao People’s Democratic Republic for the official attending of the 4th 

ASEANSAI Summit [Please Congratulate]. 

Excellency, 

Distinguished Ladies and Gentlemen! 

Since its establishment on November 16, 2011, the ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions 

(ASEANSAI) which comprises of the 10 member States has remarkably and continually 

developed its organization, pursuing its targeted goals and objectives by enormous 

investing in technical capacity building and development of public audit for all member 

of ASEANSAI, contributing to the rule of laws and promoting good governance. In 

addition, ASEANSAI has emphasized and regarded the internal and external cooperation 

as the key to improving its role regionally and internationally. In tandem with those 

achievements, ASEANSAI will also have to modify its operations in several areas in order 

to provide timely and responsively measures to the changing conditions and the 

demanding development of ASEAN in the future, especially the development of public 

audit of all member states.  
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Through the past operation, ASEANSAI and its Committees namely the Strategic 

Planning Committee, Knowledge Sharing Committee, Training Committee, Rules and 

Procedure Committee, and other members have actively and successfully tailored and 

implemented the 2014-2017 ASEANSAI Strategic Plan into practice. A number of 

productive activities have been conducted through the Action Plan of the relevant 

Committee. Keeping this remarkable achievement forward in the future, ASEANSAI is 

finalizing its 2018-2021 outlining focal development targets and prioritized projects to 

be executed with the aim to strengthen capacity and to promote cooperation among 

the member SAIs. 

 

Distinguished Ladies and Gentleman! 

In this occasion of the 4th ASEANSAI Summit hosted by the State Audit Organization, held 

in Vientiane, the Capital City of Lao People’s Democratic Republic where there are many 

historical tourist sites, multicultural ethnic groups and sustainable development 

envisage. I wish that all the delegates and guests will take this opportunity to visit those 

impressive tourist destinations and gain memorable experience.   

Lastly, I would like to wish the 4th ASEANSAI Summit to have successful and fruitful 

outcomes; wish His Excellency Sonexay SIPHANDONE, Deputy Prime Minister of Lao 

People’s Democratic Republic, a good health and be successful in his honor occupation; 

wish the delegates and all the guests the pleasure and make the most contribution 

enabling this meeting to accomplish its expected objectives.        

 

Thank you 
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Keynote Speech 

H.E. Sonxay Siphandone  

Deputy Prime Minister of Lao People’s Democratic Republic 

At The Opening Ceremony of  

The 4th ASEAN Supreme Audit Institution (ASEANSAI) Summit,  

November 6, 2017 in Vientiane Capital 

 

- The Presidents and Auditor Generals of SAIs from ASEAN nations; 

- Representatives from respective ASEAN nations’ Embassies to Laos; 

- Representatives from INTOSAI, ASOSAI, and International Organizations   

- Distinguished guests, ladies and gentlemen! 

 

On behalf of the Government and the citizens of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic, 

I am delightful and pleased to be presented in this opening ceremony session of the 4th 

ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions Summit (ASEANSAI). 

 

I would like to take this special and meaningful opportunity to warmly welcome the 

Presidents and Auditor Generals from the ASEAN Nations, representatives of the 

international organizations, distinguished guests and the delegates to Vientiane Capital 

attending the 4th ASEANSAI Summit, and congratulate the State Audit Organization that 

is going to assume chairmanship of the ASEANSAI for the next two years. 

 

Ladies and gentlemen! 

As we are noted that one of the most important goals of ASEAN, since its inception in 

1967, is to maintain and promote peace, stability and development cooperation in the 

Southeast Asia region and the world at large. Towards this end, ASEAN has continued to 

strengthen its internal cooperation and broaden its relations with external partners. 

Over the past five decades, ASEAN has contested against a number of challenges but 

continued to mark desired progress.  Most significantly, ASEAN has become a region of 

peace and stability which provides favorable conditions empowering on-going regional 

economic development growth. Another historical occurrence for ASEAN was the 

establishment of ASEAN Community on 31 October 2015. Likewise, throughout the past 

half century, ASEAN has initiated cooperation mechanisms which are not only providing 

a solid platform for ASEAN’s engagement with Dialogue Partners and external parties, 

but also creating an opportunity for Dialogue Partners to engage with one another on 

critical regional and global issues in order reach appropriate solutions and means to 

address the common challenges together thereby retaining peace, unity, harmony, well-

being of the people, growth in socio-economics, green environment and sustainable  

development. 
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Since its inception of ASEAN Community, it has been recognized that ASEAN has gained 

remarkable achievements. The most significant milestone was that ASEAN has 

successfully formed ASEAN Economic Community in 2015 producing a range of desired 

outcomes such as tariff elimination, trade facilitation, free trade on services, 

investments liberalization and facilitation, freer flow of capital, skilled labor mobility, 

enhancing regional development on market competition, protection of consumers and 

intellectual property, inter-regional market integration, narrowing development gaps, 

and promoting cooperation between ASEAN and Dialogue Partners.  

 

As a result of the cooperation in various dimensions, it is remarked that ASEAN has 

underpinned its roles in the world at large. 

 

Ladies and gentlemen!  

While being proud of the successes we have achieved, we must continue to enhance our 

concerted efforts to further strengthening and advancing the ASEAN Community 

through the effective implementation of the ASEAN Community Vision 2025 as well as 

three community Blueprints, among others, thereby contributing to the common cause 

of maintaining and promoting peace, stability and prosperity in the region and the world 

at large.  

 

In realizing the vision mentioned above, it is required that all parties involved must 

invest all their abilities to integrate the adopted Blueprints of the three development 

pillars such as ASEAN Political-Security Community, ASEAN Economic Community, and 

ASEAN Socio-Cultural Community, into their respective policies, programs, and projects 

frameworks while considering their unique characteristics of political administration 

and laws of ASEAN Nations. In this spirit, ASEAN has recognized the important role of 

ASEANSAI and incorporated the cooperation with ASEANSAI in ASEAN’s cooperative 

plans 2025.   

 

It is perceived that the roles of Supreme Audit Institutions are extremely vital over the 

implementation of the national socio-economic development as well as the execution 

of the national budget plan by respective government, in accordance with policy 

framework and laws with the aim to reaffirm that ASEAN Community is adhering to the 

rule of laws, people-oriented and people-centered, and ensuring security. Moreover, it 

could promote to educate the culture of honesty and conduct against fraudulent acts in 

public governance thereby improving trusts of the citizens, domestic and oversea 

investors contributing to the overall socio-economic development and prevention of 

social insecurity. The most important target is to create a more accountable ASEAN 

Community by focusing on building capacity of public governance adhering through 

transparency. 
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As a result, the strategic development plan of ASEANSAI is seen as one of the core drivers 

to the development of ASEAN. This strategic plan encompasses key goals of 

development such as to support the implementation of ISSAI and INTOSAI Good 

Practice; to promote good performance of member SAIs; to support member SAIs to 

fulfill their roles towards the successful achievement of the SDGs; to strengthen 

ASEANSAI active role within ASEAN Agenda; to improve cooperation with regional and 

international partners; and to strengthen organizational governance of ASEANSAI. 

Ladies and gentlemen!  

It is observed that the 4th ASEANSAI Summit is being organized not only in conjunction 

to with on-going progress of ASEAN in implementing its 2025 vision and tightening its 

relations with external parties, but also evolving around rapid and complex challenges 

environment in the region and the world. Therefore, this meeting will be a great 

opportunity for the discussion and determination of future actions among Heads of SAIs 

thereby contributing to the realization of ASEAN’s vision effectively in several areas such 

as promoting the rule of law; maintaining financial and currency stability; implementing 

of socio-economic development; preventing and limiting frauds; promoting investments 

and so on. Particularly, the State Audit Organization, who is being appointed as the 

President of ASEANSAI in the next two years, is required to actively collaborate with 

member SAIs in order to improve professionalism in public audit and to promote 

accountability in every section of governance.  

 

Taking this opportunity, I highly appreciate the work of Asian Organization of Supreme 

Audit Institutions (ASOSAI), and International Organization of Supreme Audit 

Institutions (INTOSAI) for supporting and promoting in research, dissemination, and 

knowledge exchange on the development of public audit in compliance with 

international standards; I also acknowledge the contribution of international 

organization such as GIZ, SWEDISH, WORLD BANK, and ADB for their sponsorships over 

time.    

 

I strongly believe that with the cooperation and support among the ASEANSAI’s 

President and the Heads of SAIs, the defined goals will be achieved. I would also trust 

that all the participants and the distinguished guests attending the 4th ASEANSAI Summit 

will cooperate to provide assistance in order to move forwards with great success. Last 

but not least, I would like to extent my best wishes to all the delegates and participants 

for good health, success in your careers and wish this Summit a great success. 

 

Thank You! 

 

 

 



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 
 

 

Opening Speech 

By: H.E Mrs. Som Kim Suor  

Auditor General of the National Audit Authority 

 and Chairperson of ASEANSAI 

during Opening Ceremony of 4th ASEANSAI Summit 

Vientiane, Lao PDR 

November 6th, 2017 

 

 His Excellency Sonexay SIPHANDONE, Deputy Prime Minister of the Lao 

People’s Democratic Republic  

 Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE, President of State Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR and the Vice-chair of ASEANSAI 

 Excellencies, Heads of Supreme Audit Institutions as members of ASEANSAI 

 Excellencies Ambassadors 

 Distinguished representatives of International Organizations,  ASEAN 

Secretariat, ASOSAI and Development Partners 

 Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

Today, it is my greatest honour and pleasure to be presented here with your 

Excellencies and delegates at the opening of the 4th ASEANSAI Summit. In my 

capacity as ASEANSAI Chairperson, I would like to convey my deepest 

gratitude and appreciation to Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE, 

President of the State Audit Office of Lao PDR for hosting the Summit and for 

extending warmest hospitality to all participating delegations. Also, I sincerely 

thank Excellencies Heads of  SAIs member of ASEANSAI, colleagues, and 

observers for attending the 4th ASEANSAI Summit in Vientiane, capital city of 

Lao PDR and the Land of a Million Elephants.  

 

Honourable presence of  His Excellency Sonexay SIPHANDONE, Deputy Prime 

Minister of Lao People’s Democratic Republic demonstrates full support from 

the Head of Government on the roles and the contribution of Supreme Audit 

Institutions in good governance and accountability on the use of public 

resources. Over the past six years, ASEANSAI has moved in fast pace and has 

made significant achievements and progresses since its initial establishment 

of ASEANSAI in November 2011.   
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His Excellency Deputy Prime Minister, Excellencies, Ladies and Gentlemen, 

 

The presences of all distinguished participants in this Summit truely reflect 

your strong commitment and contribution to development of ASEANSAI, 

especially in addressing common challenges as well as in reviewing and 

approving on items in the meeting agenda afterward. 

 

You may be aware that since the 3rd ASEANSAI Summit in Novemer 2015 in 

Cambodia, ASEANSAI has already made a number of accomplishments 

including: (1) Signing of the Protocol Amending the Establishment of 

ASEANSAI (2) Signing of the Agreement between ASEANSAI and the World 

Bank (3) Signing of the Memorandum of Understanding between ASEANSAI 

and the Swedish National Audit Office (SNAO) (4) Continuing the 

implementation of long-term program on ISSAI implementation (5) Delivering 

training and knowledge sharing workshop on Public Procurement Audit, 

Health Service Audit, Public and Private Partnership Audit and (6) Conducting 

research project on Revenue Audit. 

 

The aforementioned achievements cannot become realities without 

participations and contributions of SAI members, the Secretariat and the 

supports from National Assembly and more importantly the support from 

governments of each respective SAIs members together with the Develpment 

Partners such as the GIZ, the World Bank, the Swedish National Audit Office 

and other partners.   

 

On the other hand, there are few common challenges that ASEANSAI 

continues to face and they require our collaboration to tackle them such as 

financial constraints for activities implementation, restructuring of the 

Secretariat, the implementation of the Strategic Plan 2018-2021, and the 

application of the Principle of Consensus which demands more time and 

resources because of each SAI member’s different procedures and needs. In 

addition, differences in language and tradition require a compromise. 

 

Therefore, the 4th ASEANSAI Summit is an important forum to review, discuss 

and approve on topic based on the meeting agenda. The ASEANSAI has been 

successfully operating for almost six years, so I am convinced that, with our 

collaboration and understanding, all the Supreme Audit Institutions can 

overcome all difficulties. 
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Excellencies, Ladies and Gentlemen, 

 

The Supreme Audit Institution of Cambodia as the Chair of ASEANSAI since 

November 2015 until present  has good coordination and cooperation with 

the Vice-Chair, Secretariat, all SAI members, Committees and Development 

Partners. Allow me to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to 

all heads of SAI members and partners for your kind supports and for the 

invaluable inputs during my tenure. Also, I am sincerely thankful to all 

development partners for continuously supporting ASEANSAI’s development 

so far. 

 

Furthermore, I would like to express my admiration and appreciation for the 

good cooperation of Her Excellency Dr. Viengthong SIPHANDONE, President 

of State Audit Organization of Lao PDR, her management teams and staff as 

well as the Secretariat, all ASEANSAI’s Committes and all partners for 

organizing and contributing meeting materials. In this spirit, I firmly believe 

that the 4th ASEANSAI Summit will be a success as planned. 

 

Before closing, as ASEANSAI Chairperson, I would like to appeal to the 

development partners to further support ASEANSAI and to all SAIs members 

to continue supporting and implementing the strategic plan and work plans 

of all committees for the common interest of ASEANSAI as well for the 

benefits of individual SAI. 

 

Finally, I would like to wish your excellencies, and distinguished delegates 

happiness, good health and success in all your noble mission. 

Thank you! 
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Opening Speech 

By: H.E Ph.D. Mrs. Viengthong SIPHANDONE  

President of State Audit Organization of Lao PDR 

And the Chairperson of ASEANSAI 

Opening Ceremony of the 5th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting 

Vientiane, Lao PDR 

4th July, 2019 (9:00am) 

- Excellency Datuk Zulkipli Bin Abdullah, Deputy Auditor General of Malaysia, 

- Excellency Mr. Bahtiar Arif, Head of ASEANSAI Secretariat, 

- Distinguished Representatives of the Strategic Planning Committee, Training 

Committee, Knowledg Sharing Committee and Rule and Procedure Commitee of 

ASEANSAI, 

- Distinguished Representative from Malaysia Embassy to Lao and participants from 

ASENSAI Members, 

- Ladies and Gentlemen, 

 

(1) First of all, on behalf of Chairperson of ASEANSAI and President of State Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR, it is my great privilege and honor to be presented here in 

the opening ceremony of the 5th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting. I warmly 

welcome all of you and appreciate to the earlier speech by his excellency Mr. Bahtiar 

Arif, Head of ASEANSAI Secretariat and I would like to convey my sincere appreciation 

to all the heads of ASEANSAIs Members in nominating to attend the 5th ASEANSAI 

Senior Officials’ Meeting being held in Vientiane the capital of Lao PDR. 

(2) During ASEANSAI Chairman tenure, State Audit organization of Lao PDR have been 

plaied an important role to push on and encourage public sectors for enhancing 

tranparency, accountability and good governance, Also public sectors attention on 

implimentation and esteem the Laws, regualtions and audit recommendation. 

(3) This meeting is very crucial of ASEANSAIs, represenatives of the Strategic Planning, 

Training, Knowledge Sharing as well as Rule and Procedure Committees and all 

members SAIs to be here to demonstrates a very strong committement to addressing 

all outstanding issues prior to the final endorsement in the upcoming 5th ASEANSAI 

Summit in November 2019 in Malaysia. 

Excellencies, Ladies and Gentlemen 
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(4) Since the 4th ASEANSAI Summit in November 2017 in Lao,  ASEANSAI has made a 

number of remarkable achievements activities such as: sharing knowledge on 

establishing awareness on good practices about SAI Independence,  Workshop on 

Audit of Public Procurement, ASEANSAI workshop on Fraud Audit/Investigation, 

ASEANSAI Workshop on Fianancial Audit, IDI-ASEANSAI Cooperative Financial Audit 

Workshop, seminar on increasing aweareness of SDGs And Joint seminar between 

ASEANSAI, AIPA and ASEAN. 

(5) Along with the aforementioned accomplishments, ASEANSAI has some remaining 

issues requiring on-going collaboration such: First, 2019-2021 is the last period for 

implementation of 2018-2021 ASEANSAI Strategic Plan we would continue to creat 

2022-2025 ASEANSAI Strategic Plan; Second, the workplans of all committees are 

agreed and prepared in line with the strategic plan we would complete them 

effectively and; Third, signing the memorandum of understanding between 

ASEANSAI and the Swedish National Audit Office on the support for ISSAI 

implementation can be agreed upon and could implement in 2019-2021. 

 

(6) As a consequence, the 5th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting for the whole two day 

is important crucially for review, discussion and approval in accordance with the 

meeting agenda. I am convinced that after ASEANSAI successful operation for almost 

eight years  with mutual understanding and cooperation among member SAIs and 

with our striving effort, the meeting is expected to actively discuss and agree on  the 

committees’ work plan from 2020 to 2021,  revised ASEANSAI Rule and Procedures, 

and other matter. 

Excellencies, Ladies and Gentlemen, 

(7) In my capacity as the Chair of ASEANSAI will make our best effort to coordinate the 

remaining issues and bring them forward to seek approval in the next ASEANSAI 

Summit in Novemeber 2019 and the handover of the ASEANSAI chairmanship will be 

responsibly and cooperatively organized. I strongly anticipate that the 5th ASEANSAI 

Senior Official Meeting will be a great success as plan. 

(8) In this occasion of the 5th ASEANSAI Senior Official Meeting hosted by the State Audit 

Organization, held in Vientiane, Lao PDR where there are many historical tourist sites, 

multicultural ethnic groups and sustainable development envisage. I wish that all the 

delegates and guests will take this opportunity to visit those impressive tourist 

destinations and gain memorable experience.   

(9) Lastly, I would like to wish the 5th ASEANSAI Senior official meeting to have successful 

and fruitful outcomes; wish His Excellency Datuk Zulkipli Bin Abdullah, Deputy 

Auditor General of Malaysia and Mr. Bahtiar Arif, Head of ASEANSAI Secretariat, a 

good health and be successful in his honor occupation and wish all delegates the 

pleasure and make the most contribution enabling this meeting to accomplish its 

expected objectives. 

Now, I declare the 5th ASEANSAI Senior Officials’ Meeting opened.  Thank you! 
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Agenda Item 

1 

Meeting The 14th Assembly, 2nd Plenary Session 

Agenda Item 1 Speech on the activities of ASEANSAI 

Presented by 
Ph.D. Viengthong SIPHANDONE 
President of The State Audit Organization of Lao PDR and 
Chairperson ASEANSAI 

Speech on the Activities of ASEANSAI 

- His Excellency Dr. Ho Duc Phoc, Auditor General of State Audit Office of Vietnam, 

Chairman of ASOSAI;* 

- Excellency Mr. Choe Jaehyeong, Chairman of the Board of Audit and Inspection of 

the Republic of Korea  as of Secretary General of ASOSAI; 

- Respected ASOSAI Members; 

- Distinguished delegates, Ladies and Gentlemen.  

 

First of all, we are very shocked and saddened to hear about the death of His 

Excellency Tran Dai Quang - the President of Vietnam. We still cannot believe that he 

passed away so unexpectedly. On behalf of Lao PDR delegation, I would like to share 

our deepest condolence to the State Audit Office of Vietnam and all Vietnam citizens 

on the loss of the President of Vietnam. He was such a great leader and he will always 

be memorable to Vietnamese people and international communities, especially Lao 

PDR. 

With the capacity of ASEANSAI Chairperson, please allow me to express my 

privilege and honour to present activities of ASEANSAI at the second plenery session of 

the 14th ASOSAI Assembly in Hanoi. Before I begin, I would like to convey my sincere 

appreciation to SAI of Vietnam for their warmest hospitality and excellent organization 

of this ASOSAI Assembly. On the occasion of Hanoi City was founded more than 

thousand years ago. I would also like to congratulate SAI Malaysia as the outgoing 

ASOSAI Chairman and SAI Korea as the outgoing ASOSAI Secretariat for their excellent 

arrangement for this Assembly.  

Excellency, Ladies and Gentlemen, 

In its 2018 – 2021 Strategic Plan, ASEANSAI set 6 strategic Goals to support the 

professionalisation of ASEANSAI as an autonomous, independent, professional and 

non-political organization established to build capacity, to promote cooperation 

among its members, and to establish constructive and beneficial relations with ASEAN 

and other stakeholders.  
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The strategic goals have been cascaded into committees’ workplans and are 

implemented in various projects and activities.  

My presentation on the ASEANSAI activities will cover (1) training and 

knowledge sharing (2) ASEANSAI’s meetings (3) communication and cooperation, and 

(4) publications of ASEANSAI. 

 

Firstly, allow me to explain Training and Knowledge Sharing activities  

In order to facilitate the improvement of the SAIs’ capacity and knowledge 

sharing on ISSAIs compliance, ASEANSAI has conducted a number of activities. One of 

the ASEANSAI’s outstanding programmes is called the Long Term ASEANSAI Program 

on ISSAI Implementation - known as LTAPII. Started in 2015, this programme was 

conducted in 2 phases, in which the 1st phase aimed to train the participants on the 

concepts and application of ISSAIs by focusing on Risk-Based Approach in Financial 

Audit (RBAFA) with the relevant ISSAIs pertaining to it. As the continuation, the Phase 

2 of LTAPII has established an ISSAI facilitator’s pool, aimed at a sustained 

implementation of ISSAIs in the ASEAN region and SAI.  

In the LTAPII programme, the auditors were not only equipped with the 

knowledge on ISSAI but also the skills in facilitating. So, they will have capacity to 

transfer their knowledge on ISSAI to their colleagues at respective SAIs and at the 

ASEAN region.  

Last July 2018, the LTAPII programme was accomplished and 18 (eighteen) 

ASEANSAI ISSAI facilitators were certified. These facilitators are expected to 

disseminate their knowledge on ISSAI and increasing the number of the ISSAI 

capacitated auditors within their SAIs and in the sub regional level. 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

We also conducted various trainings and workshops to support the 

improvement of our auditors’ capacity, namely Quality Assurance Training, Workshop 

on Audit of Land and Mineral Resources, workshop on Audit of Public Complaint, 

sharing knowledge on establishing awareness on good practices about SAI 

Independence and Workshop on Audit of Public Procurement and seminar on 

increasing aweareness of SDGs. 

Related to the ASEANSAI’s Meetings, ASEANSAI conducted its 4th Summit on 6 

November 2017 in Vientiane, Lao PDR. At this meeting, the handover of the ASEANSAI 

Chairmanship from National Audit Authority Kingdom of Cambodia to Sate Audit Office 

of Lao PDR was held. In addition, the ASEANSAI also approved its 2018 – 2021 Strategic 

Plan and revised its Rules and Procedures in which the long-term ASEANSAI 

Secretariat, hosted by Indonesia for a 6 years term was approved.  
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In relation to Communication and Cooperation, ASEANSAI also managed 

various activities related to ASEANSAI engagement with external stakeholders. At 

subregional level, ASEANSAI as the entity associated with ASEAN, submitted its 2017 

report activities to the ASEAN Secretariat. Further, ASEANSAI also has an opportunity 

to deliver speech related to the importance of SAI’s indepedence to promote achieving 

the transparency of public administration at the 38th AIPA General Assembly in 

September 2017 in Manila, Philippines. 

At the regional level, ASEANSAI presented its activity report to the 51st ASOSAI 

Governing Board in February 2017 in Bali, Indonesia. 

Moving to the international community, ASEANSAI attended the IDI Workshop 

with INTOSAI Regions in 2017 and 2018. As a result from the ASEANSAI attendance at 

the workshop, IDI agreed to cooperate with ASEANSAI on ISSAI Based Cooperative 

Financial Audit, a one year project which was started end of July 2018 until next year. 

This program just had a kick off meeting last July in Malacca, malaysia.  

 

In addition, to build relations with (potential) partners/ donors as well as to 

give space for networking among donors and to identify potential areas of cooperation 

between ASEANSAI and Donors, a Donor Coordination Meeting was held on 5 

November 2017 attended by Asian Development Bank, European Union, SAI Norway, 

German Corporation for Internationnal Cooperation (GIZ), Swendish National Audit 

Office, World Bank. A Video recording from INTOSAI Donor Secretariat was also part of 

the exchange. Some donors agreed to support ASEANSAI in various areas such as SAI 

Performance Measurment Framework (PMF), developing the next Strategic Plan and 

continuation of ISSAI Implementation programme. 

 

With regards to the ASEANSAI Publications, we published newsletters 

quarterly through uploading it onto ASEANSAI website. During the 51th ASOSAI 

Governing Board Meeting in Bali, ASEANSAI set up a booth exhibition to display 

ASEANSAI products. In this meeting here in Hanoi, we also have ASEANSAI booth 

displayed during last 5 days and you may visited the booth. 

ASEANSAI activities are aligned with the INTOSAI and ASOSAI programmes. We 

manage to encourage capacity building and knowledge sharing comprehensively at the 

international level from the sub regional level. Further, we admit that ASEANSAI 

achievements are attributable to active participation and contributions from all 

members together with strong support from our development partner such as the 

German Government, The World Bank, the Swedish National Audit Office and INTOSAI 

Development Initiative.  
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Ladies and Gentlement, 

As I mentioned before the strategic plan of ASEANSAI is very crucial which 

consist of the improvement of the SAIs’ capacity and knowledge sharing on ISSAIs 

compliance, enhancing SAIs’ operations, supporting SAIs to fulfill their roles in pursuing 

the Sustainable Development Goals, promoting ASEANSAI’s position in affiliation with 

ASEAN development agenda, improving collaboration and cooperation within the 

region and with international development partners in order to advance of the 

ASEANSAI organization and strengthening its organizational governance.  the strategic 

plan also serves as road map for caring out activities toward achieving our goal, so to 

accomplish the strategic goal of ASEASAI; activities need to be continuing in coming 

year by 4 committees on plan such: conducting workshop on SAIs Performance 

Measurement framework, ASEANSAI on ISSAI Based Cooperative Financial Audit, 

continue update procurement audit manual, building awareness on Sustainable 

Development Goals (SDGs), developing cooperation with donors, continue upgrading 

and maintaining ASENSAI website.        

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

Before closing my speech, as ASEANSAI Chairperson and a Member of ASOSAI. 

I would like to take this opportunity to congratulation  His Exellency Dr. Ho Duc Phoc, 

Auditor General of State Audit Office of Vietnam that are trusted from ASOSAI 

members to be the Chairman of ASOSAI. I also congratulation to the 5 (five) SAIs as 

selected to be the ASOSAI Governing Board and 2 (two) SAIs as the Audit Committee 

and congratulation to SAI China for the position as the incomming ASOSAI Secretary 

General for 2018-2021. 

I finally wish your excellencies, ladies and gentlemen good health and success.

  

Thank you 
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Agenda Item 

21 

Meeting The 52nd Governing Board Meeting of ASOSAI 

Agenda Item 21 Speech on the activities of ASEANSAI 

Presented by 
Ph.D. Viengthong SIPHANDONE 
President of The State Audit Organization of Lao PDR and 
Chairperson ASEANSAI 

Speech on the Activities of ASEANSAI 

- Her Excellency Tan Sri Dr. Madinah Mohamad, Auditor General of Jabatan Audit 

Negara Malaysia and ASOSAI Chair;* 

- His Excellency Dr. Ho Duc Phoc, Auditor General of State Audit Office of Vietnam;* 

- Distinguished delegates, Ladies and Gentlemen.  

 

First of all, in my capacity as ASEANSAI chairperson, I would like to take this 

opportunity to sincerly thank SAI Malaysia, Chair of ASOSAI and SAI Vietnam with a 

very good arrangement for hosting 52nd Governing Board Meeting of ASOSAI and for 

invitation ASEANSAI delegation to be part of this significant of ASOSAI. 

 

Excellency, Ladies and Gentlemen, 

My presentation on the ASEANSAI activities will cover  (1) training and 

knowledge sharing (2) ASEANSAI’s meeting (3) communication and cooperation, and 

(4) publication of ASEANSAI. 

 

Firstly, allow me to explain Training and Knowledge Sharing activities  

In order to facilitate the improvement of the SAIs’ capacity and knowledge 

sharing on ISSAIs compliance, ASEANSAI have conducted numbers of activities. One of 

the ASEANSAI Outstanding programme is called Long Term of ASEANSAI Program in 

ISSAI Implementation-known as LTAPII. Started in 2016, this programme was 

conducted into 2 phases, in which the 1st phase aims to train the participants on the 

concepts and applications of ISSAIs by focusing on Risk-Based Approach on Financial 

Audit (RBAFA) with the relevant ISSAIs pertaining to it. As the continuation, the Phase 

2 of LTAPII is establishing the ISSAI facilitator’s pool, aimed at a sustained 

implementation of ISSAIs in the ASEAN region and SAI.  
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In last July 2018, the LTAPII programme was accomplished and resulted 18 

ASEANSAI certified on ISSAI facilitators. These facilitators are expected will disseminate 

their knowledge on ISSAI and increasing the number of the ISSAI capacitated auditors 

within their SAIs and in the sub regional level. 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

We also conducted various training and workshop to support the 

improvement of our auditor capacity namely Quality Assurance Training, Workshop on 

Audit of Land and Mineral Resources, workshop on Audit of Public Complaint, sharing 

knowledge on establishing awareness on good practices about SAI Independence, 

Workshop on Follow Up the Audit of Public Procurement and the seminar on 

increasing Awareness of SDGs. 

 

Related to the ASEANSAI’s Meetings, ASEANSAI conducted its 4th Summit  on 

6 November 2017 in Vientiane, Lao PDR. At this meeting, the handover of ASEANSAI 

Chairmanship from National Audit Authority Kingdom of Cambodia to Sate Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR was held. In addition to that,  ASEANSAI also approved its 

2018 – 2021 Strategic Plan and the revised of Rules and Procedures in which a long 

term of ASEANSAI Secretariat in 6 years term was approved. And the meeting agree to 

select the audit board of the republic of indonesia as ASEANSAI Secretariat. 

In relation to Communication and Cooperation, ASEANSAI also managed 

various activities related to ASEANSAI engagament with external stakeholders. At 

subregional level, ASEANSAI as the entity associated with ASEAN, submitted its 2017 

report activities to the ASEAN Secretariat. Further, ASEANSAI also has an opportunity 

to  deliver speech related to the importance of SAI’s indepedence to promote 

achieving the transparency of public administration at the 38th AIPA General Assembly 

in September 2017 in Manila, Philippines. 

At the regional level, ASEANSAI presented its activity report to the 51st ASOSAI 

Governing Board in February 2017 in Bali, Indonesia. 

Moving to the international community, ASEANSAI attended the IDI Workshop 

with INTOSAI Regions in 2017 and 2018. As a result from the ASEANSAI attendance at 

the workshop, IDI agreed to cooperate with ASEANSAI on ISSAI Based Cooperative 

Financial Audit, a one year project which was started end of July 2018 until next year. 

This program just have a kick off meeting last July in Malacca, malaysia.  

In addition to that, to build relations and  (potential) partners/ donors as well 

as give space for networking among donors and to identify potential areas of 

cooperation between ASEANSAI and Donors, a Donor Coordination Meeting was held 
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on 5 November 2017 attended by various donors such as ADB, EU, SAI Norway, GIZ, 

SNAO, World Bank and video recording from INTOSAI Donor Secretariat. Some donors 

agreed to support ASEANSAI in various areas such as SAI PMF, developing the next 

Strategic Plan and continuation of ISSAI Implementation programme. 

With regards to the ASEANSAI Publication, we published newsletters 

quarterly through uploading it onto ASEANSAI website. During the 51th ASOSAI 

Governing Board Meeting in Bali, ASEANSAI set up booth exhibition to display 

ASEANSAI products. On this meeting, we also have our booth displayed. If you would 

like to know more on ASEANSAI and what we have done, please come and visit our 

booth.  

 

ASEANSAI activities are aligned with the INTOSAI and ASOSAI programme. We 

manage to provide to encourage capacity building and knowledge sharing 

comprehensively at the international level from the sub regional level. Further, we 

admit that ASEANSAI achievement are attributable to active participation and 

contributions from all members together with strong support from our development 

partner such as the German Government, The World Bank, the Swedish National Audit 

Office and INTOSAI Development Initiative.  

 

Excellency, Ladies and Gentlemen, 

In closing, I would like to reiterate my gratitude for the opportunity to present 

our accomplishment in this important meeting. I wish to success and obtian productive 

output of the meeting.  

 

Thank you. 
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Opening Remark 

Ph.D. Vienthong SEPHANDONE 

Chairperson of ASEANSAI in the Meeting on ‘‘IDI-ASEANSAI ISSAI Based Cooperative 

Financial Audit”. Malaysia, 26th July 2018, 9:00 AM 

Excellency:   

- Tan Sri Dr. Madinah Mohamad, Auditor General of SAI Malaysia, Chairperson 

of Knowledge Sharing Committee 

- Head of SAIs, Deputy Auditor General and the representative of ASEANSAI 

members 

- Mrs. Archana Shirsat Deputy Director of IDI 

 

Distinguished Ladies and Gentlemen, 

 

(1) First of all, on behalf of Chairperson of ASEANSAI and President of State Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR, it is my great privilege and honor to open the 

meeting on: “IDI-ASEANSAI based Cooperative Financial Audit” that be hold 

in Malacca, Malaysia, which is the beautiful city and heritage site as UNESCO 

has recorded. 

 

(2) This meeting is remarkable to illustrate the purpose, solidarity and consensus 

among ASAENSAI members and IDI to expand the relationship and the 

cooperation. Also, to implement ASEANSAI Strategic Plan 2018-2021 in the 

Strategic goad 1 and strategic goal 5 to enhance the capacity building in both 

regional and international level. 

 

 

(3) As you may know, ASEANSAI was established since 2011, the ASEANSAI 

member countries have together developed in every aspect. It was 

previously illustrated that there were many activities had completed such as: 

revenue audit seminar and LTAPII, which these activities had created many 

auditors who can certainly transfer the knowledge and skill that they have 

learned to the next generation. 

 

(4) Besides the cooperation within ASEANSAI member countries, some SAIs had 

attended the meeting, workshop and training. Also, perform parallel audit 

under IDI - INTOSAI such as: financial audit, compliance audit, risk base for 

financial audit and disaster audit and ASEANSAI also has joined SDGs, etc. 
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(5) All I have mentioned above, it illustrates how is hard that ASEANSAI and IDI-

INTOSAI have been working in order to enhance the capacity building of the 

ASEANSAI members. Hence, this task has to continuously focus on in the 

future. 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

 

(6) Since we see the importance of the development of audit task to be slightly 

strengthen together with the ASEANSAI Strategic Plan 2018-2021, to increase 

the regional cooperation and development partner so that this meeting was 

created and this is a remarkable to begin to development IDI-ASEANSAI 

based cooperative financial audit. 

 

(7) I hope that this meeting will create the good opportunity to ASEANSAI, IDI 

and the delegates to exchange the knowledge and experience and discuss 

our cooperation between IDI-ASEANSAI to implement financial audit base on 

ISSAI effectively in the future. 

 

 

(8) Finally, on behalf of the chairperson of ASEANSAI and president of State Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR, would like to express my congratulation to SAI 

Malaysia to conduct this wonderful meeting and congratulation to IDI for the 

valuable support and the ASEANSAI members for creating this program. 

Lastly, I hope that this meeting will be successful as our plan. 

 

Thank you 
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SPECIAL REMARKS 

H.E. PH.D Viengthong SIPHANDONE 

President, State Audit Organization of Lao P.D.R 

Chairperson of ASEANSAI 

On  

“ASEAN – ASEANSAI – AIPA SEMINAR 

Laying the Foundation for Future Cooperation in  

Promoting Accountability and Transparency in ASEAN” 

SHERATON Gandaria Jakarta, Indonesia, Tuesday, 26 February 2018 (9:45-10:00 AM) 

 

Excellency: 

- Prof. Dr. Moermahadi Soerja Djanegara, Chairman of The Audit Board of The 

Republic of INDONESIA. 

- H.E. Dr. AKP Mochtan, Deputy Secretary General for Community and 

corporate affairs of ASEAN  

- Honorable. Mr. Isra Sunthornvut, Secretary General of AIPA 

- H.E. Dr. Peter Schoof, Ambassador of the Federal Republic of Germany to 

Indonesia, ASEAN and Timor Leste. 

- H.E. Michael G. Aguinaldo, Commissioner of Philipiness.  

- Representative Member of Parliament of ASEAN; 

Distinguished colleagues from ASEAN, ASEANSAI and AIPA,  

Ladies and Gentlemen,  

Good morning,  

(1) First of all, on behalf of Chairperson of ASEANSAI and President of State Audit 

Organization of Lao PDR, it is great honor to attend and speech in the first seminar 

jointly organized by ASEAN, ASEANSAI and AIPA.  

 

(2) This is a remarkable seminar between ASEANSAI, ASEAN and AIPA, On behalf of 

ASEANSAI’s Chair, I do appreciate this initiative and believe that it will serve as a 
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foundation for future inter-agency collaboration, through networking, exchange and 

interaction among the three association. 

Excellencies, Ladies and Gentlemen,  

(3) ASEANSAI as the association of 10 supreme audit institutions (SAIs) in ASEAN 

member states is established in 2011 to promote capacity building in public sector 

auditing of its member. With the support from our committees, which are Training 

Committee, Knowledge Sharing Committee, Strategic Plan Committee and Rule and 

Procedures Committee, we run our organization base on the Estabishment 

Agreement and the Rule and Procedure, we have conducted various capacity 

building programs in public sector auditing for our members. In turn, those programs 

will lead ASEANSAI to contribute at the improvement of transparency and 

accountability in the Southeast asian region. 

(4) To implement of ASEANSAI’s strategic plan 2018-2021 which each committee 

performed their role to enhance ASEANSAI capacity building programs is called the 

Long Term ASEANSAI Program on ISSAI Implementation, known as LTAPII. In the 

other hands, We also conducted various trainings and workshops to support the 

improvement of our auditors’ capacity, namely Quality Assurance Training, 

Workshop on Audit of Land and Mineral Resources, workshop on Audit of Public 

Complaint, sharing knowledge on establishing awareness on good practices about 

SAI Independence and Workshop on Audit of Public Procurement and seminar on 

increasing aweareness of SDGs. 

Excellencies, Ladies and Gentlemen,  

(5) ASEANSAI has strategic plan 2018-2021 and has one strategic goal to strengthen its 

active role within ASEAN agenda and to improve the cooperation with regional and 

international partners. This seminar provides an  opportunity for ASEANSAI to 

involve at the ASEAN agenda while establishing ties with ASEAN and AIPA. 

(6) Supreme Audit Institution has prominent role to promote the efficiency, 

accountability, effectiveness and transparency of public administration. With the 

support from Parliament and government as SAI’s main stakeholders, SAI can 

perform its role more efficient and effective.  

(7) Taking this opportunity, I assure our commitment to build future cooperation with 

ASEAN and AIPA, to promote transparency and accountability in the southeast 

asian region. 

(8) Finally, on behaft of Chairperson of ASEANSAI would like to express my 

congratulation to SAI INDONESAI to conduct this seminar and congratulate  GIZ for 

valuable support and  lastly I hope this seminar will be successful as our plan. 

Thank you 
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Opening Remark 

Dr. Viengthong Siphandone 

President of State Audit Organization of Lao PDR and Chairperson 

of ASEANSAI in the seminar on “Increasing the Awareness of SDGs”  

Republic of Indonesia on 2nd April 2018 at 08:30 A.M 
 

Excellency: 

- H.E. Dr. A.M. Fachir, Vice Minister of Foreign Affiars of the Republic of 

Indonesia 

- Dr. Moermahadi Soerja Djanegara, Chairman of Audit Board of Republic of 

Indonesia 

- Mr. Bahtiar Arif Secretariat General of ASEANSAI 

 

Honorable: 

- Representatives from Ministry of National Development Planning Republic 

of Indonesia 

- Representatives from United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) 

 

Distinguish: Guests, Ladies and gentlemen 

 

(1) First of all, I would like to take this opportunity to express my greatest 

appreciation and privilege for being invited to take part in the opening session 

of the seminar on “Increasing Awareness of SDGs” hosted by ASEANSAI’s 

Secretariat organized in Jakarta. 

 

(2) This seminar represents profound milestone demonstrating our mutual 

objectivity, effort, solidarity, and agreement of member supreme audit 

institutions of ASEANSAI and other international organizations in recognition of 

the need to transform the traditional development to a comprehensive 

development following sustainable and prosperous directions where the people 

and environment are primarily concerned. In parallel to economic development, 

the new development transformation focuses more on the balance of all other 

development aspects. As indicated in the 2030 agenda, it was mentioned that 

these development facets include people, planet, prosperity, peace, and 

partnership. This indication in consistent and aligned with the expected goals 

and targets of the master plans of the three pillars of ASEAN Communities as well 

as the vision of ASEAN until 2025 where the focus is specified on tightening 

cooperation that aims to meet general benefits of the citizens. 
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(3) The 2030 agenda visions are more inclusive of compare to the visions of the 

MDGs. The 17 overarching goals and their underpin pargets are perceived as the 

significant challenge for each nation, region, and the world whereby the focuses 

are predominantly on the development of society and the environment in the 

next 15 years. As so, the 2030 agenda calls for all countries and other 

organizations in this region to take actionable and timely steps in relation to the 

integration and localization of SDG targets and indicators into their respective 

development policies framework as well as regional development agenda, 

mobilize necessary means of implementation, and setting up systemic 

monitoring, following up, reviewing, and reporting on the progress towards 

implementing SDGs in accordance with the principle of in inclusiveness of the 

whole society as emphasized in the Goals number 17 of the 2030 Agenda. 

 

(4) In regard to the inclusiveness principle, ISSAI 12 - Value and benefits SAIs – 

Making a difference to the live of citizen, ISSAI 5130 – Sustainable Development 

– The roles of supreme audit institutions, ASEANSAI as an autonomous 

organization established with the aim of promoting and helping SAIs to build 

professional capacity, there is considerable requirement for ASEANSAI to make 

its contribution in conjunction with SDGs implementation in the region and 

individual country. In other words, the members SAI are encouraged to engage 

through the audit of preparedness of SDGs in early stage and perform the audit 

on projects and programmes in later periods in accordance with auditing 

standards. For this reason, ASEANSAI has endorsed its 2021 Strategic Plan that 

encompassed capacity building in relation to SDGs audit as one of the priority 

goals and the list of activities to be carried out by ASEANSAI presented by its 

relevant Committees was principally approved in the 4th ASEANSAI Summit in 

Vientiane. 

 

(5) In connection to that effort, INTOSAI in association with IDI has invented the 

draft of guidelines for performance audit of the preparedness of SDGs 

implementation, which is in the process of finalization. Beside this, IDI has 

constructed and conducted an e-learning platform, which is implemented via 

internet and a programme that include sequential events such as seminars, 

meetings, parallel audit and other activities to support learning and building 

capacity for auditors in terms of the audit of SDGs preparedness. This is an 

important contribution that reinforces auditor’s awareness, Knowledge on SDGs, 

and provides skills and tools for conducting SDGs audit. 
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(6) In association to those efforts, SAI of Lao PDR has also been participating in the 

IDI programme, which is now on the process of conducting a performance audit 

on preparedness for SDGs. By applying the whole of government approach and 

audit plans, the audit team has reported some preliminary observations in 

regards to the following: 

 

 Lack of separate guidelines for both central and local government sectors 

in relation to SDGs implementation 

 Responsibilities and accountabilities among actors in both central and 

local authorities are yet clearly identified 

 Identification and prioritization of SDGs supporting projects are not 

clearly defined in both central and local public sectors 

 The responsible committees or departments are yet to be appointed in 

the provincial levels to coordinate and function SDGs implementation 

and monitoring 

 The existing monitoring and information management system of the 

National Statistics Bureau is not able to link with database of other public 

sectors systems 

 Indicators integration process and coordination mechanism in both 

central and local authorities are not systematically managed and 

designed. 

 

Ladies and gentlemen! 

(7) Another crucial and determining factor is promoting transparency, 

accountability, and anti-corruption. As prescribed in the 2030 agenda, it calls for 

actors to strive on a target of the Goals 16 that is prevention of corruption 

ensuring transparency and justice when implementing SDGs. In addition, 

INTOSAI has also provided some guidelines to assist SAIs to fight against 

corruption. Those guidelines include ISSAI 5530 and ISSAI 5700. A part from that, 

IDI has launched e-learning programme via Internet in dealing with auditing 

institutional framework for fighting corruption. 

(8) All of that expression implies concerns and efforts of INTOSAI, IDI, and ASEANSAI 

in support of SDGs implementation and anti-corruption, which is highly 

recommended to maintain and further reinforce to yield deeper and broader 

outcomes. 

(9) I have a strong believe that this seminar will bring a great opportunity for 

ASEANSAI and the participants to constructively share and exchange about 

challenges faced in implementing SDGs while consider corresponding strategies 

to overcome those shortcomings understanding the sustainable development 

within ASEAN communities. In addition, this seminar will also create a forum that 
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facilitating actionable strategies in fighting against corruption. Last but not least, 

I wish that the meeting would be operating successfully. 

 

Thank you! 
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Opening Remark 

Dr. Viengthong Siphandone 

President of State Audit Organization of Lao PDR and Chairperson 

of ASEANSAI in the occasion of  

Launching of the ASEANSAI Secretariat Office Republic of Indonesia 

on 2nd April 2018 at 08:30 A.M 

 

Excellency: 

- Dr. Moermahadi Soerja Djanegara, Chairman of Audit Board of Republic of 

Indonesia 

- Presidents and Auditor General of ASEANSAI members 

 

Honorable: 

- Representatives from international organizations and gests 

 

Distinguish: Ladies and gentlemen 

 

(10) On behalf of the current Chairperson of ASEANSAI and the President of 

the State Audit Organization of Lao PDR, it is a great honor and pleasure to 

receive the invitation from the chairman of Audit Board of Republic of Indonesia 

for the participant of the official Launching of the ASEANSAI secretariat Office. I 

may take this gracious opportunity to congratulate the Audit Board of Republic 

of Indonesia for hosting the official Launching of the ASEANSAI Secretariat 

Office in the most welcoming and magnificent atmosphere. 

 

“Please give a big applause” 

 

Ladies and gentlemen! 

 

(11) As you may aware, since its establishment on 16th November 2011, the 

ASEANSAI Supreme Audit Institutions or ASEANSAI and its 10 members SAIs has 

proactively and endlessly developed the organization in order to meet targeted 

goals. From the point of its inception, the ASEANSAI Secretariats has also been 

appointed hand operated. 

 

(12) Since than, the ASEANSIA Secretariats, as an important organ, has 

successfully taken responsibilities defined under its mandate, which is assisting 

the work of rotating Chairpersons of ASEANSAI. These profound achievements 

include the development of the operation and action plans of ASEANSAI, 

provision of managerial assistance to the ASEANSAI Chairpersons, operational 
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supports to Executive Committees on organizing the Executive Committee 

Meeting, help the administrative work, facilitation of coordination between the 

Executive of ASEANSAI website and magazine, management of ASEANSAI finance 

approved by the Executive Committee, maintenance of ASEANSAI bank 

accounts, consolidation and safeguard legal and other related documents of 

ASEANSAI, and adhere the basis of regular report on the progress to the 

Chairperson as advised by Executive Committee. 

 

(13) From those valuable contributions of ASEANSAI Secretariats it represents 

the untiring efforts and dedication to fulfill its mandates. Another significant 

achievement of the Secretariats is to function as the focal point of coordination 

among member SAIs in preparation of important papers to be tabled to 

underpinning meeting, ASEANSAI Summit, Committees’ meetings. Specifically, 

on 8th December 2016 in Abu Dhabi, UAE, there was agreement between 

members SAIs to make amendments to the ASEANSAI Agreement in Article 11 in 

relation to the ASEANSAI Secretariats. On 6th November 2017, the Rules and 

Procedures Committee has brought the new amended sets of ASEANSAI rules 

and procedures to the meeting hosted by SAI of Lao PDR in Vientiane and those 

documents were approved by the Summit. 

 

(14) Another crucial achievement, the ASEANSAI Secretariats has 

collaborated and coordinated with external development partners in attracting 

supporting funds from the donors such as the World Bank, ADB, GIZ, and IDI. The 

funds were used to operate wide range of activities of ASEANSAI in conjunction 

with long-term project on implementing international standards of SAIs (LTAPII 

– Phase I and II), ISSAI-based Financial Audit training. Moreover, the cooperation 

with some European SAIs is also enhanced. In addition, the mini exhibition of 

ASEANSAI achievement prepared by the Secretariats alongside with the meeting 

were well presented to promote ASEANSAI roles and to attract more support 

from interested donors. 

 

Ladies and gentlemen! 

(15) Since the establishment of ASEANSAI in 2011, the Audit Board of 

Indonesia has continually and consecutively been appointed by the assembly to 

perform duties as ASEANSAI Secretariats function is created by the hosting SAI 

of ASEANSAI Chairperson. With regard to the importance of coordination 

between Chairperson’s SAI and the Secretariats, the State Audit Organization of 

Lao PDR has appointed an administrative function within our SAI to assist the 
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Chairperson in relation to communication and allowing favorable conditions for 

the successful implementation of ASEANSAI activities. 

 

(16) Once again, on behalf of ASEANSAI Chairperson and the President of the 

State Audit Organization of Lao PDR would like to take this great opportunity to 

sincerely congratulate and value the remarkable contributions attained by the 

Audit Board of Indonesia and the ASEANSAI’s Secretariats enabling this official 

launching of the new ASEANSAI Secretariats’ Office. 

 

(17) Last but not least, I wish all Presidents, Auditor Generals of ASEANSAI 

members SAIs, representatives from international organizations, ladies and 

gentlemen a greatest success and strongest health, and hope that this new office 

will empower and enable the Secretariats to experience convenient conditions 

that support the accomplishment of delegated tasks and operate successfully in 

the future. 

 

Thank you! 
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ASEANSAI  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at 31 December 2018 

   
Unit : USD 

  Note               2018               2017 

        

ASSETS       

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 3.1 104.449,54  118,252.64 

Account Receivable 3.2                                  -     68,410.94 

         Total current assets  104.449,54 186,663.58 

TOTAL ASSETS   104.449,54 186,663.58 

      

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS     

LIABILITIES    

        Current liabilities    

         Account Payable 3.3 6,256.70                      - 

         Advance payment on annual contribution 3.4 2,800.00 700.00 

         Deferred Revenue 3.5 60,252.36 157,643.37 

        Total current liabilities  69,309.06 158,343.37 

        Total liabilities    69,309.06 158,343.37 

NET ASSETS 3.6   

Net assets at the beginning of the year  28,320.21 21,457.70 

Surplus for the period  7,020.27 6,862.51 

Initial Deposit Reimbursement 3.7 (200.00) ___________-_ 

Total net assets   35,140.48 28,320.21 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS   104,449.54 186.663,58 

 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Signed on original: 
 

 

The Chairman of ASEANSAI 
 
 

Dr. Viengthong Siphandone 

The Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI 
 
 

Dato’ Nik Azman bin Nik Abdul Majid 
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ASEANSAI 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

For the Year Ended December 2018 

    

   Unit : USD 

  Note    2018    2017 

        

REVENUE 3.8     

Annual contribution  3.8.1 7,000.00 7,000.00 

Grant 3.8.2 201,539.28 193,290.72 

TOTAL REVENUE  208,539.28 200.290,72 

     

EXPENSES 3.9   

Training activities expenses 3.9.1 189,032.38 192,747.72 

Bank charges 3.9.2 439.06 678.24 

Foreign Exchange Loss  3.9.3                    - 2.25 

Audit Fee 3.9.4 12,047.57                          -                               

TOTAL EXPENSES   201,519.01 193,428.21 

    

SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD   7,020.27 6,862.51 

 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.  
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ASEANSAI 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

As at 31 December 2018 
Unit : USD 

    Notes          2018      2017 

Balance as at December 31,2017  28,320.21 21,457.70 

  Surplus for the period  7,020.27 6,862.51 

 Initial Deposit Reimbursement     (200.00)                     -      

Balance as at December 31,2018   35,140.48   28,320.21  

 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.  
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ASEANSAI 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

As at 31 December 2018 

 
Unit : USD 

  Notes       2018       2017 

        

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       

Receipts    

Annual Contribution 3.8.1  6,300.00  7,000.00 

Grants 3.8.2  57,809.21  176,589.06 

Advance Receipts of annual contribution 3.4  2,800.00  700.00 

Payment    

Training Expenses 3.9.1  (74,282.38)  (146,847.72) 

Bank Expenses 3.9.2 ( 439.06)  (678.24) 
Foreign Exchange Loss 3.9.3  -    (2.25) 

Audit Fee 3.9.4  (5,790.87)  - 

Initial Deposit Reimbursement 3.7  (200.00)  - 

Net cash flow from operating activities   (13,803.10) 36,760.85 

      

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES       

Net cash flow from investing activities  - - 

    

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES       

Net cash flow from financing activities  - - 

    

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

 (13,803.10) 36,760.85 

    

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year    118,252.64   81,491.79  

 Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    104,449.54   118,252.64  

 

 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. General Information 

 

ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions (ASEANSAI) is the organization of ten Supreme Audit 

Institutions (SAIs) of the member states of ASEAN. ASEANSAI is expected to encourage and 

promote good governance within the ASEAN region. Thus, ASEANSAI will focus on capacity 

development for SAIs of ASEAN member states and technical cooperation dealing with 

important and common audit issues in the ASEAN region. 

 

ASEANSAI was established in November 16, 2011 in Bali, Indonesia, with 10 members of 

SAI from 10 ASEAN countries, which are Jabatan Audit Brunei Darussalam, National Audit 

Authority of Kingdom of Cambodia, the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia, the State 

Audit Organization of Lao P.D.R, Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia, Office of the Auditor 

General of the Union, the Commission on Audit of the Republic of the Philippines, Auditor-

General’s Office of Singapore, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand, and State 

Audit Office of Vietnam. 

 

The objectives of the ASEANSAI are: 

1. To build capacity and promote cooperation and understanding among the Members 

of ASEANSAI through the exchange and sharing of knowledge and experiences in the 

field of public sector auditing so as to strengthen the audit institutions; 

2. To provide a conducive environment and facilities to promote research, training, and 

continuous education among the Members of ASEANSAI through sharing of best 

practices and exchange of lessons learned; and 

3. To serve as a centre of information and as an ASEANSAI link with other international 

organizations and institutions in the field of public sector auditing. 

 

The functions of the ASEANSAI shall include the following: 

1. To create and maintain a data bank of best practices, standards, and methodologies in  

the field of public sector auditing. 

2. To organize seminars, workshops, studies, or other activities related to the exchange 

of knowledge and experiences in the field of public sector auditing; and 

3. To undertake other activities that will promote good governance and cooperation 

among Members of ASEANSAIs. 

 

The membership of ASEANSAI comprises of 10 SAIs of the ASEAN Member States. It consists 

of four important bodies, namely, the Assembly, the Executive Committee, the Secretariat 

and  

the Committee. The Assembly, as a decision-making body, consists of all ASEANSAI 

members who serves as the Auditor General or Head of each SAI while the Executive 

Committee comprises of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI. The Committee, 

whose function is to implement the Assembly’s decision so as to align with ASEANSAI’s 

goals and objectives, is formed from the members of ASEANSAI. The ASEANSAI Committee 

consists of Strategic Planning Committee, Rules and Procedure Committee, Knowledge 

Sharing Committee, and Training Committee. 

 
Meanwhile, the Secretariat is headed by the Head of Secretariat who shall be appointed by  

the Chairman of ASEANSAI. Based on the result from the ASEANSAI Assembly which was 

http://www.aseansai.org/
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held in Brunei Darussalam on 2013, there was an agreement for a transitional arrangement 

before  

the establishment of Permanent Secretariat and the Administration Office. The arrangement 

was  

the1 Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia would continue the Secretariat duties in 

managing finance and bank account, keeping records, and communicating with donors, 

while  

the administration supports would be provided by SAI who served as the Chairman.  

 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements 
are set out below. 
 

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
 

According to paragraph 9.37 of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures, the Chairman (assisted 

by  

the Secretariat) shall prepare the annual financial statements (covering each of the 

financial year during its term) using accrual basis and in accordance with the 

International Public Sector Accounting Standards. 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention using the 

accrual basis of accounting, except for certain accounts/transactions as described in their 

respective accounting policies and the statement of cash flows. 

 

2.2 Foreign Currency Translation 
 

The functional currency of ASEANSAI is the United States Dollar (“USD”) and these 

financial statements are presented in that currency. All transactions occurring in other 

currencies are translated into USD using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 

transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Both realised and unrealised 

gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 

translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

currency other than USD are recognised in net assets/equity (surplus or deficit). 

 

2.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank accounts, and other short-term 

highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are 

subject to  

an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
2.4 Revenue  
 
Annual Contribution 

 

Annual Contribution received from members of ASEANSAI are recorded as revenue on 

accrual basis when the annual contribution is due. The amount of annual contribution 

shall be based on the requirement of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures.  
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Grants 

Grants received from donors and other countries or international and regional 

organisations to implement ASEANSAI projects/activities and other revenue 

(contribution and donations) are recorded on accrual basis when they are earned. 

 

Other Revenue 

Other revenues, such as donation and voluntary contribution, is recognized in the period 

in which it is received. 

 

2.5 Expenses  
 

Expenses are recognised as incurred on an accrual basis. 

 

3. Other Explanatory Notes 
 

3.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash account consist of cash on hand and balances with banks. Cash and cash 

equivalents in the cash flow statements comprise the following statement of financial 

position amounts:  

Unit: USD 

     2018     2017 

Cash on hand & balances with banks  104.449,54  118.252,64 

 104.449,54  118,252.64 

 

Cash is principally held in the United States Dollar bank account. The ASEANSAI has two 

bank accounts, which were opened on August 8, 2012 and 22 March 2016 in the 

government owned bank, Bank Negara Indonesia (BNI) with initial deposit USD200 for 

each account. The initial deposits are contributed by the Audit Board of the Republic of 

Indonesia that acts as the Secretariat.  

 As at 31 December 2018, the balances of cash on hand and banks are as follow: 

 

  Unit : USD 

  2018 

Cash on hand   455.97 
Bank Account (World Bank)   66,210.84 

Bank Account (ASEANSAI Secretariat)  37,782.73 

  104.449,54 

   

ASEANSAI Secretariat bank account is opened to receive annual contribution from all 

members of ASEANSAI. The exemption of bank charges has been started since December 

2013, interest income from the bank account has also being exempted.  
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Another bank account (World Bank) is dedicated to receive grant from the World Bank. 

The grants are based on Grant Agreement No. TF0A2349 on Establishment of ISSAI 

Facilitators Pool for ASEANSAI Project.   

3.2 Account Receivable 

There are two items of receivables which are recognised by the ASEANSAI for financial 

year 2016. Firstly, the receivable is the Annual Contribution. Secondly, the receivable that 

is resulted from the cooperation between ASEANSAI and World Bank based on the Grant 

Agreement No. TF0A2349 on Establishment of ISSAI Facilitators Pool for ASEANSAI 

Project. 

The Annual Contribution’s receivable is recorded in the beginning of the financial year 

when the Secretariat issued the annual payment notification to its member. This 

receivable is deducted when the ASEANSAI’s member paid their annual contribution. This 

receivable will be zero in the end of the financial year.  

The World Bank Grant’s receivable is recorded start from financial year 2016. This aligns 
with the agreements between the ASEANSAI and the World Bank. Based on this 

agreement, the ASEANSAI will receive USD 325,000.00 during 2016-2018 financial year. 

The initial amount of receivable that was recognised is USD 325,000.00. This amount is 

deducted when the periodically disbursement of grant payment is received. During the 

financial year 2018, the fund amounted USD 57,809.21 received by ASEANSAI from the 

total balance USD 68,410.94. Due to the end of the grant agreement at the end of 2018, 

then in 2019 there will be no more grants from the WB that will be received by ASEANSAI 

originating from the agreement. Therefore, the value of the remaining receivables 

amounting to USD10,601.73 is written off.   

Unit: 
USD 

     2018     2017 

Account Receivable  0.00  68.410.94 

 0.00 68,410.94 

. 

3.3 Account Payable 

The account payable balance is ASEANSAI liability to Accounting Firm DBSD&A related to 

the fee for audit of World Bank Project Financial Statement audited by Accounting Firm 

DBSD&A. The total audit fee that must be paid by ASEANSAI is USD12,047.90. From the 

total audit fee, it has been paid in the amount of USD5,791.20 so that ASEANSAI still have 

liabilities in the amount of USD6,256.70 

 

     2018     2017 

Account Payable  6,256.70  0.00 

 6,256.70 0.00 
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3.4 Advance Receipts on Annual Contribution 

Advance Receipts on annual contribution is received before 31 December 2018 for 2019 

Annual Contributions. There is one advance payments on annual contribution in 2018; 

the advance payment was made by the Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia, Auditor General 

Office of Singapore, Jabatan Audit Brunei Darussalam, and the State Audit Office of the 

Kingdom of Thailand.  

Unit: USD 

 2018 2017 

Advance Receipts on annual contribution 2,800.00 700.00 

 2,800.00  700.00 

   

 

3.5 Deferred Revenue 

The ending balance of deferred revenue is the amount of grant from the World Bank based 

on the grant agreement but has not been disbursed on the ASEANSAI projects 

implementation. This grant was resulted from the cooperation between ASEANSAI and 

World Bank with the Grant Agreement No. TF0A2349 on Establishment of ISSAI 

Facilitators Pool for ASEANSAI Project. According to the agreement, the ASEANSAI will 

receive an amount not to exceed USD325,000.00 during 2016 – 2018 financial year. At the 

end of 2018 there in an adjustment to the deferred revenue balance in the amount of 

USD10,601.73. This adjustment is due to the end of the grant agreement with the World 

Bank that ended in 2018. 

The deferred revenue transactions in 2018 are as follows: 

 2018 2017 

Deferred Revenue   

Beginning Balance 157,643.37 305,034.09 

Grants Received - - 

Recognized during the year (86,789.28) (147,390.72) 

Account receivable written off (10,601.73)                       - 

Deferred Revenue – Ending Balance 60,252.36 157,643.37 

 

3.6 Net Assets/ Equity at the End of the Year 

Net Assets/ Equity at the end of the year decreases from USD 28,320.21  

in 2017 to USD 35,140.48 in 2018 due to surplus for the current period.   

3.7 Initial Deposit Reimbursement 

Due to the grant agreement with World Bank in 2016, ASEANSAI opened a bank account 

to place the grant from World Bank with an initial deposit in the amount of USD 200.00 

which formerly recorded as donations from the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia. 

Initial Deposit Reimbursement is related to repayment to the initial deposit in the amount 

of USD 200.00 to the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia. 
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3.8 Revenue 

Revenue is earned or received and recognized upon the economic benefits delivery or 

completion, without regard to the timing of cash flow. There are three components of the 

revenue in the ASEANSAI financial statements. The three components are elaborated as 

follows: 

There are three components of the revenue in the ASEANSAI financial statement. The 

three components are elaborated as follows: 

3.8.1 Annual Contribution 

It was agreed on the 1st ASEANSAI Senior Officials Meeting in Jakarta, October 13 – 14, 

2011 and endorsed during the 1st ASEANSAI Assembly in Bali, November 16, 2011, that 

annual financial contribution by each Member of the ASEANSAI would be USD 700 per 

year.  

According to paragraph 9.9 of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures regarding Payment and 
Receipt of Annual Contributions, the Secretariat shall notify each member of ASEANSAI 

about the annual contribution payment due date (the first day of each calendar year) at 

least three months in advance.  

The detail of annual contribution made by each member is as follows:  

Num. Countries Annual  

Contribution 

(USD) 

1. Brunei Darussalam    700.00 

2. Cambodia    700.00 

3. Philippines    700.00 

4. Indonesia    700.00 

5. Laos    700.00 

6. Malaysia    700.00 

7. Myanmar    700.00 

8. Singapore    700.00 

9. Thailand    700.00 

10. Vietnam     700.00 

Total 7,000.00 
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3.8.2 Grants 

During the financial year 2018, the ASEANSAI received two grants. First, grant is received 

from Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) GmbH. Second, grant is 

received from the World Bank based on Grant Agreement No. TF0A2349 on 

Establishment of ISSAI Facilitators Pool for ASEANSAI Project.  

The grants that were received from GIZ were in the form of technical cooperation, 
organisational development and process advisory. The ASEANSAI never received the 

fund that was used to finance the projects/ workshops/ trainings. 

Based on the agreement, the ASEANSAI will receive grant with amounted USD 

325,000.00 for 2016 – 2018 financial year. The grant was disbursed based on project or 

replenished based on the projects implementation.  

Grants received during 2018 Financial Year are as following: 

  Unit : USD 

 2018 2017 

Grant from GIZ 114,750.00 45,900.00 

Grant from World Bank  86,789,28 147,390.72 

 201,539.28 193,290.72 

 

3.9 Expenses 

Expenses are recognized as they are incurred. If an organization has started to incur 

expense, as long as the amount is estimable and incurring the expense is reasonably 

assured, expense must be recognized, even no cash outflow occurred. 

There are two components of the expenses in the ASEANSAI’s Statement of Financial 

Performance. The two components are elaborated as follows:  

3.9.1 Training Activities Expenses 

As stated in the ASEANSAI Agreement Article 15 paragraph 1 regarding Income and 
Finance, every member of ASEANSAI shall make equal financial contribution annually to 

the ASEANSAI, and it was agreed by the Assembly that the amount should be USD 700.00 

per year for each member which will be used for the ASEANSAI training once a year.  

In 2018, there was no training funded by the Annual Contribution since almost of 

ASEANSAI activities supported by the development partner, Gesellschaft für 

Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) GmbH and World Bank.  
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The detail of the ASEANSAI activities supported by the GIZ are as follows: 

Num.  Activities Amount (USD) 

1. GIZ - ASEANSAI Executive Committee Meeting  6,500.00 

2. GIZ - ASEANSAI SPC meeting on the updating the 

Monitoring and Evaluation System  

6,500.00 

3. GIZ - ASEANSAI Donor Meeting  28,500.00 

4. GIZ - ASEANSAI FUWAPP 17,100.00 

5 GIZ - Working Level Meeting of INTOSAI-Regions 

Coordination Platform  

3,500.00 

6 GIZ - ASEANSAI SPC’s Technical Meeting on Finalizing 

MES Guidelines & Designing Training Courseware  

3,700.00 

7 GIZ - ASEANSAI Workshop on Fraud 

Audit/Investigation  

15,000.00 

8 GIZ - 14thAssembly of ASOSAI & 52nd Governing 

Board Meeting of ASOSAI 

950.00 

9 GIZ - ASEANSAI Workshop on Financial Audit  17,500.00 

10 GIZ - ASEANSAI SPC Meeting on Annual Monitoring 

Evaluation  

15,500.00 

Total 114,750.00 

Meanwhile, ASEANSAI activity supported by the World Bank is as follows: 

Num.  Activities Amount (USD) 

1. Interim Wrap Up Meeting 25,723.21 

2. Final Wrap Up Meeting 48,559.17 

Total 74.282,38 

Grand Total 189,032.38 

3.9.2 Bank Charges 

Bank Charges are as the following: 

Unit: USD 

 2018 2017 

Fixed Bank Charges 179.73 164.03 

Bank Expenses 259.33 514.21 

Bank Charge - - 

Total 439.06 678.24 

 

Bank charges are imposed due to these three conditions: 

a. Fixed Bank Charges 

When some ASEANSAI members paid annual contribution in 2016, there were some 
expenses charged to the transaction. It happened due to transfer characteristic, some 

countries using SHA (sharing) transfer which charged the bank transfer to both 

beneficiary and consignor. The other mechanism is using draft cheque to remit the 

contribution (porto collection), and it will be charged when Secretariat disburse it. 
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The transfer expenses reduced net amount of annual contribution received by 

ASEANSAI. 

b. Bank Expenses 

Bank expenses were charged by the intermediary/ correspondence bank for bank 
transfer fees when members are transferring the annual contribution to the 

Secretariat. These expenses are borne by ASEANSAI.   

Since the endorsement of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures on November 2013, 

according to paragraph 9.10, members of ASEANSAI may choose their own preferred 

mode of payment (cheque, cash or postal remittance/bank transfer). All annual 

contributions shall be made in US Dollars. Bank charges shall be borne by ASEANSAI’s 

fund. Transfer fees and transfer charges become ASEANSAI’s administration 

expenses. 

c. Bank Charges related to Account’s Maintenance 

Bank charges related to account maintenance include account management expense 
(monthly maintenance), printed account expense, porto collection expense (when 

disburse draft cheque) and balance expense (when account balance below minimum 

balance). 

3.9.3 Foreign exchange loss 

Foreign exchange loss related to the loss arising from foreign currency exchange due to 

disbursement on invoice in different currency than USD. During year 2018 the foreign 

exchange loss is USD 0.  

3.9.4 Audit Fee 

Audit Fee related to costs incurred for payment of audit services conducted by public 

accounting firms. During 2018, the expense for audit fee is USD 12,047.57. 
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ASEANSAI  

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at 30 August 2019 

   
Unit : USD 

  Note               2019               2018 

        

ASSETS       

Current assets    

Cash and cash equivalents 3.1 100.216,25  104.449,54  

Account receivable 3.2 2.100,00                       - 

         Total current assets  102.316,25 104.449,54 

Non-Current assets    

Infrastructure, plant and equipment 3.3 17,306.04                       - 

Intangible Asset 3.4         238.00                       - 

         Total non-current assets  17,544.04                       - 

TOTAL ASSETS   119.860,29 104.449,54 

      

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS     

LIABILITIES    

        Current liabilities    

         Account Payable 3.5 - 6,256.70 

         Advance payment on annual contribution 3.6 - 2,800.00 

         Deferred Revenue 3.7 60,252.00 60,252.09 

        Total current liabilities  60,252.00 69,309.06 

        Total liabilities  60,252.00   69,309.06 

NET ASSETS 3.8   

Net assets at the beginning of the year  35,140.48 28,320.21 

Surplus for the period  24.467.81 7,020.27 

Initial Deposit Reimbursement  ___________- (200.00) 

Total net assets   59.608,29 35,140.48 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS   119.860,29 104.449,54 

 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Signed on original: 
 

 

The Chairman of ASEANSAI 
 
 

Dr. Viengthong Siphandone  

The Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI 
 
 

Dato’ Nik Azman bin Nik Abdul Majid 
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ASEANSAI 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

As of April 2019 

    

   Unit : USD 

  Note    2019    2018 

        

REVENUE      

Annual contribution  3.9.1 7,000.00 7,000.00 

Grant 3.9.2 17,544.40 201,539,58 

TOTAL REVENUE  24.544,40 208,539.58 

     

EXPENSES    

Training activities expenses 3.10.1 - 189,032.38 

Bank charges 3.10.2 76.59 439.06 

Audit Fee 3.10.3           - 12,047.57 

TOTAL EXPENSES   76.59 201,519.01 

    

SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD   24,467.81 7,020.27 

 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.  



Enhancing ASEANSAI’s Member to Professionalism   November 2017- October 2019 
 
 

 

ASEANSAI 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

As at 30 April 2019 
Unit : USD 

    Notes          2019      2018 

Balance as at December 31,2018  35.140,48 28.320,21 

  Surplus for the period  24,467.81 7.020,27 

 Initial Deposit Reimbursement  -              (200,00) 

Balance as at April 30,2019  59.608,29  35.140,48  

 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.  
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ASEANSAI 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

As at 30 April 2019 

 
Unit : USD 

  Notes       2019       2018 

        

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES       

Receipts    

Annual Contribution   2,023.77   6,300.00  

Grants   -   57,809.21  

Advance Receipts of annual contribution   -   2,800.00  

Payment    

Training Expenses   -   74,282.38)  

Bank Expenses   0.36   439.06)  
Foreign Exchange Loss   -     -    

Audit Fee  6,256.70   5.,790,87)  

Initial Deposit Reimbursement    200.00)  

Net cash flow from operating activities   (4,233.29) (13.803,10) 

      

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES       

Net cash flow from investing activities  - - 

    

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES       

Net cash flow from financing activities  - - 

    

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

 (4,233.29) (13.803,10) 

    

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of 

year 

  104.449,54  118.252,64  

 Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    100.216,25   104.449,54  

 

 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

3. General Information 

 

ASEAN Supreme Audit Institutions (ASEANSAI) is the organization of ten Supreme Audit 

Institutions (SAIs) of the member states of ASEAN. ASEANSAI is expected to encourage and 

promote good governance within the ASEAN region. Thus, ASEANSAI will focus on capacity 

development for SAIs of ASEAN member states and technical cooperation dealing with 

important and common audit issues in the ASEAN region. 

 

ASEANSAI was established in November 16, 2011 in Bali, Indonesia, with 10 members of 

SAI from 10 ASEAN countries, which are Jabatan Audit Brunei Darussalam, National Audit 

Authority of Kingdom of Cambodia, the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia, the State 

Audit Organization of Lao P.D.R, Jabatan Audit Negara Malaysia, Office of the Auditor 

General of the Union, the Commission on Audit of the Republic of the Philippines, Auditor-

General’s Office of Singapore, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand, and State 

Audit Office of Vietnam. 

 

The objectives of the ASEANSAI are: 

4. To build capacity and promote cooperation and understanding among the Members 

of ASEANSAI through the exchange and sharing of knowledge and experiences in the 

field of public sector auditing so as to strengthen the audit institutions; 

5. To provide a conducive environment and facilities to promote research, training, and 

continuous education among the Members of ASEANSAI through sharing of best 

practices and exchange of lessons learned; and 

6. To serve as a centre of information and as an ASEANSAI link with other international 

organizations and institutions in the field of public sector auditing. 

 
The functions of the ASEANSAI shall include the following: 

4. To create and maintain a data bank of best practices, standards, and methodologies in  

the field of public sector auditing. 

5. To organize seminars, workshops, studies, or other activities related to the exchange 

of knowledge and experiences in the field of public sector auditing; and 

6. To undertake other activities that will promote good governance and cooperation 

among Members of ASEANSAIs. 

 

The membership of ASEANSAI comprises of 10 SAIs of the ASEAN Member States. It consists 

of four important bodies, namely, the Assembly, the Executive Committee, the Secretariat 

and  

the Committee. The Assembly, as a decision-making body, consists of all ASEANSAI 

members who serves as the Auditor General or Head of each SAI while the Executive 

Committee comprises of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of ASEANSAI. The Committee, 

whose function is to implement the Assembly’s decision so as to align with ASEANSAI’s 

goals and objectives, is formed from the members of ASEANSAI. The ASEANSAI Committee 

consists of Strategic Planning Committee, Rules and Procedure Committee, Knowledge 

Sharing Committee, and Training Committee. 

 

http://www.aseansai.org/
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Meanwhile, the Secretariat is headed by the Head of Secretariat who shall be appointed by  

the Chairman of ASEANSAI. Based on the result from the ASEANSAI Assembly which was 

held in Brunei Darussalam on 2013, there was an agreement for a transitional arrangement 

before  

the establishment of Permanent Secretariat and the Administration Office. The arrangement 

was  

the Audit Board of the Republic of Indonesia would continue the Secretariat duties in 

managing finance and bank account, keeping records, and communicating with donors, 

while  

the administration supports would be provided by SAI who served as the Chairman.  

 

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements 
are set out below. 
 

3.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
 

According to paragraph 9.37 of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures, the Chairman (assisted 

by  

the Secretariat) shall prepare the annual financial statements (covering each of the 

financial year during its term) using accrual basis and in accordance with the 

International Public Sector Accounting Standards. 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention using the 

accrual basis of accounting, except for certain accounts/transactions as described in their 

respective accounting policies and the statement of cash flows. 

 

3.2 Foreign Currency Translation 
 

The functional currency of ASEANSAI is the United States Dollar (“USD”) and these 

financial statements are presented in that currency. All transactions occurring in other 

currencies are translated into USD using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 

transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Both realised and unrealised 

gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 

translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

currency other than USD are recognised in net assets/equity (surplus or deficit). 

 

3.3 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank accounts, and other short-term 

highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are 

subject to  

an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

3.4 Property Plant Equipment (PPE) 
 
PPE that qualifies for recognition as an asset shall be measured at its cost. Where an asset 
is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost shall be measured at its fair value 
as at the date of acquisition. 
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3.5 Intangible Asset 
 
An intangible asset is an identifiable nonmonetary asset without physical substance. An 
intangible asset shall be measured initially at cost. Where an intangible asset is acquired 
through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition, shall be 
measured at its fair value as at that date. 
 
3.6 Revenue  
 

Annual Contribution 

Annual Contribution received from members of ASEANSAI are recorded as revenue on 

accrual basis when the annual contribution is due. The amount of annual contribution 

shall be based on the requirement of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures.  

Grants 

Grants received from donors and other countries or international and regional 

organisations to implement ASEANSAI projects/activities and other revenue 

(contribution and donations) are recorded on accrual basis when they are earned. Grants 

in the form of non-current assets are recognized at the date of acquisition and shall be 

measured at its fair value. 

 

Other Revenue 

Other revenues, such as donation and voluntary contribution, is recognized in the period 

in which it is received. 

 

3.7 Expenses  
 

Expenses are recognised as incurred on an accrual basis. 

 

4. Other Explanatory Notes 
 

3.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash account consist of cash on hand and balances with banks. Cash and cash 

equivalents in the cash flow statements comprise the following statement of financial 

position amounts:  

Unit: USD 

     2019     2018 

Cash on hand & balances with banks  100.216,25  104.449,54 

 100.216,25 104.449,54 

Cash is principally held in the United States Dollar bank account. The ASEANSAI has two 

bank accounts, which were opened on August 8, 2012 and 22 March 2016 in the 

government owned bank, Bank Negara Indonesia (BNI) with initial deposit USD200 for 

each account. The initial deposits are contributed by the Audit Board of the Republic of 

Indonesia that acts as the Secretariat.  
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 As at 30 April 2019, the balances of cash on hand and banks are as follow: 

  Unit : USD 

  2019 

Cash on hand   455.97 

Bank Account (ASEANSAI Secretariat)  39.806,50 

Bank Account (World Bank)  59.953,78 

  100.216,25 

   

ASEANSAI Secretariat bank account is opened to receive annual contribution from all 

members of ASEANSAI. The exemption of bank charges has been started since December 

2013, interest income from the bank account has also being exempted.  

Another bank account (World Bank) is dedicated to receive grant from the World Bank. 

The grants are based on Grant Agreement No. TF0A2349 on Establishment of ISSAI 

Facilitators Pool for ASEANSAI Project.   

 

3.11 Account Receivable 

There are two items of receivables which are recognised by the ASEANSAI for financial 

year 2016. Firstly, the receivable is the Annual Contribution. Secondly, the receivable that 

is resulted from the cooperation between ASEANSAI and World Bank based on the Grant 

Agreement No. TF0A2349 on Establishment of ISSAI Facilitators Pool for ASEANSAI 

Project. 

The Annual Contribution’s receivable is recorded in the beginning of the financial year 

when the Secretariat issued the annual payment notification to its member. This 

receivable is deducted when the ASEANSAI’s member paid their annual contribution. This 

receivable will be zero in the end of the financial year.  

The World Bank Grant’s receivable is recorded start from financial year 2016. This aligns 

with the agreements between the ASEANSAI and the World Bank. Based on this 

agreement, the ASEANSAI will receive USD 325,000.00 during 2016-2018 financial year. 

The initial amount of receivable that was recognised is USD 325,000.00. This amount is 

deducted when the periodically disbursement of grant payment is received. During the 

financial year 2019, the account receivable balance has increased USD 2,100.00 which 

derive from annual contributions that have not been deposited by 3 ASEANSAI members.  

Unit: 

USD 

     2019     2018 

Account Receivable  2.100.00  0.00 

 2.100.00 0.00 

. 
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3.12  Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE) 

At March 2019, ASEANSAI received equipment grant from GIZ in amount of USD17, 

306.04. The equipment consist of: 

Type of Asset Fair Value in USD 

Communication & IT equipment 16,442.35 

Furniture and fixtures 540.00 

Other equipment 323.69 

Total 17,306.04 
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3.13 Intangible Asset 

The intangible assets owned by ASEANSAI are part of a grant from GIZ which is handed 

over together with PPE. An intangible asset in amount of USD238.00 is a software 

illustrator. 

 

3.14 Account Payable 

The account payable balance in amount of USD6,256.70 at the end of 2018 is ASEANSAI 

liability to Accounting Firm DBSD&A related to the fee for audit of World Bank Project 

Financial Statement exercised by Accounting Firm DBSD&A. This account payable has 

been paid in February 2019 so that the balance ends in April 2019 is USD0.00 

     2019     2018 

Account Payable  0.00  6,256.70 

 0.00 6,256.70 

   

3.15 Advance Receipts on Annual Contribution 

Advance Receipts on annual contribution is received before 30 April 2019 for 2020 

Annual Contributions. There is no advance payments on annual contribution as of April 

2019.  

Unit: USD 

 2019  2018 

Advance Receipts on annual contribution 0.00 2,800.00 

 0.00  2,800.00  

   

3.16 Deferred Revenue 

The ending balance of deferred revenue is the amount of grant from the World Bank based 

on the grant agreement but has not been disbursed on the ASEANSAI projects 

implementation. This grant was resulted from the cooperation between ASEANSAI and 

World Bank with the Grant Agreement No. TF0A2349 on Establishment of ISSAI 

Facilitators Pool for ASEANSAI Project. According to the agreement, the ASEANSAI will 

receive an amount not to exceed USD325,000.00 during 2016 – 2018 financial year.  

The deferred revenue transactions as of April 2019 are as follows: 

 2019 2018 

Deferred Revenue   

Beginning Balance 60,252.36 157,643.37 

Grants Received (0.36) - 

Recognized during the year - 86,789.28 

Account receivable written off                     - 10,601.73 

Deferred Revenue – Ending Balance 60,252.00 60,252.36 
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The grants received in amount of USD0.36, which is a deferred revenue deduction, is a 

grant for bank charges due to audit fee payment. 

3.17 Net Assets/ Equity at the End of the Year 

Net Assets/ Equity at the end of the year decreases from USD 35,140.48 

in 2018 to USD 59,608.29 as of April 2019 due to surplus for the current period.   

 

3.18 Revenue 

Revenue is earned or received and recognized upon the economic benefits delivery or 

completion, without regard to the timing of cash flow. There are three components of the 

revenue in the ASEANSAI financial statements. The three components are elaborated as 

follows: 

There are three components of the revenue in the ASEANSAI financial statement. The 

three components are elaborated as follows: 

3.18.1 Annual Contribution 

It was agreed on the 1st ASEANSAI Senior Officials Meeting in Jakarta, October 13 – 14, 
2011 and endorsed during the 1st ASEANSAI Assembly in Bali, November 16, 2011, that 

annual financial contribution by each Member of the ASEANSAI would be USD 700 per 

year.  

According to paragraph 9.9 of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures regarding Payment and 

Receipt of Annual Contributions, the Secretariat shall notify each member of ASEANSAI 

about the annual contribution payment due date (the first day of each calendar year) at 

least three months in advance. 

The detail of annual contribution made by each member is as follows:  

Num. Countries Annual  

Contribution 

(USD) 

1. Brunei Darussalam    700.00 

2. Cambodia    700.00 

3. Philippines    700.00 

4. Indonesia    700.00 

5. Laos    700.00 

6. Malaysia    700.00 

7. Myanmar    700.00 

8. Singapore    700.00 

9. Thailand    700.00 

10. Vietnam     700.00 

Total 7,000.00 
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3.18.2 Grants 

During the financial year 2019, the ASEANSAI no longer receive grants from World Bank 

due to the end of the grant agreement No. TF0A2349 at the end of 2018. There is only 

one grant transaction in amount of USD0.36 that is used for bank administration fees for 

payment of audit fees that have been recognized as a grant in 2018. 

At 2019, ASEANSAI received grants in a form of PPE and intangible asset from GIZ in the 

amount of USD17,544.04.  

Grants received as of April 2019 are as following: 

  Unit : USD 

 2019 2018 

Grant from GIZ - 114,750.00 

Grant from World Bank  0,36 86,789,28 

Grant from GIZ – equipment  _17,544.04                      - 

 17, 544,40 201,539.28 

 

3.19 Expenses 

Expenses are recognized as they are incurred. If an organization has started to incur 

expense, as long as the amount is estimable and incurring the expense is reasonably 

assured, expense must be recognized, even no cash outflow occurred. 

There are two components of the expenses in the ASEANSAI’s Statement of Financial 

Performance. The two components are elaborated as follows:  

3.19.1 Training Activities Expenses 

As stated in the ASEANSAI Agreement Article 15 paragraph 1 regarding Income and 

Finance, every member of ASEANSAI shall make equal financial contribution annually to 

the ASEANSAI, and it was agreed by the Assembly that the amount should be USD 700.00 

per year for each member which will be used for the ASEANSAI training once a year.  

As of April 30, there has been no expenditure for training expenses. 

 

3.19.2 Bank Charges 

Bank Charges are as the following: 

Unit: USD 

 2019 2018 

Fixed Bank Charges 76.59 179.73 

Bank Expenses  259.33 

Bank Charge - - 

Total 76.59 439.06 
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Bank charges are imposed due to these three conditions: 

d. Fixed Bank Charges 

When some ASEANSAI members paid annual contribution in 2016, there were some 

expenses charged to the transaction. It happened due to transfer characteristic, some 

countries using SHA (sharing) transfer which charged the bank transfer to both 

beneficiary and consignor. The other mechanism is using draft cheque to remit the 

contribution (porto collection), and it will be charged when Secretariat disburse it. 

The transfer expenses reduced net amount of annual contribution received by 

ASEANSAI. 

e. Bank Expenses 

Bank expenses were charged by the intermediary/ correspondence bank for bank 

transfer fees when members are transferring the annual contribution to the 

Secretariat. These expenses are borne by ASEANSAI.   

Since the endorsement of ASEANSAI Rules and Procedures on November 2013, 
according to paragraph 9.10, members of ASEANSAI may choose their own preferred 

mode of payment (cheque, cash or postal remittance/bank transfer). All annual 

contributions shall be made in US Dollars. Bank charges shall be borne by ASEANSAI’s 

fund. Transfer fees and transfer charges become ASEANSAI’s administration 

expenses. 

f. Bank Charges related to Account’s Maintenance 

Bank charges related to account maintenance include account management expense 

(monthly maintenance), printed account expense, porto collection expense (when 

disburse draft cheque) and balance expense (when account balance below minimum 

balance). 

 

3.19.3 Audit Fee 

Audit Fee related to costs incurred for payment of audit services conducted by public 

accounting firms. The audit fee already accrued in 2018 so that the balance of audit fee 

in 2019 is USD0.00. 
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Significant Letters 
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